
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, July 28, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M.

Location: Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg Jenson, Michael
Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim Swadley, Sonny
Swangstu, Pat O’Connor

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The
Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please
notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:

 Kettle Park West Update
 Presentation by Randy Robertson for the Stoughton Area Veterans

Memorial Park

2. Minutes and Reports:

 Minutes: Finance Committee (6/23/2015), Personnel Committee (4/6/2015 &
6/1/2015), Public Safety Committee (5/27/2015), Landmarks Commission (6/11/2015),
Police and Fire Commission (1/5/2015, 1/7/2015, 1/27/2015, & 3/18/2015), Planning
Commission (6/8/2015), Public Works Committee (6/15/2015), and Redevelopment
Authority (5/13/2015)

3. Public Comment Period: (*Please note: Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda)

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Council Minutes: July 14, 2015
B. R-107-2015- Mayor’s Appointments to the Stoughton Arts Council

OLD BUSINESS

NONE

AMENDED:
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



NEW BUSINESS

5. O-14-2015- Amending the General Development Plan at 517 Kensington Square for a
proposed deck addition (Planning Commission recommends approval 6-0)

FIRST READING

6. O-15-2015- Approving an amended Specific Implementation Plan (" Amended SIP") for
certain property on the north side of State Highway 138, west of US Highway 51 (Wal-
Mart) (Planning Commission meets July 27, 2015)

FIRST READING

7. R-108-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into a Change
Order with Joe Daniels Construction to replace the Ramp and Railings at the Library
Building as part of the Library Remodeling Project (Finance recommends approval 4-0)

8. R-112-2015- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson to
operate a Commercial Animal Boarding facility (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. Main Street,
Stoughton, Wisconsin (Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0)

9. R-113-2015- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Tim & Brenda Klein to operate an
indoor commercial entertainment establishment (Restaurant) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite
110, Stoughton, Wisconsin (Planning Commission meets July 27, 2015)

10. R-114-2015- Approving an amended Certified Survey Map for Norse View Holdings LLC
to reconfigure lots 145-148 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Heights, Stoughton (Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0)

11. R-115-2015- Approving an amended Certified Survey Map for Norse View Holdings LLC
to reconfigure lots 148-150 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Heights, Stoughton (Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0)

12. R-116-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Stoughton
Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility and Sanitary Sewer Collection System 2014
Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) (Utilities Committee recommends
approval 5-0, with John Kallas abstaining)

13. R-109-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the General
Maintenance Plan for Stormwater Ponds and Greenways. (Public Works Committee
recommends approval 4-0)

14. R-110-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of
Stoughton Residential Traffic Management Program (RTMP) (Joint Meeting of the Public
Works Committee and the Public Safety Committee recommends approval 7-0)

15. R-111-2015-Authorizing Council approval of the revised Municipal Building Use Policy.
(Public Works Committee recommends approval 5-0)



16. The council may meet in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. sec. 19.85(1)(g) to
confer with legal counsel who will render advice concerning strategy to be adopted
with respect to the lawsuit entitled Stoughton Forward, et.al. vs. City of Stoughton, et.
al., Dane County Circuit Court Case No. 15 CV 1847.

17. The Council may reconvene into open session to consider and approve a Settlement
Agreement in respect to the lawsuit entitled Stoughton Forward, et.al. Vs City of
Stoughton, et.al. Dane County Circuit Court Case No. 15 CV 1847.

18. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and
services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council
President Paul Lawrence





 


 


Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, July 28, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Greg Jenson, Michael 


Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim Swadley, Sonny 


Swangstu, Pat O’Connor 


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: EIGHT (8) MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM. The 


Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the meeting, please 


notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us  


 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


 Kettle Park West Update 


 Presentation by Randy Robertson for the  Stoughton Area Veterans 


Memorial Park  


 


 


2. Minutes and Reports:  


 


 Minutes:  Finance Committee (6/23/2015), Personnel Committee (4/6/2015 & 


6/1/2015), Public Safety Committee (5/27/2015), Landmarks Commission (6/11/2015), 


Police and Fire Commission (1/5/2015, 1/7/2015, 1/27/2015, & 3/18/2015), Planning 


Commission (6/8/2015), Public Works Committee (6/15/2015), and Redevelopment 


Authority (5/13/2015) 


 


3. Public Comment Period:  (*Please note:  Comments must be regarding an item on tonight’s agenda) 


 


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. Council Minutes: July 14, 2015 


B. R-107-2015- Mayor’s Appointments to the Stoughton Arts Council 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NONE 


 


 


 


AMENDED: 
OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.   


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


5. O-14-2015- Amending the General Development Plan at 517 Kensington Square for a 


proposed deck addition (Planning Commission recommends approval 6-0) 


           FIRST READING 


 


6. O-15-2015- Approving an amended Specific Implementation Plan (" Amended SIP") for 


certain property on the north side of State Highway 138, west of US Highway 51 (Wal-


Mart)  (Planning Commission meets July 27, 2015)      


          FIRST READING 


 


7. R-108-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into a Change 


Order with Joe Daniels Construction to replace the Ramp and Railings at the Library 


Building as part of the Library Remodeling Project (Finance recommends approval 4-0) 


 


8. R-112-2015- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson to 


operate a Commercial Animal Boarding facility (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. Main Street, 


Stoughton, Wisconsin (Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0) 


 


9. R-113-2015- Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Tim & Brenda Klein to operate an 


indoor commercial entertainment establishment (Restaurant) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 


110, Stoughton, Wisconsin (Planning Commission meets July 27, 2015) 


 


10. R-114-2015- Approving an amended Certified Survey Map for Norse View Holdings LLC 


to reconfigure lots 145-148 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to 


Norse View Heights, Stoughton (Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0) 


 


11. R-115-2015- Approving an amended Certified Survey Map for Norse View Holdings LLC 


to reconfigure lots 148-150 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to 


Norse View Heights, Stoughton (Planning Commission recommends approval 7-0) 


 


12. R-116-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Stoughton 


Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility and Sanitary Sewer Collection System 2014 


Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR) (Utilities Committee recommends 


approval 5-0, with John Kallas abstaining) 


 


13. R-109-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the General 


Maintenance Plan for Stormwater Ponds and Greenways. (Public Works Committee 


recommends approval 4-0) 


 


14. R-110-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the City of 


Stoughton Residential Traffic Management Program (RTMP) (Joint Meeting of the Public 


Works Committee and the Public Safety Committee recommends approval 7-0) 


 


15. R-111-2015-Authorizing Council approval of the revised Municipal Building Use Policy. 


 (Public Works Committee recommends approval 5-0) 







 


 


 


 


16. The council may meet in closed session pursuant to Wis. Stat. sec. 19.85(1)(g) to 


confer with legal counsel who will render advice concerning strategy to be adopted 


with respect to the lawsuit entitled Stoughton Forward, et.al. vs. City of Stoughton, et. 


al., Dane County Circuit Court Case No. 15 CV 1847. 


 


17.  The Council may reconvene into open session to consider and approve a Settlement 


Agreement in respect to the lawsuit entitled Stoughton Forward, et.al. Vs  City of 


Stoughton, et.al. Dane County Circuit Court Case No. 15 CV 1847. 


 


 


18. ADJOURNMENT 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and 


services. For information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council 


President Paul Lawrence 








PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  


Monday, April 6, 2015  @ 5:30 


Mayor’s Office  


 


Present: Alders Tricia Suess, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma and Mayor Donna Olson (ex-officio)  


 


Absent & Excused: Eric Hohol 


 


Others in attendance: Robert Kardasz, Greg Leck, 


  


CALL TO ORDER  


 


Suess called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  


 


1. Call to Order 


2. Communications 


 Update on Recruiting 


Director Gillingham gave an update regarding the ten open positions that she is 


recruiting for.  A limited discussion took place regarding the concern about the turn over 


at Utilities.  Director Gillingham informed the Personnel Committee that she has a 


meeting scheduled with Director Kardasz and the Mayor on 4/7/2015.  We discussed the 


situation within the office for staffing.  Jenifer Rigdon just gave her notice and Enecia is 


out on FMLA and is not due back for another 7+ weeks.  Therefore the second 


Customer Service Position is a necessity and the position needs to be put on the fast 


track.     There are currently are 4-5 positions we are recruiting for in the Utilities.   


Seasonal Parks- Alderperson Seuss asked about the season position and why there was 


an opening.  Director Gillingham explained that these are seasonal positions and not all 


employees return for each of the seasons.  They may find other regular not season 


employment.   


Administrative Assistant-Front Desk:  There are two positions open.  Director 


Gillingham stated she is reviewing the applications and will get the interviews setup 


with Director Sullivan and an Alderperson.   


HR/RM Assistant- Director Gillingham stated that the position is on hold until the job 


description and compensation are approved by Personnel and Council on 4/14/2015. 


Items to be discussed at this meeting. 


Per Director Gillingham, the library shelver openings are on-going recruiting.   


 







 Exit Interviews  


Director Gillingham has started conducting face-to-face exit interviews with employee’s 


that are departing from the City.  She met with two Utilities programs and following 


each meeting she met with Director Kardasz to discuss the feedback, common threads 


and opportunities for improvement. A meeting has been scheduled on 4/7/15 with 


Director Kardasz, Mayor Olson and Director Gillingham to discuss the turnover volume 


and exit interview feedback.  


 Update on Wage Compensation Study by Springsted 


Director Gillingham and Mayor Olson shared with the committee the weekly meetings 


that have been scheduled with Springsted to bring the project to a close.  The current 


step Director Gillingham is working on is the validation of the data and review of the job 


descriptions and PAQ’s that were submitted.   


Alder Lawrence questioned how long the project has been going on.  Mayor Olson 


stated to long and shared with the committee the frustration we and other cities are 


experiencing with the timeliness and results.   


 Case Management- Accidents/WC/FMLA 


Director Gillingham reviewed the case volume and number of employees that are off 


work.  She also reviewed the employees that will be returning to work light duty.  All 


employees off work or reported injury are being cased managed to ensure the best 


possible outcome.   


 Update on Retirement Rates for Medical Insurance 


Director Gillingham reported that the letters were sent out with the April Invoices.  


Alder Suess asked that another letter be sent out to the retiree’s midyear reminding them 


about the rates going up dramatically and if interested, look for alternatives.     


3. Approval of the Minutes of the March 2, 2015 Personnel Committee Meeting 


Motion by Boersma to approve the 3/2/15 Minutes, Second by Lawrence, Motion passed (4-0)  


 


4. Old Business 


 Review and action regarding payroll duties, updated job descriptions and compensation 


Mayor Olson stated that she had met with the Auditor regarding the separation of duties.  


It was recommended that the responsibilities of system setup and maintenance be 


separate from the person processing payroll.  The Mayor asked Directors Sullivan and 


Gillingham that a permanent home be found for the payroll responsibilities and that they 


person takes over payroll and owns it.  Mayor Olson further stated that she just reviewed 


the job descriptions prepared by Director Sullivan and she would like them change to 


focus on what versus how.  The Mayor stated this is the same change that she requested 


from Utilities.   


 


Director Gillingham stated that the meeting was held with Director Sullivan and Mayor 







Olson and the decision was made to move payroll to the Deputy Clerk and increase the 


hours from 20-30.  Alder Lawrence made a motion to table the job description changes 


and hours increase for Administration. Second by Boersma, Motion passed (4-0) 


  


A Personnel Committee meeting will be called on 4/13/15 at 4:00 to review the updated 


job descriptions and request for additional hours.  . 


 


 HR & RM Assistant position- with the removal of the payroll duties, Director 


Gillingham completed the job description update along with the title change to reflect 


the duties.  Director Gillingham requested that the compensation also be increased up to 


$17.00.   


Motion by Lawrence to approved the title change to Human Resources & Risk 


Management Generalist, the revised job description and compensation up to $17.00.  


Second by Boersma, Motion passed (4-0)   


 


 


5. New Business 


 


 Utilities- Review and approval of the Customer Service Position job description update 


and 2
nd


 position (part-time) at the current rate of pay ($14.26-4 steps to $15.74) 


Director Kardasz discussed the need for the second customer service employee.  


Director Gillingham also discussed that there is also an employee out on FMLA for 


potentially 12 weeks.  Motion by Lawrence to approve the updated job description, 2
nd


 


position and compensation.  Second by Suess, Motion passed (4-0) 


 


 Review and approval of the Work Rules-Sergeant’s position 


Director Gillingham reviewed the steps necessary to move the Sergeants from the 


Union.  The next step in the process is updating the work rules and making the 


Sergeants whole by utilizing sections from the Union Contract.  Director Gillingham 


and Chief Leck reviewed and discussed with the Personnel Committee each of the 


sections added and or changed the work rules.  Motion by Lawrence to approve the 


recommended changes to the work rules, second by Boersma, Motion passed (4-0) 


 


 Future Agenda Items 


o Recruiting update- new employees 


o Revised Job Descriptions-Administration 


o Elections- Chair and Vice-Chair 


o Police Sergeant- next steps 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by Boersma at 6:20pm. Motion carried unanimously 4-0 


 


 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  


Monday, June 1 @ 5:30 


Mayor’s Office  


 


Present: Alders:   Pat O’Connor, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Tom Majewski, and Mayor Donna Olson 


(ex-officio)  


 


Absent & Excused:   Tom Majewski (Absent) 


 


Others in attendance:   
  


CALL TO ORDER:  Director Gillingham called the meeting to order at 5:31pm 


 


1. Elect Chair:  Sid Boersma, voted in as chair- unanimously 


2. Elect Vice Chair: Pat O’Connor, voted in as vice-chair- unanimously 


3. Approval of the Minutes of the April 13,2015 Personnel Committee Meeting 


Motion by Boersma to approve the 4/13/2015 Minutes, Second by Lawrence, Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


4. Communications:   


-Norm Brekken set to retire at the end of July.  Director Gillingham is working with Director Scheel to review the job 


descriptions and determine if the Master Electrician/Inspector responsibilities will stay within the job description.  


-Marilyn Granrud Memorial Service Reminder to the Committee 


-W/C Director Gillingham gave an over view of the open cases  


-New HR/RM Position filled- Ms. Skarda is transferring from the front desk.   


-Discussed Sgt’s removal from the Union and the next steps.   


5. Old Business 


 Utilities job descriptions- the committee was asked to review and be prepared to discuss and 


approve at the July Meeting.   


 Library Position Update: Director Gillingham explained that the job description was being 


reviewed and re-designed to meet the needs of the Library. Interviews to start mid-June.   


 Compensation Study- PAQ/JD to be reviewed and approved by the Mayor for the RM/HR 


position.  Mayor and Director Gillingham to review all positions and provide feedback to 


Springsted by mid-June. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by O’Connor. Motion carried unanimously 4-0. Meeting 


adjourned at 4:35pm 


 


 







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 27, 2015 at 6PM  
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall  


Present:  Regina Hirsch, Michael Engelberger, Eric Hohol, and Tim Swadley  


Guests: Lisa Schimelpfenig, Pat Conlin, Lana Kropf, Matt Roethe, Bill Brehm, Dennis 
Mandt, Daniel Kelly, Nick Brattlie, Nicholas Myers, Nicole Stewart, and Lynn Hull 


Call to Order:  Engelberger called the meeting to order at 6:00pm.   


Communications:  


Hirsch stated that she had received many complaints from citizens regarding the pig 
wrestling that take places and the Stoughton Junior Fair. She wondered if the was 
something that could be handled by the committee. Lieutenant Conlin explained that it was 
a fair sanctioned event and that the City had no involvement with it.  


Approval of the Public Safety Committee Minutes from April 22, 2015 


Motion by Swadley, to approve the minutes from the April 22, 2015 Public Safety Meeting, 
second by Hirsch. Motion carried 4-0. 


Request from the Town of Deerfield to be included with the Stoughton Municipal 
Court 


Dennis Mandt addressed the committee regarding the Town of Deerfield possibly becoming 
a part of the Stoughton Municipal Court system. As a town they do not have their own police 
and would need a municipal court system to issue citations for any ordinance violations. 
The town recently passed an ordinance relating to nonmetallic mining and blasting. Mandt 
also explained that while the Dane County Sheriff’s department had handled these 
complaints in the past, the town would have to pay an approximate $78,000 a year. Judge 
Roethe explained that his main concern with the extra work taken on by the Court Clerk. 
Hohol advised that the resolution from the Town of Deerfield should be forwarded to Mayor 
Olson and to the town board chairs in the bordering municipalities. No action was taken on 
this item.  


Application for an Operator’s License : Nicholas Myers 


Motion by Hohol to go into closed session, second by Swadley. Motion passed by a roll call 
vote 4-0. The Public Safety Committee went into closed session at 6:32pm. 


Motion by Hohol, to reconvene into open session, second by Swadley. Motion passed by a 
roll call vote 4-0. The Public Safety Committee reconvened into open session at 6:41pm. 


Motion by Hohol, to table the application and to issue a full refund of the application fee 
back to the applicant, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 4-0. 


Alderperson Swadley left the meeting at 6:41pm. 


Application for an Operator’s License: Nicole Stewart 


Motion by Hohol, to go into closed session, second by Hirsch. Motion carried by a roll call 
vote 3-0. The Public Safety Committee went into closed session at 6:44pm. 







Motion by Hohol, to reconvene into open session, second by Hirsch. Motion carried by a roll 
call vote 3-0. The Public Safety committee reconvened into open session at 7:08pm. 


Motion by Hirsch, to change the operator license to a one year license from a two year, no 
second was offered. Motion failed for a lack of second. 


Motion by Hohol, to refer to Council and to recommend denial, second by Engelberger. 
Motion passed 2-1. 


Request for a change to include a “Class A” Liquor for both Kwik Trip Store #738 & 
Kwik Trip Store #739 and request for a change to include a “Class A” Liquor for 
Jagat Petroleum, LLC d/b/a JP Market 


Both items were combined for discussion. Chief Leck offered a memo and an explanation 
for his decision in his absence from the meeting. Chief Leck’s memo stated that he felt that 
the aforementioned convenient stores should not have alcohol for children’s safety. The 
Committee was very concerned with the possibility of children being able to shop lift small 
bottle of liquor. Clerk Kropf explained that the Kwik Trip liquor storage would be behind the 
customer counter, next to the tobacco products. 


Motion by Hohol, to table the license application and request that the Police Chief and 
Lieutenant reevaluate the license applications and store layouts, second by Hirsch. Motion 
carried 3-0. 


 Liquor License renewals for the period of July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2016  


Clerk Kropf explained that these license are renewals for the new licensing period and that 
nothing had changed from last year. 


Motion by Hohol, to approve the licenses and to send to Council for approval, second by 
Hirsch. Motion carried 3-0. 


Discussion and possible action on DaneCom Amended and Restated 
Intergovernmental Agreement 


Lt. Conlin explained that the City wouldn’t need to sign a new agreement. No action as 
taken on this item. 


Discussion on Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B” Retailer’s License and Special Event 
License for Catfish River Music Festival 


Bill Brehm from the Opera House addressed the committee and discussed the parameters 
of the festival. He explained that the Stoughton Friends of the Opera House have 
implemented best practices and will be increasing the signage in the park area. The 
committee was concerned with the pond in Rotary Park. Hohol asked for the CVMIC policy 
regarding the fencing around the pond, to be brought to the next meeting. 


Motion by Hohol, to approve the Temporary Retailer’s and Special Event license for the 
Catfish River Festival, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 3-0.  


 


 







Request to eliminate charges for ambulance services when there is no patient 
transport 


Lisa Schimelpfenig addressed the committee regarding a complaint from a citizen. The 
citizen was upset that his wife was charged for an ambulance visit even though she wasn’t 
transported. Schimelpfenig explained that state law requires that EMS take an ambulance 
to any call that they receive. She also explained that almost all EMS services bill for a no 
transport calls. The cost for EMS to go on a call is approximately $500 and the Stoughton 
EMS charges $150 for a no transport call. Hohol suggested that the billing cost of a no 
transport call be reevaluated and possibly increased. 


Motion to deny the request to eliminate charges for ambulance services when there is no 
patient transport, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 3-0. 


Future agenda items:   


- CVMIC Policy regarding fencing around the Rotary Park storm water retention pond 


- “Class A” liquor license applications for Kiwk Trip # 738, Kwik Trip # 739, and JP 
Market 


- 5K Run for Children’s Hospital 


- Town of Deerfield addition to the Stoughton Municipal Court system 


Adjournment 


Motion by Hirsch to adjourn the meeting of the Public Safety Committee, second by 
Engelberger. Motion carried 3-0. The meeting was adjourned at 8:32pm. 


 


 


 
 







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
June 23, 2015 – 6:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building 
 
Present:   
Alderpersons Greg Jenson, Ron Christianson, Tim Swadley and Mayor Donna Olson 
 
Others Present:    
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan 
 
Absent and Excused: Pat O’Connor   
 
Call to order:    
Christianson called the meeting to order at 6:00pm 
 
Communications:   
Finance Director Sullivan noted that the first CIP budget meetings will be held the week 
of June 30, 2015. 
 
Reports / Contingency/ May Treasurer’s Report: 
No action taken. 
 
Approval of the June 9, 2015 Finance Committee Minutes: 
Motion by Jenson to approve the minutes from the June 9, 2015 Finance Committee 
meeting.  Second by Swadley. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Year to Date Budget Update 
Finance Director Sullivan explained that within the packet, there was a detailed line item 
report. She explained that all of the department heads had also included a memo 
explaining how their budgets are being used and that they are all on track for the year.  
 
Discussion Regarding TIF Policy 
Finance Director Sullivan explained that she read all of the TIF policies from other 
communities that were on the City website. She explained that most of the policies were 
very similar; one major difference was how the policies were laid out. Swadley 
questioned if the TIF Policy should be a TIF ordinance instead. He stated that having an 
ordinance might insure that there is a clear expectation made as to what the City 
expects from a business wishing to engage in tax incremental financing. Sullivan 
explained that the City would need the flexibility of a policy and that within the policy 
there would be references to state statutes that would solidify the expectations.  
Christianson stated that he agreed with the layout of the TIF policy from the City of 
Platteville. He also agreed with including a provision in the TIF policy that would require 
the City to perform a background check on a developer prior to Council approval.  
 
Future Agenda Items: 


- TIF Policy 
- CIP Budget updates 


  
Adjournment: 
Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the Finance Committee meeting, second by Swadley. 
Motion carried 4-0. The Finance Committee meeting adjourned at 6:44pm. 







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\7-28-2015\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 6-11-15.doc 


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


Thursday, June 11, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 


City Hall, Hall of Fame Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 


 


Members Present:  Peggy Veregin, Chair; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-Chair; Michael Engelberger, 


Council Representative; and Greg Pigarelli  


Absent and Excused: None 


Staff:  Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey 


Guests:  None 


1. Call to order.  Peggy called the meeting to order at 7:04 pm. 
 


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of May 14, 2015. 


Motion by Engelberger to approve the minutes as presented, 2
nd


 by Alan. Motion carried 4 – 0. 
 


3. Proposed Historic Preservation Ordinance Amendments. 


 


Peggy opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


The commission discussed amendments to the ordinance and made some minor changes. 


 


Peggy closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Engelberger to recommend Council approve the proposed amendments to Chapter 


38, Historic Preservation as presented, 2
nd


 by Alan.  Motion carried 4 - 0. 


 


The first reading of the ordinance will be on June 23, 2015 and the second reading will be on 


July 14, 2015. 


 


4. Status Updates:  


A. Power Plant – Nothing new to report. 


 


B. 1892 High School – Noting new to report. 
 


5. Discuss potential new landmarks commission members. 


Peggy provided a list of possible new commission members for discussion. 
 


6. Discuss Historic Preservation Award. 


The commission discussed how the award may be presented.  No timetable set as to when the 
presentation would occur. 
 


7. Discuss Budget for next year. 


Stacey provided the amount left in the landmarks account which is $1,657.11 
 
The commission discussed options for future budget proposals. 







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/11/15 


Page 2 of 2 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\7-28-2015\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 6-11-15.doc  


8. Commission Reports/Calendar. 


The commission discussed the proposed telecommunications antenna co-location on the roof of 
Stoughton Hospital. 


 


9. Future agenda items.  None discussed. 
 
10. Adjournment. Motion by Alan to adjourn at 9:00 pm, 2


nd
 by Engelberger.    Motion carried 


4 – 0. 
 


Respectfully Submitted,  
 
Michael Stacey 







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Minutes
Tuesday, January 27, 2015 – 5:00 p.m., 401 E. Main St., Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Jon Lewis, Peter Sveum, Karen Benson, David Bursack, Dan Kittleson
Absent and Excused: Chief Greg Leck, Amy Jo Gillngham
Absent: None
Staff: Fire Chief Marty Lamers, Fire Chief-Elect Scott Wegner, 2


nd
Lieutenant Dan Jenks


Guests: None


1. Call to order. The meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Sveum.


2. Review of Minutes from 12/22/14; 1/05/15; and 1/07/15
Reviewed minutes from the listed meetings. Motion by Bursack, seconded by Kittleson to
accept the minutes as written. Motion carried unanimously.


3. Police Chief Leck’s Quarterly Report
2


nd
Lieutnant Dan Jenks presented the Quarterly Police Report. Motion by Lewis, seconded


by Kittleson to accept the report as presented. Motion carried unanimously. (See attached)


4. Fire Chief Lamers’ Quarterly Report
Chief Lamers presented the Quarterly Fire Report. This will be Chief Lamers last meeting.
The PFC thanked him for his many contributions and wished him well. Motion by Bursack,
seconded by Lewis to accept the report as presented. Motion carried unanimously. (See
attached)


5. Closed Session for the Purpose of Hiring Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshall
Motion by Bursack, seconded by Lewis to move into closed session per State Statute
19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation
data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises
responsibility. Motion carried unanimously.


Motion by Kittleson, seconded by Bursack to move back into open session. Motion carried
unanimously.


We will begin the process for recruiting for the Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshall position.
Following the filling of that position we will recruit for 2 fire fighter positions.


6. Adjournment
Motion by Lewis, seconded by Kittleson to adjourn at 6:00 p.m. Motion carried unanimously.


The next meeting to be determined based on schedule for interviewing the Deputy Fire
Chief/Fire Marshall candidates.


Respectfully submitted,
Secretary, City of Stoughton PFC
Karen L. Benson







C:\Users\dblaney\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\FL841VZR\Minutes_PFC_01-27-2015.doc







City of Stoughton Police and Fire Commission Minutes
Wednesday, March 18, 2015 – 4:00 p.m., Hall of Fame Room at City Hall, 381 E.
Main St., Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Jon Lewis, Peter Sveum, Karen Benson, David Bursack, Dan
Kittleson
Absent and Excused: Chief Greg Leck
Absent: None
Staff: Fire Chief Scott Wegner
Guests: Amy Jo Gillingham


1. Call to order. The meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. by Sveum.


2. Closed Session for the Purpose of Interviewing Deputy Fire Chief/Fire
Marshall Candidates


Motion by Kittleson, seconded by Bursack to move into closed session per State
Statute 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, compensation, or
performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. Motion carried
unanimously.


Motion by Lewis, seconded by Kittleson move back into open session. Motion
carried unanimously.


3. Filling Deputy Fire Chief/Fire Marshall Position


Motion by Kittleson, seconded by Lewis to offer the Deputy Fire Chief/Fire
Marsall position to Mark Miller. President Sveum will make the offer.


4. Adjournment


Motion by Kittleson, seconded by Lewis to adjourn at 6:55. Motion carried
unanimously.


The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, May 4, 2015 at 5:00 p.m. Room
to be determined.


Respectfully submitted,
Secretary, City of Stoughton PFC
Karen L. Benson















T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\7-28-2015\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 6-8-15.doc 


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, June 8, 2015 - 6:00 p.m. 


Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, 


WI. 
 


Members Present:  Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice-Chair; Matt Hanna; 


Eric Hohol; Pat O’Connor and Scott Truehl  


Absent: Todd Krcma 


Staff:  Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey 


Press: Mark Ignatowski 


Guests: Bob Stoehr; Robert Jensen; Terry Johnson and Dave Eugster 


 


1. Call to order.  Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of May 11, 2015.   


Motion by Truehl to approve the minutes of May 11, 2015 as presented, 2
nd


 by Hanna.  


Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


 Christianson reported the zoning ordinance amendments and resolution for Spanrie 


 Properties were approved. 


 


4. Status of Developments.  


 Stacey gave an update regarding the status of current development. 


 


5. Robert Jensen requests extra-territorial jurisdictional (ETJ) certified survey map 


(CSM) approval to create an additional residential parcel adjacent to 3376 Quam 


Drive, Town of Dunn. 


 Stacey explained the request is for an infill residential lot. 


 


Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the extra-territorial land 


division request contingent on the Town of Dunn and Dane County approval, 2
nd


 by 


O’Connor.  Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 


6. Meloniece Gaskin requests a conditional use permit (CUP) for a Group Daycare at 


1425 E. Main Street. 


 Stacey explained the request and noted an inquiry was made by a neighboring property 


 owner about children using the adjacent property as a playground.  Stacey stated that 


 children will be playing at an area designated at the Kegonsa School property. 


 


 Mayor Olson opened the public hearing. 


 


 No one registered to speak. 


 


 Mayor Olson closed the public hearing. 







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 


6/8/15 


Page 2 of 2 


 


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\7-28-2015\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 6-8-15.doc  


 Motion by Truehl to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use permit 


 for Meloniece Gaskin to operate a Group Daycare at 1425 E. Main Street contingent on the 


 staff review letter dated June 1, 2015, 2
nd


 by O’Connor.  Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 


7. Bob Stoehr representing Milestone Senior Living requests site plan re-approval to 


construct a 40 unit senior living complex at 2208 Lincoln Avenue. 


 Stacey explained that changes were made to the design of the building to make it easier for 


 framing including roof line changes. 


 


Motion by Truehl to approve the amended site plan contingent on the staff review letter 


dated May 27, 2015, 2
nd


 by Christianson.  Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 


8. Terry Johnson requests site plan approval for a parking lot addition at Chalet 


Veterinary Clinic, 1621 E. Main Street. 


 Stacey stated the request is for a small parking lot addition and the applicant is working to 


 meet the zoning requirements for landscaping. 


 


Motion by O’Connor to approve the site plan for a parking lot addition at 1621 E. Main 


Street contingent on the staff review letter dated June 2, 2015, 2
nd


 by Truehl.  Motion 


carried 6 - 0. 


 


9. Request to amend zoning code sections 78-206(4)(r); 78-105(4)(b)2; 78-105(4)(c) and 


Appendix C. 


 Stacey explained the proposed zoning code amendment is warranted because artisan uses are 


 not listed for any zoning district in the City while these types of uses are already in the 


 central business district. 


 


 Mayor Olson opened the public hearing. 


 


 No one registered to speak. 


 


 Mayor Olson closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Christianson to recommend the Common Council approve the zoning ordinance 


amendment as presented, 2
nd


 by Truehl.  Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 


10. Future agenda items.  Possible conditional use for dog daycare and Arnett Development. 


 


11. Adjournment. Motion by Hohol to adjourn at 6:10 pm, 2
nd


 by Hanna. Motion carried 6 - 0. 


 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


 


Michael Stacey 







 
Public Works Committee  
Monday, June 15, 2015 @ 6:00 PM 
Hall of Fame Room @ City Hall – 381 E Main St 
 
Members Present:  Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Paul Lawrence and Mayor Olson 


Absent & Excused: Sid Boersma 


Staff: Planning & Development Director Rodney Scheel, Street Superintendent Karl Manthe, and 
Street Department Secretary Vickie Erdahl 


Guests:  Scott Wegner Fire Dept, AJ Gillingham Human Resources, Cindy McGlynn Senior 
Center, Richard McDonald Sto. Library, Alderperson Mike Engelberger, Curt Hellmer, Tom 
Christian, John Neal, Ted Tobie 
  
Call to Order:  Manthe called the meeting to order at 6:10pm 


1) Elect Chair:  Motion was made to nominate Tom Majewski. Motion carried 3-0 with Mayor 
voting. 


2) Elect Vice-Chair:  Motion was made to nominate Tom Selsor.  Motion carried 3-0 with 
Mayor voting. 


3) Communications:     1) Manthe stated that the Turf Management Treatments would begin 
shortly in the parks with a delay in spraying Rotary Park. The parks are posted on the web with 
the scheduling pending. This is the third year Tru Green will be doing the treatments. This year 
at Race Track Park there is a project going on with UW-Madison. The park will be divided into 
the four ball fields – 1) nothing will be done, 2) organic product will be used, 3) one field the 
usual spraying/treating will be done and 4) UW will use their product.  When completed, a 
report will be done on the findings. 2) Street construction projects will be starting the week of 
June 22 beginning with the alley.  Letters are being sent out which include a contact person 
and phone number for questions and concerns. 


4) Activity Reports:    (Manthe reported)  


 May was very busy for the Streets & Parks Department as everything is in full swing. 


 Street sweepers were out sweeping city streets in the downtown area, Parade and Run routes 


for Syttende Mai Festival to help spruce up the city. Crews also haul sweepings to Dane 


County Landfill. 


 Other tasks performed by crews for Syttende Mai included; putting flags up, setting up 


barricades and cones for run and parades, programming and setting out message boards, 


painting finish line for run, sweeping streets downtown all weekend, setting out trash barrels 


and cleanup on Monday morning. 


 Second brush collection for season was week of May 4th.  Crews hauled 51 large truckloads 


of brush to yard waste site. Next brush collection will be week of October 5th 


 Yard waste site has been very busy this spring with the grass growing quickly and spring 


cleanup. For the year, 649 (303 new permits for May) permits have been sold to city 


residents and 109 (53 new permits for May) permits issued to Dunkirk Township resident. 


 Crews watered the 41 trees planted earlier in the month by the contractor. 


 Crews continue to patch streets throughout the city. Still using cold patch and will soon 


change over to spray patching. 


 Construction projects for Washington Street & Fifth Street and the South Alley should start 


in early June and be completed by mid September. 


 First mowing of city greenways was completed. Street Department has 12 retention 


ponds/greenways that get mowed monthly.  There is also a few that get mowed weekly by 


Parks Department crews. 







 


 


 Crews trimmed weeds and Japanese Knotweed from dead-ends and along 


streams/greenways.  Knotweed was sprayed to prevent grow back. 


 Street crews installed some “No Parking” signs in the area of Stoughton Hospital to assist 


with Hospital construction project, “No Parking Here to Corner” in the downtown area 


where motorists have been parking illegally. 


 Fleet Maintenance Manager continues to maintain city wide fleet.  All summer equipment is 


ready to go and has been placed in service. Fleet Manager has been working on Street, 


Parks, Police, and Fire Fleet performing preventive maintenance. 


 The Parks Department has been busy getting all the parks ready for the season.  Crews have 


also started getting Troll Beach ready for the opening.  The swimming facility is drained and 


new sand is brought in.  Crews will start filling the swimming facility the first of June. Other 


tasks completed during the month include ball diamond improvements, mowing parks, park 


cleanup, and weed assessments. 


 Other routine tasks completed during the month include; dumping trash barrels downtown 


and cemeteries, cleaning fleet and garage, check traffic signals, check flags downtown, 


monitor water levels at Fourth Street Dam, garage safety inspections (fire extinguishers, eye 


wash stations, exit lights, fall protection). 


 Construction season is about to start, so please slow down and watch for workers. 


 


Manthe stated that it has also been extremely busy with street openings & the yard waste site. 


 


Old Business: 


 


5) Discussion & Recommendation of Building Use Policy:  Scheel pointed out to the 
committee that there was no user fee schedule during business hours and there is one for 
after hours – that the fees should be the same for outside users.  Mayor Olson commented 
that some of this discussion started when the Fire Dept couldn’t use its own facility for training 
as it was booked up into the future. The city should have primary use of their buildings and 
other companies can rent rooms from other facilities in the city.  Other issues were the use of 
the city equipment while using the room, wear & tear on the facility itself and security in the 
building especially if no city staff is on site. Liability issues should be discussed with risk 
management. 


 Majewski asked if groups can be cancelled out if necessary and the answer is yes.  Also how 
do other cities handle this situation?  This was looked into and fees are charged for rooms. 


 Lawrence being new to the committee asked if he could have more time to review the draft of 
the policy. 


  


New Business: 


  


6) Approve April 20, 2015 Meeting Minutes:  Motion by Selsor seconded by Lawrence to 
approve minutes.  Motion carried 4-0. With the Mayor voting yes. 


 


7) Set Meeting Date & Time for Future Public Works Meetings:  Meetings will remain on the 
third Tuesday of each month at 6:00 PM. 


 


8) Maintenance Issues of Water Detention Pond – behind Eastwood Estates:  Lawrence 
requested this item to be placed on the agenda after meeting with the condo association and 







 
discussing their concerns with the condition of the pond and what level of maintenance should 
the pond receive.  This pond is located near the west end of the dead end of Eastwood Drive 
near the wetlands. 


  Attending the meeting were four board members - multiple members were for building and 
grounds.  John Neal:  President of the condo association presented a time lapse slide show of 
how the pond has looked since 2008 to present.  The association is concerned with the 
deterioration and all the algae now present on the pond. Also presented was information from 
the DNR website and meetings with the DNR.   


  Manthe met with Mr. Neal to discuss the pond.  At that time a company “Greenscapes” was 
hired to cut out the cat tails surrounding the pond. The contractor obtained the permit to spray 
cattails. City has been applying Muck Away and Pond Clear (permit not needed because they 
are natural bacteria products).    Manthe stated that this is the only pond where chemicals are 
used and that the algae is not harmful – just unpleasant but may be good for the habitat in the 
pond. Over the years Manthe has worked with Mr. Neal trying several different approaches to 
handling the different issues each time surrounding the pond. 


 Majewski feels that chemicals are only treating a symptom - ponds / lakes simply go through 
cycles as they mature.  Also the designs were different back when this pond started and can’t 
be compared with newer ones that were engineered differently when they were designed. 


 Neal stated that the chemicals used were not successful and were never shown to work in 
studies that he read. He also stated that Greenspace didn’t even follow their own specs and 
did not complete the work as they never returned to clean up the cat tails.  He stated that the 
DNR recommends a product know as “Cutrine Plus” and would like to see this product used 
along with cutting the cat tails below the water or perhaps dredging the pond.  He feels these 
are easy to do solutions. Neal also questioned where the monies are being spent that are in 
the budget for stormwater and that the city is responsible for this pond. 


 Manthe said dredging would have to be contracted out as the city does not have proper 
equipment to it. Dredging would be very expensive option as the materials would have to be 
hauled away.  Majewski also feels dredging is too expensive and the city should continue with 
manual cutting of cat tails with chemical treating being the last resort for an aquatic site. 


 Scheel stated there are limited funds for the maintenance of ponds thorough out the city. 


 


 Selsor directed staff and Mr. Neal to draft a proposal plan on how to approach the 
maintenance of this pond for discussion at July Public Works meeting. 


  


 


9) Library Exterior Maintenance:  Majewski requested this item to be placed on the agenda as 
several people had inquired about maintenance issues and concern for the safety on the ____ 
accessible ramp.  Scheel stated that the issue had been brought to his attention and was 
concerned about the integrity of the ramp and railing. Scheel has made contact with the Joe 
Daniels Construction Co that is doing work on the library on the second floor to review the site.  
If necessary a change order will be done to the re-model project to accommodate the ramp 
repair. Scheel will also look into window cleaning for the building. 


  


10) Future Agenda Items:  Street Light – Franklin St Parking Lot, Eastwood Estates Condo Pond 


 


 Moved by Lawrence seconded by Selsor to adjourn the meeting at 7:32 pm.  Motion 
carried 3-0.   Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl, Admin. Asst. 6/17/15 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, May 13, 2015 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Dan Kittleson, Steve Sletten, Peter Sveum, Ron Christianson, Brian Kahl and 
Finance Director Laurie Sullivan  
 


Absent: 
John Kramper, Scott Truehl & Tom Selsor 
 
Others Present: 
Gary Becker, Roger Springman, Sid Boersma, Paul Lawrence, Mark Badger and Ryon 
Savasta 
 
Call to order:  
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Introduction of new RDA Members: 
Sveum introduced the new members to the RDA committee.  Tom Selsor will be our 
alderperson representative and Brian Kahl will be our Alternate.  Jim Schaefer’s term is 
up and John Kramper, who was the Alternate, will now be a standing member of the 
Committee.  Welcome to both. 
 
Elect Committee Chair: 
Nominations were opened up for Committee Chair.  Kittleson nominated Sveum to 
serve as Committee Chair.  No other nominations were made.  Sveum was 
unanimously elected Committee Chair. 
 
Elect Committee Vice Chair: 
Nominations were opened up for Committee Vice Chair.  Kittleson nominated Truehl      
to serve as Committee Vice Chair.  No other nominations were made.  Truehl was 
unanimously elected Committee Vice Chair. 
 
Communications: 
None. 
 
Approval of April 8, 2015 Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Kittleson, to approve the minutes of the April 8, 
2015 RDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Presentation by Mark Badger:  Yahara Riverfront Station Project: 
Mark Badger was introduced to the Committee.  Badger went thru his 
presentation which included the Power House, River walk, an amphitheatre and 
a foot bridge.   
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
May 13, 2015 
Page 2 
 


Approve Vierbicher contract for RDA Services: 
Becker presented the Vierbicher contract for RDA services for the current year.  
Moved by Kittleson, seconded by Christianson, to approve the Vierbicher 
contract for RDA Services as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Approve Finance Director Sullivan’s and RDA Chair Peter Sveum’s 
signatures as authorized signatures for Grant Purposes: 
Moved by Kittleson, seconded by Kahl, to approve Finance Director Laurie 
Sullivan’s and RDA Chair Peter Sveum’s signatures as authorized signatures for 
grant purposes for the RDA.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Discuss any Redevelopment Area Number One developments: 
Sletten showed pictures of an example of a Riverfront redevelopment in Indiana 
that is similar to our site.   
Sveum stated the rezoning of the Millfab property has been put on hold.  The 
Mill Fab offer to purchase was not accepted.   
Meicher Real Estate has submitted a proposal to appraise the Millfab property 
for a cost of $4,000 to be completed in a 6 week time frame.  Moved by 
Christianson, seconded by Kittleson, to approve Meicher Real Estate LLC 
proposal for appraisal services.  Motion carried unanimously.   
Becker stated the SAG grant application was submitted to the WEDC.  The RFP 
for the Riverfront development is on hold for now. 
 
 Closed Session: 
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Kittleson, to close the meeting per State Statute 
19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing 
of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or 
bargaining reasons require a closed session; and then reopen for the regular course of 
business.  Time closed:  6:30 p.m. 
 
Moved by Kittleson, seconded by Christianson, to reopen the meeting for the regular 
course of business at 6:35 p.m. 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
                
 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Kittleson, seconded by Christianson, to adjourn at 6:36 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Laurie Sullivan 





		2A-Personnel Minutes 4-6-2015.pdf

		2B-Personnel Minutes 6-01-2015.pdf

		2-Public Safety Minutes 5-27-2015.pdf

		3 - Finance Minutes June 23, 2015.pdf

		Landmarks Minutes 6-11-15.pdf

		Minutes_PFC_01-27-2015.pdf

		Minutes_PFC_03-18-2015.pdf

		PFC-1-5-15 and 1-7-15 minutes.pdf

		Planning Minutes 6-8-15.pdf

		PW Min June 15, 2015.pdf

		RDA Meeting Minutes of 05-13-15.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving an amended Certified Survey Map for Norse View Holdings LLC to reconfigure lots 148-


150 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to Norse View Heights, Stoughton.   


 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommends Council approval 7 – 0 with the Mayor 


voting. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R-115-2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 28, 2015 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on July 13, 2015 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed the proposed amended 


certified survey map by Norse View Holdings LLC, for property located at lots 148-150 on east side of Carl 


Avenue, Seventh Addition to Norse View Heights, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the previously approved certified survey map is proposed to be amended to eliminate a non-


conforming remnant lot at the north end of Carl Avenue; and  


 


WHEREAS, the certified survey map was reviewed by the Zoning Administrator and found to be in 


compliance with the City land division ordinance; and  


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible for installation of sanitary sewer and water 


infrastructure as approved by Stoughton Utilities; and  


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible to install all street and stormwater 


improvements including sidewalk, curb and gutter and street trees as approved by the Street Superintendent; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible to install street improvements as approved by 


the Street Superintendent prior to issuance of any building permits for lots fronting these certified survey 


maps; and  


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible to vacate all unnecessary easements and 


provide all easements deemed necessary by Stoughton Utilities prior to recording of the certified survey 


map; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and Common Council have determined the proposed 


reconfiguration of lots by certified survey map will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the 


environment, nor the community as a whole; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the amended certified survey map 


approval request by Norse View Holdings LLC for property located at lots 148-150, Seventh Addition to 


Norse View Heights, Stoughton, Wisconsin is hereby approved as presented. 


 


 


 







 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R- - 15 - Norse View CSM Amendment Carl Ave Lots 148-150.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\07-13-15\Planning Materials\Norse View Holdings CSM Amendment Memo 148-150.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 13, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting.


1. Norse View Holdings LLC requests to amend a certified survey map (CSM) to
reconfigure lots 148-150 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Height.
This CSM amendment is requested to eliminate the non-conforming remnant lot at the north
end of Carl Avenue. The remnant lot will be part of a future plat. The CSM and related
materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary. Staff recommends
approval as presented.











Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
7/13/15
Page 3 of 4


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 7-13-15.doc


7. Norse View Holdings LLC requests to amend a certified survey map (CSM) to
reconfigure lots 145-148, located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Heights.
Scheel summarized the request.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM amendment as
presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 7 - 0.


8. Norse View Holdings LLC requests to amend a certified survey map (CSM) to
reconfigure lots 148-150, located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Heights.
Scheel summarized the request.


Motion by Krcma to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM amendment as
presented, 2nd by Hohol. Motion carried 7 - 0.


9. Brian Spanos of Spanrie Properties requests approval for site plan revisions to the
proposed 7-unit multiplex residential building at 2301 Lincoln Avenue.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Hohol to approve the revisions as presented, 2nd by Christianson.


Hanna questioned the use of Viburnum plantings and their locations including the lack of
the Red Oak on the plan. The applicant will work with staff to confirm these issues.


Motion carried 7 - 0.


10. O-7-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 6-2 for the keeping of animals.
(Referred back from Council on June 9, 2015)
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment.


The commission had a lengthy discussion about whether to attempt to modify the ordinance
related to the keeping of bees. There has only been one keeping of bees request over the
past 20 years and that was for bumble bees.


The commission also has concerns about the title of the ordinance not reflecting the body
of the ordinance.


Motion by Christianson to Table the ordinance amendment to allow staff time to rework
the ordinance, 2nd by Truehl.


Hohol stated the Council will be looking for something to come back from Planning so it
makes sense to recommend approval for this amendment then addressing bees when a
request has been made.



mstacey

Highlight





		R-115-2015 - Norse View CSM Amendment Carl Ave Lots 148-150.pdf

		Norse View CSM Lots 148-150.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION TO THE STOUGHTON UTILTIES COMMITTEE 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Stoughton Utilities Wastewater 


Treatment Facility And Sanitary Sewer Collection System 2014 Compliance Maintenance Annual 


Report (CMAR) 
 
Committee Action: 


 
5-0 with John Kallas abstaining. 


 
Fiscal Impact: None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-116-2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 28, 2015 


 


WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City of Stoughton for Stoughton Utilities to operate a 


wastewater treatment facility and sanitary sewer collection system to serve customers within the City of 


Stoughton, and 


 


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities has prepared a 2014 CMAR in conformance with Chapter NR 208 of 


the Wisconsin Administrative Code, and  


 


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on July 7, 2015 to consider and approve the 


Stoughton Utilities 2014 CMAR and recommends approval, now therefore  


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to approve the Stoughton Utilities 2014 CMAR as attached hereto as part 


of this resolution and transmit the resolution and report to the Wisconsin Department of Natural 


Resources.    


 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 
  







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, July 7, 2015 – 5:00 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Michael Engelberger, Citizen Member David Erdman, 


Alderperson Greg Jenson, Citizen Member John Kallas, Citizen 
Member Alan Staats, and Alderperson Elvin (Sonny) Swangstu. 


  
Excused: Mayor Donna Olson. 
  
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Brian Erickson, 


Stoughton Utilities Technical Operations Supervisor Brian Hoops, 
Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager Kim 
Jennings, CPA, and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, 
P.E.  


 
Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility And Sanitary Sewer Collection 
System 2014 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR):  Stoughton Utilities 
Wastewater System Supervisor Brian Erickson and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz 
presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility and Sanitary 
Sewer Collection System 2014 CMAR.  Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael 
Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the 
Wastewater Treatment Facility and Sanitary Sewer Collection System 2014 CMAR and 
recommend the approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton 
Common Council on July 28, 2015.  The motion carried 5 to 0 with one abstention. 
  







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  July 2, 2014 
 
To:  Stoughton Utilities Committee 
 
From:  Brian G. Erickson 
  Stoughton Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor 
   


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 
  Stoughton Utilities Director 
 
Subject: Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Treatment Facility And Sanitary Sewer Collection System 


2014 Compliance Maintenance Annual Report (CMAR). 
 
The attached CMAR has been completed as required by Chapter NR 208 of the Wisconsin 
Administrative Code.  It is requested that the Stoughton Utilities Committee review and approve the 
report and recommend it and the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton Common Council on July 
28, 2014.  
 
Encl. 
 
cc: Sean O Grady 
 Stoughton Utilities Operations Superintendent 
 
 Brian R. Hoops 
 Stoughton Utilities Office and Information Systems Supervisor 
 
 Kim M. Jennings, CPA 
 Stoughton Utilities Finance and Administrative Manager 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


Influent Flow and Loading 


1. Monthly Average Flows and (C)BOD Loadings 


1.1 Verify the following monthly flows and (C)BOD loadings to your facility. 


 


 Outfall No. 


701 


Influent Monthly 


Average Flow, MGD 


x Influent Monthly 


Average (C)BOD 


Concentration mg/L 


x 8.34 = Influent Monthly 


Average (C)BOD 


Loading, lbs/day 


 


January 1.1226 x 275 x 8.34 = 2,571 


February 1.1026 x 243 x 8.34 = 2,233 


March 1.1897 x 222 x 8.34 = 2,205 


April 1.2922 x 240 x 8.34 = 2,586 


May 1.2892 x 228 x 8.34 = 2,447 


June 1.3262 x 267 x 8.34 = 2,952 


July 1.2958 x 277 x 8.34 = 2,991 


August 1.2493 x 245 x 8.34 = 2,552 


September 1.3020 x 219 x 8.34 = 2,383 


October 1.2700 x 218 x 8.34 = 2,311 


November 1.1033 x 236 x 8.34 = 2,167 


December 1.1393 x 275 x 8.34 = 2,571 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


2. Maximum Month Design Flow and Design (C)BOD 


Loading 2.1 Verify the design flow and loading for your 


facility. 


Design Design Factor x % = % of Design 


Max Month Design Flow, MGD 2.06 x 90 = 1.854 


x 100 = 2.06 


Design (C)BOD, lbs/day 2655 x 90 = 2389.5 


x 100 = 2655 


2.2 Verify the number of times the flow and (C)BOD exceeded 90% or 100% of design, points 


earned, and score: 


 
Months 


of 


Influent 


Number of times 


flow was greater 


than 90% of 


Number of times 


flow was greater 


than 100% of 


Number of times 


(C)BOD was greater 


than 90% of design 


Number of times 


(C)BOD was greater 


than 100% of design 


January 1 0 0 1 0 


February 1 0 0 0 0 


March 1 0 0 0 0 


April 1 0 0 1 0 


May 1 0 0 1 0 


June 1 0 0 1 1 


July 1 0 0 1 1 


August 1 0 0 1 0 


September 1 0 0 0 0 


October 1 0 0 0 0 


November 1 0 0 0 0 


December 1 0 0 0 0 


 Points per each 2 1 3 2 


 Exceedances 0 0 6 2 


 Points 0 0 18 4 


 Total Number of Points 22 
 


22 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 


Total Points Generated 22 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 78 


Section Grade C 


  


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


6/23/2015 2014 


6.2 Did your facility accept hauled industrial wastes, landfill leachate, etc.? 


Yes 


No 


If yes, describe the types of wastes received and any procedures or other restrictions that were 


in place to protect the facility from the discharge of hauled industrial wastes. 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (BOD/CBOD) 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 


Section Grade A 


  


4.2 At any time in the past year was there a failure of an effluent acute or chronic whole effluent 


toxicity ( WET ) test? 


Yes   


No  


If Yes, please explain: 


4.3 If the biomonitoring ) ( WET test did not pass, were steps taken to identify and/or reduce 


source(s) of toxicity? 


Yes   


No  


N/A  


Please explain unless not applicable: 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 


Section Grade A 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


Effluent Quality and Plant Performance (Phosphorus) 


 


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 


Section Grade A 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


Biosolids Quality and Management 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 


Section Grade A 


Outfall Number: 002 


Method Date: 12/31/2014 


Option Used To Satisfy Requirement: INJ 


Requirement Met: Yes 


Land Applied: Yes 


Limit if ( applicable): 


Results if ( applicable): 


5.2 Was the limit exceeded or the process criteria not met at the time of land application? 


Yes (40 Points) 


No 


If yes, what action was taken? 


0 


6. Biosolids Storage 


6.1 How many days of actual, current biosolids storage capacity did your wastewater treatm ent 


facility have either on-site or off-site? 


)  180 days (0 Points >= 


150 -  179 days (10 Points ) 


 149 days (20 Points ) 120 - 


)  - 119 days (30 Points 90 


)  90 days (40 Points < 


N/A (0 Points) 


6.2 If you checked N/A above, explain why. 


0 


7. Issues 


7.1 Describe any outstanding biosolids issues with treatment, use or overall management: 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


Staffing and Preventative Maintenance (All Treatment Plants) 


 


1. Plant Staffing 


1.1 Was your wastewater treatment plant adequately staffed last year? 


Yes 


No 


If No, please explain: 


Could use more help/staff for: 


1.2 Did your wastewater staff have adequate time to properly operate and maintain the plant and 


fulfill all wastewater management tasks including recordkeeping? 


Yes 


No 


If No, please explain: 


2. Preventative Maintenance 


2.1 Did your plant have a documented AND implemented plan for preventative maintenance on 


major equipment items? 


Yes (Continue with question 2)  


No (40 points) 


If No, please explain, then go to question 3: 


2.2 Did this preventative maintenance program depict frequency of intervals, types of lubrication, 


and other tasks necessary for each piece of equipment? 


Yes 


No (10 points)  


2.3 Were these preventative maintenance tasks, as well as major equipment repairs, recorded and 


filed so future maintenance problems can be assessed properly? 


Yes 


Paper file system 


Computer system 


Both paper and computer system 


No (10 points) 


0 


3. O&M Manual 


3.1 Does your plant have a detailed O&M Manual that can be used as a reference when needed? 


Yes 


No 


4. Overall Maintenance /Repairs 


4.1 Rate the overall maintenance of your wastewater plant. 


Excellent 


Very good 


Good 


Fair 


Poor 


Describe your rating: 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 


   


 We use a computer program for all our maintenance. We use high quality oil and greases that 


don't require as much maintenance and minimize downtime. We have a great CIP plan that we 


work off. Every 5 years we do a plant and collection system study to identify future projects. 


 


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 


Section Grade A 


  







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


: 


Operator Certification and Education 
1. Operator-In-Charge 


1.1 Did you have a designated operator-in-charge during the report year? 


Yes (0 points)  


No  (20 points)  


0 


Name BRIAN G ERICKSON  


Certification No:   28016  


2. Certification Requirements 


2.1 In accordance with Chapter NR 114.08 and 114.09, Wisconsin Administrative Code, 


what grade and subclass(es) were required for the operator-in-charge to operate the 


wastewater treatment plant and what grade and subclass(es) were held by the 


operator-in-charge? 


Required: 


4 - ACEFGIJ; A - PRIMARY SETTLING; C - ACTIVATED SLUDGE; E - DISINFECTION; F - 


ANAEROBIC DIGESTION; G - MECHANICAL SLUDGE; I - PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL; J LABORATORY 


Held: 


4 - ACEFGIJ; 4 - A=PRIMARY SETTLING GRADE 4; C=ACTIVATED SLUDGE GRADE 4; 


E=DISINFECTION GRADE 4; F=ANAEROBIC DIGESTION GRADE 4; G=MECHANICAL SLUDGE 


GRADE 4; I=PHOSPHORUS REMOVAL GRADE 4; J=LABORATORY GRADE 4 


2.2 Was the operator-in-charge certified at the appropriate level to operate this plant? 


Yes (0 points)  


No  (20 points)  0 


3. Succession Planning 


3.1 In the event of the loss of your designated operator-in-charge, did you have a contingency 


plan to ensure the continued proper operation and maintenance of the plant that includes one or 


more of the following options (check all that apply)? 


One or more additional certified operators on staff  


An arrangement with another certified operator  


An arrangement with another community with a certified operator  


An operator on staff who has an operator-in-training certificate for your plant and is expected to 


be certified within one year 


A consultant to serve as your certified operator  


None of the above (20 points)  


If "None of the above" is selected, please explain: 


0 
   


4. Continuing Education Credits 


4.1 If you had a designated operator-in-charge, was the operator-in-charge earning Continuing 


Education Credits at the following rates? 


Grades T, 1, and 2: 


Averaging 6 or more CECs per year.  


Averaging less than 6 CECs per year.  


Grades 3 and 4: 


Averaging 8 or more CECs per year.  


Averaging less than 8 CECs per year.  


 


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


Section Grade A 


Financial Management 
1. Provider of Financial Information 


Name:   


Telephone: (XXX) XXX- XXXX 


E-Mail Address (optional): 


Kim Jennings 


608-877-7415 


kjennings@stoughtonutilities.com 


 


2. Treatment Works Operating Revenues 


2.1 Are User Charges or other revenues sufficient to cover O&M expenses for your wastewater 


treatment plant AND/OR collection system ? 


 


2.2 When was the User Charge System or other revenue source(s) last 


reviewed and/or revised? 


Year:  


0-2 years ago (0 points)  


3 or more years ago (20 points) 


N/A (private facility)  


2.3 Did you have a special account (e.g., CWFP required segregated Replacement Fund, etc.) or 


financial resources available for repairing or replacing equipment for your wastewater treatment plant 


and/or collection system? 


Yes (0 points)  


No (40 points)  


2015 


0 


REPLACEMENT FUNDS [PUBLIC MUNICIPAL FACILITIES SHALL COMPLETE QUESTION 3]  


Yes (0 points)  


No (40 points) 


If No, please explain: 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


3. Equipment Replacement Funds 


3.1 When was the Equipment Replacement Fund last reviewed and/or 


revised? 


Year:   


 


3.2 Equipment Replacement Fund Activity 


3.2.1 Ending Balance Reported on Last Year's CMAR $ 


3.2.2 Adjustments - if necessary (e.g. earned interest, + $ 


audit correction, withdrawal of excess funds, increase making up previous 


shortfall, etc.) 


3.2.3 Adjusted January 1st Beginning Balance $   


3.2.4 Additions to Fund (e.g. portion of User Fee, 


earned interest, etc.) + $   


3.2.5 Subtractions from Fund (e.g., equipment 


replacement, major repairs - use description box 


3.2.6.1 below*) - $   


3.2.6 Ending Balance as of December 31st for 


2014 


1,177,281.00 


9,115.00 


1,186,396.00 


2,443.00 


35,349.00 


 


CMAR Reporting Year $   1,153,490.00  


 


All Sources: This ending balance should include all 


Equipment Replacement Funds whether held in a 


bank account(s), certificate(s) of deposit, etc. 


3.2.6.1 Indicate adjustments, equipment purchases, and/or major repairs from 3.2.5 above. 


Maturity of Ginnie Mae Securities held for equipment replacement. 


 3.3  What amount should be in your Replacement Fund? $  


Please note: If you had a CWFP loan, this amount was originally based 


on the Financial Assistance Agreement (FAA) and should be regularly updated as needed. Further 


calculation instructions and an example can be found by clicking the HELP link under Info in the 


left-side menu. 


3.3.1 Is the December 31 Ending Balance in your Replacement Fund above, (#3.2.6) equal to, or 


greater than the amount that should be in it (#3.3)? 


Yes 


No 


If No, please explain. 


1,208,615.00 


0 


 A deposit was made for a shortfall in 2015 once we received the final draw from the clean 


water fund loan, 


 


1-2  years ago (0 points ) 


3  or more years ago (20 points ) 


N/A 


If N/A, please explain: 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


4. Future Planning 


4.1 During the next ten years, will you be involved in formal planning for upgrading, rehabilitating, 


or new construction of your treatment facility or collection system? 


Yes  -  If Yes, please provide major project information, if not already listed below. 


No 


 


 Project 


# 


Project Description Estimated 


Cost 


Approximate 


Construction 


Year 


 


1 Phase II Ammonia Removal Project: 
This project might be permit driven and will include additional aeration and 


anaerobic tanks along with new blowers. 


2,000.000 2022 


2 West St sewer project. 253,000.00 2022 


3 Phase II Vernon St project and South St project. 720,000.00 2017 


4 Addtional sludge storage tank project. 900,000.00 2022 


5 Page St sewer project 168,000.00 2022 


6 Phosphorus Reduction Project. 906,000.00 2024 


7 2018 Sewer improvement project. Repalce sewer main and manholes on W. Main 


St. From Page to Van Buren. 
324,000.00 2018 


8 Main Building / Garage Addition and Remodel 1,640.000 2019 


9 2019 Sewer project. Lowell St. From Monroe to Page 228,000.00 2019 


10 2019 Sewer Project. Monroe from Jefferson to Lowell 248,000.00 2019 


11 2020 Sewer Project. Prospect St. From Page to Grant 129,000.00 2020 


12 2016 Slip Lining project. Jefferson, Monroe alley and Mandt Park Way 100,000.00 2016 


5. Financial Management General Comments  


   


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 


Section Grade A 


Sanitary Sewer Collection Systems 


1. CMOM Program 


1.1 Do you have a Capacity, Management, Operation & Maintenance (CMOM) requirement in your 


WPDES permit? Yes No 


1.2 Did you have a documented (written records/files, computer files, video tapes, etc.) sanitary 


sewer collection system operation & maintenance (O&M) or CMOM program last calendar 


year? 


Yes (Continue with question 1) 


No (30 points) (Go to question 2) 


1.3 Check the elements listed below that are included in your O&M or CMOM program. Goals 


Describe the specific goals you have for your collection system: 


We are implementing a new GIS mapping system that will utilize the latest technology. We 


have included our televising reporting system into the GIS system. We will be implementing 


this information into the CMOM program. We work off a 10 year CIP that outlines projects in the 


collection system. We work with our consulting engineers on a sanitary sewer system study 


every 5 years. 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


Organization 


Do you have the following written organizational elements (check only those that apply)? 


Ownership and governing body description 


Organizational chart 


Personnel and position descriptions 


Internal communication procedures 


Public information and education program 


Legal Authority 


Do you have the legal authority for the following (check only those that apply)? 


 Sewer use ordinance Last Revised Date (MM/DD/YYYY)  12/09/2014 


Pretreatment/industrial control Programs 


Fat, oil and grease control 


Illicit discharges (commercial, industrial) 


Private property clear water (sump pumps, roof or foundation drains, etc.) 


Private lateral inspections/repairs 


Service and management agreements 


Maintenance Activities (provide details in question 2) 


Design and Performance Provisions 


How do you ensure that your sewer system is designed and constructed properly? 


State plumbing code 


DNR NR 110 standards 


Local municipal code requirements 


Construction, inspection, and testing 


Others: 


Overflow Emergency Response Plan: 


Does your emergency response capability include (check only those that apply)? 


Alarm system and routine testing 


Emergency equipment  


Emergency procedures 


Communications/notifications (DNR, internal, public, media, etc.) 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


5.3 Explain any infiltration/inflow (I/I) changes this year from previous years: 


We continue to invest in our collection system infrastructure. As documented in our flow data 


our influent flows continue to decrease. 


5.4 What is being done to address infiltration/inflow in your collection system? 


We have a sanitary sewer reduction program that includes sump inspections, televising and 


working with our consulting engineers to identify areas of concern. We have been working on 


this program for over 20 years. A sanitary sewer collection system study is completed every five 


years. Data gathered from our televising and flushing programs along with our five year study 


goes into our capital improvement projects. 


Total Points Generated 0 


Score (100 - Total Points Generated) 100 


Section Grade A 


  







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 6/23/2015 2014 


 


Grading Summary 


WPDES No: 0020338 


SECTIONS LETTER GRADE GRADE POINTS WEIGHTING 


FACTORS 


SECTION 


POINTS 


 Influent C 2 3 6 


 BOD/CBOD A 4 10 40 


 TSS A 4 5 20 


 Phosphorus A 4 3 12 


 Biosolids A 4 5 20 


 Staffing/PM A 4 1 4 


 OpCert A 4 1 4 


 Financial A 4 1 4 


 Collection A 4 3 12 


 TOTALS  32 122 


 GRADE POINT AVERAGE (GPA) = 3.81    


Notes: 


A = Voluntary Range (Response Optional) 


B = Voluntary Range (Response Optional) 


C = Recommendation Range (Response Required) 


D = Action Range (Response Required) 


F = Action Range (Response Required) 







Compliance Maintenance Annual Report 


Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Facility Last Updated: Reporting For: 


 





		R-116-2015-CMAR Resolution.pdf

		CMAR Supporting for Resolution Item.pdf






S:/Public Works/PW Resolution folder/2015 General Maintenance Plan for Stormwater Ponds & Greenways


City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the General Maintenance Plan for
Stormwater Ponds and Greenways.


Committee Action: Public Works – Motion carried 4-0 (Mayor voted yes)


Fiscal Impact: -0-


File Number: Date Introduced: July 28, 2015


WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee requested staff to develop a plan to ensure the proper
maintenance and mowing guidelines are followed to keep stormwater facilities functioning as designed;


WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee met on July 21, 2015 and approved the General Maintenance
Plan for Stormwater Ponds and Greenways, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to approve the General Maintenance Plan for Stormwater Ponds &
Greenways as presented


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote



lkropf

Text Box

         R-109-2015











Date: July 13, 2015


To: Public Works Committee


From: Karl D. Manthe – Street Superintendent


Subject: Stormwater Pond Maintenance


As requested by the Public Works Committee at the June 15, 2015 Public Works Meeting, I am
proposing a plan to use to determine what types of maintenance is needed for stormwater ponds and
greenways within the City of Stoughton system.


Before I drafted the proposed plan, I did a lot of research with the following agencies, groups or
individuals to see what was the best approach to long term benefits and what methods have worked for
their ponds & greenways.;


 Southern Wisconsin Association of Public Works Supervisors (SWAPS)
 American Public Works Association (APWA)
 Wisconsin Department of Natural Recourses (WDNR) – Susan Graham
 UW-Madison – Director Steve Carpenter, Center for Limnology
 UW-Extension, Department of Soil Science – Associate Professor Doug Soldat
 Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) – website information on Best Management Practices
 Cities & Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC)
 Studies conducted by Universities and other industry professional –web sites.
 Site visits to Retention Ponds, Rivers, and Lakes throughout Dane County


There was a lot of good information to review from my discussions with these individuals/groups as to
overall pond maintenance and treating algae, plus some great information from the WDNR web site
that I have shared in the packet (please read this very important information)


I based the proposed plan on many factors; information received from professionals and colleagues,
the economical costs for materials and labor, and environmental concerns.


One of the biggest contributors to algae in ponds is high levels of phosphorous and nitrogen. There are
many ways to approach algae in ponds;


Chemical Management Methods: Algaecides, Colored Dyes, Aluminum Sulfate – nutrient inactivation
(alum), Barley Straw (creates H2O2)


Mechanical Management Methods: Harvesting (cutters), Dredging


Physical Management Methods: Hand Raking, Aeration, Bottom Barriers


Biological Management Methods: Little Critters (weevil), Fish (grass carp), Bacteria Augmentation


CITY OF STOUGHTON


STREET DEPARTMENT
515 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 53589
(608) 877-6303 Ext. 622
(608) 877-8387 Fax
www.cityofstoughton.com


KARL D. MANTHE
Street Superintendent
kmanthe@ci.stoughton.wi.us







Stormwater retention ponds are constantly changing in design, so what may have been good 15 to 20
years ago, may not be the best design in today’s standards. Most newly designed retention ponds
have a forebay installed to collect sediment and are typically easier to maintain and remove sediment
as compared to dredging that is very costly.


The “General Maintenance Plan for Stormwater Ponds and Greenways” I have proposed is for the
maintenance of all city stormwater ponds and greenways.


As for a recommendation to treat the algae in the pond located off Eastwood Drive, I would make the
following recommendation based on the feedback I have received from professionals who specialize in
this field and colleagues who are responsible for stormwater maintenance in other communities;


 Create a “No Mow” zone and leave a minimum of 5 feet buffer zone around pond to reduce
phosphorous and nitrogen’s from entering the pond. This will also discourage geese from
entering the pond.


 If any mowing occurs, it will be with our rough cut mower that is and has been set at 6 inches for
the last 10 years.


 Provide routine maintenance around inlet & outlet pipes to remove woody vegetation and litter.
 Monitor the pond for any invasive plants.
 Once the average depth of the permanent pool is 3.5 feet, dredging will occur. At this time, the


city may want to consider re-designing the pond if it will improve stormwater control.
 This is a city owned pond and is properly working as designed to control stormwater run off and


meets compliance. The city has no obligation to remove the algae (something that is normal in
all ponds, rivers, and lakes throughout the United States and is just a natural part of mother
nature), so if the Condo Association would like to go beyond the normal city maintenance, I
would recommend they pay the entire costs to apply any algaecides or other methods to
remove algae. If they decide to use chemicals, they will also be required to be licensed and
apply for a permit from the WDNR.


I look forward to discussing this maintenance plan with the committee; please let me know if you have
any questions







City of Stoughton


General Maintenance Plan


for


Stormwater Ponds & Greenways


Draft July 21, 2015







As of July 2015, the City of Stoughton has an inventory of 9 retention/detention ponds and 11


greenways systems that manage the stormwater for the city.


The city is committed to the maintenance and mowing of city stormwater facilities in an


appropriate and serviceable manner, while providing these services at an economical cost.


Establishing what level of maintenance or mowing meets the expectations of the public is an


important component of any guideline. A maintenance plan that sets forth general guidelines


as to the appropriate mowing level can provide city staff with the necessary guidance and help


to address concerns the public may have.


This maintenance plan must reflect the different nature and uses of the ponds and greenways.


In this plan, retention ponds wet & dry, and greenways are placed into a particular category


based on the areas nature and use, the general public’s expectations, and necessary safety


requirements. A reasonable mowing rate and method is outlined for each category.


Category 1: Greenway Maintenance


 Greenways are mowed monthly* with a rough cut mower at 6 inches in height between
May and October. (*greenway between Jackson St-Kings Lynn Rd-Kensington Sq is
mowed weekly with trim mower)


 Trimming and removal of woody plants around inlet & outlet pipes, and railings will
occur as needed. If any chemicals are needed to control invasive weeds/plants (garlic
mustard, Canadian thistle, etc), Aquatic safe products will be used (Aqua-Neat, etc).


 Sediment removal as needed (good street sweeping program and strict erosion control
for developments/construction projects assist with limiting amount of sediment
reaching greenways)


 Litter cleanup around inlet/outlet pipes will be checked after major rainfall events


Category 2: Dry Ponds Maintenance (Detention Ponds)


 Dry ponds normally hold water for less than 48 hours. These stormwater facilities are


mowed 3 times with a rough cut mower at 6 inches in height between May and


October. Depending on type of plants in detention basin, basins may not be mowed at


these facilities


 Trimming and removal of woody plants around inlet & outlet pipes will occur as needed.


If any chemicals are needed to control invasive weeds/plants (garlic mustard, Canadian


Thistle, etc), Aquatic safe products will be used (Aqua-Neat, etc).


 Sediment removal as needed.


 Litter cleanup around inlet/outlet pipes is checked after every major rainfall event


 Checking for any washouts and deficiencies will occur after major rainfall events







Category 3: Wet Pond Maintenance (Retention Ponds)


 Wet ponds will have a 5 foot to 25 foot buffer designated as a “no-mow” zone. Mowing


will occur 3 times per season for areas outside buffer zone with rough cut mower set at


6 inches.


 Trimming and removal of woody plants around inlet & outlet pipes will occur as needed.


If any chemicals are needed to control invasive weeds/plants (garlic mustard, Canadian


Thistle, etc), Aquatic safe products will be used (Aqua-Neat, etc).


 Once the average depth of the permanent pool is 3.5 feet, dredging will occur. At this time, the
city may want to consider re-designing the pond if it will improve stormwater control.


 Litter cleanup around inlet/outlet pipes is checked after every major rainfall event


 Checking for any washouts and deficiencies will occur after major rainfall events


The level of maintenance described above are advisory only, and are subject to change by the


Street & Parks Department based upon weather conditions, usage issues, and allocated


resources. Specific management plans may be developed for individual properties or areas;


however, they should generally be consistent with the maintenance prescribed herein.





		Stormwater Pond Resolution.pdf

		Pond Backup 1.pdf

		Pond Backup 2.pdf

		Pond Backup 3.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589 


 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to adopt the Residential Traffic Management 


Program (RTMP) 


Committee Action: Joint Public Works & Public Safety Approved 7-0 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
 
File Number: 


 
R-110-2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 28, 2015 


 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be hereby 


directed and authorized to implement the Residential Traffic Management Program (RTMP); 


 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton recognizes the value of citizen involvement in traffic management; and  


 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton wants to improve neighborhood livability by mitigating the negative 


impact of vehicular traffic in residential neighborhoods on a daily basis; and 


 


 WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton wants to promote safe, reasonably convenient, assessable and pleasant 


conditions for bicyclists, pedestrians, motorists and residents; and 


 


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton wants to make efficient use of City resources by prioritizing requests; 


and 


 


 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council that the City of Stoughton adopt 


the Residential Traffic Management Program as a means to address residential traffic concerns 


 


Adopted this 28
th
 day of July, 2015 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


Council Action:           Override  Vote   _______ 







 


  1 


Memorandum 


To: Public Safety & Public Works Committee Members 


From: Chief Greg Leck 


             Street Superintendent Karl Manthe 


Date: 7/24/2015 


Re: Residential Traffic Management Program  


  Dear Committee Members,  


 


 


  The purpose of this memo is to provide you with discussion background regarding a proposal to   


   implement a Residential Traffic Management Program (RTMP).  A RTMP is designed to assist  


   the city in evaluating the many requests and complaints received from residents regarding traffic  


   issues.  These complaints can range considerably and effect small neighborhoods or larger  


   segments of the community.  The most common complaints received involve traffic patterns  


   issues, speeding, and driver behavior.  Sometimes these complaints involve street design and  


   pedestrian crossing concerns.  The RTMP helps to minimize the emotion that is often  


   involved in these types of complaints.   


    


                The other objectives of the Neighborhood Traffic Management Process (NTMP) is   


               to: 


 


1. Improve neighborhood livability by mitigating the negative impact of        


     vehicular traffic in residential neighborhoods. 


                   2.  Promote safe, reasonably convenient, accessible and pleasant conditions for 


                        bicyclists, pedestrians, motorists and residents. 


                   3.  Encourage citizen involvement in Traffic Management activities. 


                   4.  Make efficient use of City resources by prioritizing requests. 


              


              There are three “E’s” in the traffic calming toolbox that are included in the NTMP:     


              Education, Enforcement, and Engineering. It is the intent of this program to begin  


              with the Education and Enforcement components of the NTMP. If they don’t  


              succeed, and then the next higher level of design engineering may be applied. 
 


  The RTMP also helps to properly evaluate these issues from a traffic analysis standpoint.   


  Complaints are evaluated based on roadway purpose, design, and safety issues for all users  


  including motorist, bicyclist, and pedestrians.  Often times these reviews start with the Public  







  July 24, 2015 


  2 


  Works Committee, which examines roadway issues that may involve design or intended uses.    


  The Public Works Committee then works jointly with the Public Safety Committee to evaluate  


  any safety concerns.  Together both Committees then make a determination on what, if any,   


  action is to be taken.  By working together, traffic management is addressed in a more systematic  


  manner which will minimize the emotional weight that often overshadows the design and  


  function of city roadways. 


 


  Also, the RTMP will allow staff and the Committees to evaluate complainants based on real data  


  and then consider the public’s perception of the issue.  Having information in hand prior to  


  decision making will allow all of us to make better decisions based on factual information.   


  These decisions will then take into account all uses of our roadway and hopefully allow a better  


  balance of public uses. 


 


  Please review the attached information prior to our joint meeting.  Please also keep in mind that  


  this is a draft document and staff will be looking for policy direction on finalizing the program if  


  you approve.  I hope that we have clarified the purpose of the RTMP.  If you have any questions,    


  please let us know. 


 
                Respectfully, 
 
                Greg Leck                       Karl Manthe 
                Chief of Police               Street Superintendant  







1


CITY OF STOUGHTON RESIDENTIAL TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT PROGRAM
(RTMP)


OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURE


Stoughton


This draft used the Neighborhood Traffic Management Programs (NTMP) adopted in the Cities
Fitchburg, Monona and Middleton.


Draft by Greg Leck, February 2014.
Reviewed by Public Safety on July 21, 2015
Reviewed by Public Works on July 21, 2015


TABLE OF CONTENTS
INTRODUCTION Page 2
Objectives Page 2
Policies Page 3
Procedure Page 4
Step 1 Apply to Participate................................................................. 4
Step 2 Develop Plan..............................................................................5
Step 3 Priority Rank Projects ............................................................... 5
Step 4 Develop Final Plan................................................................... 6
Step 5 Neighborhood Approves Permanent Installation................. 7
Step 6 Common Council Action........................................................ 7
Step 8 Construct Permanent Traffic Management Device(s) ......... 8


APPENDICES
Appendix A –Application and Petition Template
Appendix B – Point Assignment for Objective Identification of Residential Traffic Problems
Appendix C – Traffic Management Devices-Phase 1 Treatments
Appendix D – Traffic Management Devices-Phase 2 Treatments-Will be provided at a later date
Appendix E - List of collector streets in Stoughton– Will be provided at a later date


INTRODUCTION


Traffic conditions have a significant impact on the residential quality of life. Traffic management
tools can enable people to travel in and between neighborhoods safely, efficiently, and
economically as a pedestrian, bicyclist, motorist or transit rider with minimal conflict or
disruption to the residents or other travelers.


Neighborhoods and individuals often seek to restrain traffic through their neighborhood or street.
The needs of the neighborhood also must be balanced with the needs of the city as a whole.







2


Motorists should respect the quality of life aspect in the neighborhoods they drive through and
behave accordingly.


There are three primary forms of “unwanted traffic” recognized on residential streets:
1. Traffic using the street as a shortcut, detour or overflow from a congested arterial.
2. Excessive traffic speeds and poor driver behaviors.
3. Parking congestion or lack of adequate off street parking.


Police enforcement is and will always remain an effective tool to reinforce motorist behavior.
However, it is recognized that providing an enforcement level that is effective in modifying
driver behavior will require a significant commitment of police resources.


The City of Stoughton is committed to developing an effective approach to managing residential
traffic. Neighborhood involvement is an important component of this approach.


Objectives


The objectives of the Residential Traffic Management Program are to:


1. Improve residential livability by mitigating the negative impact of vehicular traffic on
residential neighborhoods.


2. Promote safe, reasonably convenient, accessible and pleasant conditions for bicyclists,
pedestrians, motorists, and residents on neighborhood streets.


3. Encourage citizen involvement in all phases of Residential Traffic Management
activities.


4. Make efficient use of City resources by prioritizing Traffic Management requests.


The purpose of the RTMP is to provide a framework for the identification, evaluation, and
amelioration of negative traffic impacts on residential quality of life in Stoughton. The RTMP is
intended provide guidance without rigidity. The policy applies in residential areas of the city on
streets under the city’s control.


Policies


The following policies shall guide staff and citizen participants as they implement the Stoughton
Residential Traffic Management Program. The RTMP applies only to residential streets under
the control of the City of Stoughton. The RTMP does not apply to streets in predominantly
commercial areas or roadways under the control of other jurisdictions (state or county). Thus, the
RTMP does not apply to Main Street/US HWY 51, HWY 138, Veterans Road (CTH N), or those
portions of CTH B & A because they are not under the control of the city of Stoughton. On those
roadways not covered by the RTMP, the city will work jointly with those agencies that control
traffic and pedestrian movement.


1. Neighborhood cut-through traffic should be routed to collector and arterial streets.







3


2. Emergency and service vehicle access and circulation must be preserved.


3. RTMP projects should maintain adequate local street automobile access, encourage and
enhance pedestrian and bicycle mobility and access within and through the city’s
residential areas, and facilitate access to public transit.


4. The City shall employ traffic management and traffic control devices to achieve the
RTMP’s objectives. Traffic management devices including street and lane narrowing,
bicycle lanes, full or partial road closures [semi-diverters/diverters/cul-de-sac], traffic
circles, speed humps, speed tables, diverters, medians, curb extensions, and other traffic
calming devices.


5. All traffic management and traffic control devices shall be planned, designed,
implemented, and maintained in keeping with sound engineering and planning practices.
The City Streets Department shall direct the installation of traffic control devices (signs,
signals, and pavement markings) as needed to accomplish the project. [Refer to Appendix
C for a detailed description of traffic management devices.]


6. To implement the RTMP, city staff will follow the procedures set forth in the next section
(‘Procedures’). Implementation of recommended solutions will be limited by available
and budgeted funding and staff time.


7. City streets are functionally classified based upon the volume of traffic it serves and most
importantly by the connection it makes within the City’s transportation system. Streets
are classified as either: Arterials, Collectors or Local Streets. The RTMP is intended to
reduce traffic problems on streets in residential areas, especially excessive cut-through
traffic on Local Streets and excessive speed on Local Streets or Collector Streets. The
RTMP may be applied to either ‘local’ streets or ‘collector’ streets. Application of the
RTMP to Collector Streets must carefully consider the potential to divert traffic to other
adjacent streets.


8. Evaluating the use of traffic calming devices that involve physical restrictions, especially
the use of speed humps or tables, must take into consideration the impact the installation
will have on long-wheel-based vehicles (fire apparatus, ambulances, snow plows and
garbage trucks) and the potential to divert traffic to other adjacent streets.


Step 1 Problem Identification


A specific traffic or safety issue may be raised by a neighborhood association, an Alderperson,
an individual, a business, or any other concerned person. These issues will be recorded on a
Community Action Request (CAR) Form, see Appendix A. The CAR form will require a petition
of the residents within the affected area. The affected area will be determined by the City
Engineer, based on the existing street layout and input provided from the concerned resident.
Once a CAR form is submitted, City staff will collect preliminary background information of the
existing conditions. This data collection may include but is not limited to visiting the location of







4


concern to review road geometry, describing the problem, reviewing crash history data,
reviewing available sight distance, collecting traffic volume and speed data if necessary, and
monitoring pedestrian and bicycle activity. For low volume streets, the City Engineer will
determine traffic volumes by using traffic counters, using a formula based on the number of
households in the affected area and the number of trips generated by those households, or by
making an estimate based on counts that were completed on similar streets in the City.


From the information gathered and recorded on the form, a determination will be made whether
to proceed further with this request. There are two categories within the RTMP process, Phase 1
Treatments and Phase 2 Treatments. Phase 1 Treatments focus on the Education and
Enforcement components. Phase 2 Treatments will incorporate Engineering as well as the
Education and Enforcement components. Appendices C and D indicate some of the Phase 1 and
Phase 2 Treatments that will be considered by the City.


To determine if a street is eligible for further inclusion in the RTMP, it must meet the following
minimum criteria for Phase 1 or Phase 2 Treatments.


Phase 1 Treatment Criteria:
 ADT (Annual Daily Traffic) > 200 vpd (vehicles per day)
 Posted speed of 25 mph or less
 Functional Classification: Local or minor collector through street


Phase 2 Treatment Criteria:
 Phase 1 Treatments were determined ineffective
 ADT > 200 vpd
 Posted speed of 25 mph or less
 Functional Classification: Local or minor collector through street
 85th Percentile Speed must be
 35 mph or greater for local or minor collector streets
 30 mph or greater in marked school zone
 33 mph or greater adjacent to parks


Score 30 points or more on the Ranking Request Point Assignment list, see Step 4 for details. If
traffic volumes exceed 3,000 vpd, the City will consider the need for additional enforcement in
those areas.


Step 2 Obtain Neighborhood Input


If the street is eligible for further inclusion in the RTMP, the Public Works and Police
Departments will facilitate a public meeting with the neighborhood and alderpersons for the
project area. This meeting will inform residents of the pending analysis, describe the process and
gather additional information about traffic problems and related neighborhood needs. This
process relies on soliciting input from neighborhoods. This step will also develop a
Neighborhood Traffic Calming Committee (TCC).


The TCC shall be comprised of three to five residents who will serve as a liaison between Public







5


Works and the residents. Members of the TCC will be involved with the development of a
neighborhood Traffic Calming Plan and the presentation of the plan to the neighborhood. It is
expected that the TCC will meet approximately five to eight times throughout the process, with
or without City Staff.


Plan development consists of the following:


1. Assessment of problems and needs
2. Identification of project goals and objectives
3. Development of alternative plans/solutions
4. Selection of a proposed plan/solution


Step 3 Develop Plan


For streets that meet the criteria for Phase 1 Treatments, the Neighborhood TCC will work with
the Police Department and the Public Works Department to discuss the Education and
Enforcement needs within the affected area. A plan and schedule will be developed for
proceeding with the Education and Enforcement improvements.


For streets that meet the criteria for Phase 2 Treatments, the Neighborhood TCC will work
through Phase 1 Treatments initially. If the Phase 1 Treatments are determined to be ineffective,
Phase 2 Treatments will be considered. The TCC will work with the Police Department and the
Public Works Department to develop a Traffic Calming Plan for the affected area. The
recommended Traffic Calming Plan will be presented to the neighborhood through a second
public meeting. The City and TCC will present solutions based on citizen input and sound
engineering principles.


A survey will be sent to the residents of the affected area to measure support for the plan. The
residents will have an opportunity to vote on the Traffic Calming Plan to determine if the
measures recommended by the TCC and the City will be implemented. In order to pass, a
minimum of 50% of all ballots must be returned with a simple majority of the returned ballots in
favor of the plan.


If enough votes are in favor, the Traffic Calming Plan will be submitted to the Public
Works Committee for consideration and adoption. The Committee will consider this with respect
to public safety, pedestrian, bicyclist and transit access as well as to the positive and negative
consequences of traffic diversion, emergency and service vehicle access and service delivery.


If, at this time, the plan receives preliminary approval, it will move forward to Step 4, involving
priority ranking of the project for funding and potential implementation.


If the plan does not receive preliminary approval, it will be referred back to staff, the TCC, and
the neighborhoods for further study. A final neighborhood meeting, including City staff and the
alderperson (s) will be held at this time in an effort to understand and resolve the concerns that
may exist among residents of the affected area. A Revised Traffic Calming Plan will be
developed; if feasible, that addresses the concerns of the residents. A second survey will be







6


mailed out to the same affected area to provide an opportunity to vote on the Revised Traffic
Calming Plan. If the Revised plan does not pass, no improvements will be implemented. The
City’s efforts will be stopped at this time. However, the TCC can continue to work with the
neighborhood to come up with an acceptable solution that can be presented to City staff for
acceptance.


Step 4 Priority Rank Projects


To marshal the allocation of scarce construction resources, each plan will be priority ranked.


Using data collected in the planning stage of the process (crash history, proximity of pedestrian
attractions, traffic speed and traffic volume), the individual project will be assigned points, as
detailed in Appendix B “Point Assignment for Ranking Requests.” A minimum of thirty (30)
points is required for a project to be considered eligible to compete with other requests for
funding.


Projects will be ranked citywide, based on point score. The highest ranking projects will be
undertaken first. The number of projects initiated each year will depend on City resources. If
current funding is not sufficient to implement the highest ranked project, the second highest
ranked project will be implemented, again considering the current funding limitations. If
funding is not sufficient to implement the second highest ranked project, the third highest ranked
project will be considered, etc.


The City will notify the TCC of the status of their request after this step. Additional funding
sources will be sought for the highest ranked projects that do not have sufficient funding.
Once ranked, a project is considered in the annual priority ranking for up to three years. If, after
three years, a project has not received a high enough priority to proceed, it is no longer eligible
for consideration. This time limitation ensures that the project request has not become obsolete
because of changing traffic conditions and/or changes in local interest in the project.


The TCC will be notified when the three-year limit expires. At that time, a new request may be
made to re-enter the project in the program. Current data is then collected to recalculate the
assignment of points.


Step 5 Implement Traffic Management Project/Plan Test


Once a plan reaches the top of the priority list and funding is available, the City will proceed
with construction of the improvements. Depending on the project, the City may choose to
provide a temporary test installation prior to moving forward with the permanent treatments. The
temporary test installation will allow the TCC and the City to monitor the area to the
effectiveness of the treatment. The test will be installed for not less than three months. If the
City Engineer or Police Chief finds that an unforeseen hazard exists, the test may, at any time, be
revised or discontinued. City staff will inform the TCC and/or adjacent neighbors of any actions
taken to modify or terminate a test.







7


Following the test period, data will be collected to evaluate how well the test has performed in
terms of the previously defined problems and objectives. The evaluation includes the subject
street and other streets impacted by the project and is based on before-and-after speeds and
volumes, impacts on emergency and service vehicles or commercial uses, and other evaluation
criteria. The City will follow-up with the TCC to discuss whether the permanent treatments
should be constructed based on the effectiveness of the temporary test installation. If the
evaluation criteria are not met to the satisfaction of the neighborhood association and City staff,
the traffic plan may be modified and additional testing conducted.


Step 6 Construct Permanent Traffic Management Devices


Detailed project plans, specifications and estimates will be prepared by the Public Works
Department. The project will be bid out by the City.


Before the project(s) can be let for bidding by construction companies, the project plans and
construction fund expenditures must be approved by the Board of Public Works.


Construction is administered by the City and is generally completed during the following
construction season.


Step 9 Maintenance


The Public Works Department is responsible for the construction and maintenance of any traffic
calming device, traffic signing and pavement marking or delineation, implemented as part of this
program. Any trees planted within the right-of-way are the responsibility of the Parks
Department and any landscaping (not including trees) is the responsibility of the neighborhood
association.







8


City of Stoughton


Community Action Request (CAR) Form Appendix A


Return form to: Stoughton Police Department


321 S. Fourth Street


Stoughton, WI 53589


Contact Name Date


Day/Message Phone # Address


E-mail address


Please indicate traffic issues that concern residents in your neighborhood:


Speeding G Pedestrian/Bicycle Safety G Collisions G Increased Traffic
G Traffic Control Concern G Other


Please describe what you would consider as the boundaries of the affected area.


Is this problem affecting the entire neighborhood or a specific area? Is there a specific
timeframe that the problem is occurring?


Are you aware of any neighborhood associations that represent your area? If so, please


provide contact information.


The petition below must be completed prior to submitting this form. A minimum of 50% of the
households in the affected area must sign this petition. Each of the residents signing this petition must be
at least 18 years of age and from separate households within the affected area. Contact Public Works at
873-6303 for assistance in identifying the boundaries of the affected area. If you have questions
regarding the Residential Traffic Management Program, please contact Police Chief Greg Leck at 873-
3374, or see the City of Stoughton website at: http://www.cityofstoughton.com/


By signing, the residents below are requesting that this neighborhood be included in the
Neighborhood Traffic Management Process.


Signature Printed Name Address Phone
No.1.


2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.







9


APPENDIX B


POINT ASSIGNMENT FOR RANKING REQUESTS


 A project must score 30 or more points to be considered eligible for further inclusion.
 Calculated points are summed and competing projects’ points are compared. The project


with the greater point total moves ahead of those projects with less total points.


1. Average Daily Traffic Volume
(On segment of the project street having the highest volume) divided by 100
 20 points maximum score


Example:
2000 vehicles per day use the street I live on
2000/100 = 20 points


2. Speed
Percent of vehicles over the posted or statutory speed limit or 30 mph for collectors
divided by 4.
 20 points maximum score


Example:
65% of traffic on my street exceeds the speed limit
65/4 = 21.7 points


3. Crash Record (Police Reported)
Crash record over the last three consecutive years measured by crashes per million
vehicle miles traveled or crashes per million vehicles entering intersection.
A property damage only counts as 1 crash, a crash with injuries is double counted and a
crash with a fatality is triple counted.
 30 points maximum score


Example #1
o My street is 700 feet long (0.13 miles)
o There have been 5 crashes on my street during the last 3 years
o ADT: 2000 vpd


5 crashes * (1x10 6) = 17.6 crashes/million vehicle


(2000 vehicles) (365 days) (3 years) (0.13 miles) miles traveled
day year


17.6 crashes per million vehicle miles traveled equates to 17.6 points
Example #2
o There have been 5 crashes at the intersection at the end of my block during the


last three years
o The total volume of traffic entering the intersection from all legs of the


intersections is 2000 vehicles per day
5 crashes * (1x10 6) = 2.3 crashes/million vehicle


(2000 vehicles) (365 days) (3 years) entering the intersection
day year







10


2.3 crashes per million vehicles entering my intersection equates to 2.3 points


4. Geometry
 5 points for inadequate sight distances for driveways based on posted speed limits
 5 points for inadequate sight distances at intersections based on posted speed limits
 5 points is the maximum score


5. Elementary and Middle Schools
 5 points for each public or private elementary or middle school (K-8) on the subject


street


6. Other Pedestrian Areas
 Up to 5 points for each individual pedestrian oriented facility, such as elderly


housing or a City park on the street
 For each pedestrian oriented facilities grouped together on the subject street, up to 5


points for the group
 10 points maximum score


7. School Walk Route / Designated School Bus Stops
 10 points for a subject street designated as a Recommended School Walk Route or


Designated School Bus Stop


8. Designated Bike Route
 5 points for a subject street designated as a bicycle route


9. Scheduled Road Reconstruction
 To take advantage of a pending street reconstruction project, a traffic calming


project planned for this street will be moved to the top of the priority ranking.







11


Appendix C
Phase 1 Treatments


Traffic Safety Newsletter
Heighten awareness of traffic safety concerns in the neighborhood. Educate the residents
on the speeds and volumes specific to their neighborhood. Include traffic safety tips to
reduce speeds and educate the drivers.
Requirements:


 CAR form completed
 85th percentile speed exceeds 29 mph
 Neighborhood association or TCC to assist in distribution of newsletter


Speed Monitoring Trailers
Portable trailer, equipped with posted speed limit sign, detects the speed of passing
vehicles and displays the traveling speed. This will heighten driver awareness of the
posted speed limit compared to the speed they are traveling.


Requirements:
 CAR form completed
 Request forwarded to Traffic Safety team for placement
 First-come, first-serve basis


Neighborhood Speed Watch
Provides residents an opportunity to reduce vehicular speeds by training them to use a
radar unit to clock speeds on their street. Local residents monitor speed of vehicles
traveling through their neighborhood with radar equipment on loan from the Traffic
Safety Team. Residents are trained to use the radar unit and are given instructions for
collecting data. Participants record license plate numbers of those motorists driving in
excess of the posted speed limit. This information is given to the Traffic Safety Team,
and a letter is sent to the vehicle’s registered owner. The letter informs the owner of the
violation and encourages them, or drivers of their vehicles, to drive at or below the posted
speed limit. Since this is a community awareness program, no formal violations or fines
are issued.


Requirements:
 CAR form completed
 Need minimum of 2 citizen volunteers
 20 minute training session and signed agreements


Enforcement
If excessive speeds are noted, the Police may focus a speed enforcement effort at this
location.


Requirements:
 CAR form completed
 Request forwarded to Traffic Safety Team for monitoring
 First-come, first-serve basis







12


Appendix D


Physical Treatment Specific Requirements


Speed Humps


or


Speed Tables


Traffic volumes < 3,000 vpd
8% or less street grades
Horizontal curves < 300’
centerline radius


Traffic Circles


Placed at an intersection
Size of intersection must allow
circle
Circulating lane should not
encroach on the crosswalk


Chicanes


2% or more street grades or
existing storm sewer system to
connect to


Chokers


2% or more street grades or
existing storm sewer system to
connect to


Medians


and


Islands


No specific requirements


Pavement


Markings


No specific requirements


Sidewalks


and


Streetscaping


No specific requirements







13





		R-110-2015-Resolution Residential Traffic Management Program July 2015.pdf

		Traffic Management Plan Memo.pdf

		Stoughton RTMP objectives  policies May 2012.pdf






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing Council approval of the revised Municipal Building Use Policy


Committee Action: Public Works Committee recommends approval 5-0


File Number: Date Introduced: July 28, 2015


WHEREAS, the members of the City Leadership Team and the Public Works Committee worked to
update and revise the Municipal Building Use Policy, and


WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee reviewed proposed amendments to the Municipal Building
Use Policy, and


WHEREAS, your Public Works Committee approved the amendments of the Municipal Building Use
Policy, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Council approve the
amendments to the Municipal Building Use Policy as presented.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Council Resolution - 2015 Building Use Policy.docx



lkropf

Text Box

R-111-2015







CITY OF STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL BUILDING USE POLICY
Approved by Council 1/27/2009


Draft 5/5/2015


STATEMENT OF POLICY
Recognizing that City Buildings and their grounds belong to the community, the City of Stoughton offers the
use of certain City facilities by and for the benefit of residents, but not to interfere with any municipal
operation of the community. The primary use for all city buildings will be for city business and events, which
shall take precedence over and above any secondary uses. This policy does not cover the Opera House,
Library or Park Facilities such as shelters or athletic fields, which are covered under separate policies. The
Common Council Chambers also serves as the City’s Emergency Operations Center and therefore cannot be
reserved for non-governmental users. Reasonable cost recovery fees will be assessed to maintain City
facilities for future use.


Commercial enterprises and for-profit businesses will not be allowed to reserve city building spaces.


The City of Stoughton will consider all qualified users without regard to race, color, religion, creed, gender,
national origin, age, disability, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, or other status covered by
applicable state or federal laws or regulations.


The fact that a group is permitted use of the room(s) does not in any way constitute endorsement of the group’s
policies or beliefs by the City, or staff.


All organizations/individuals using the Stoughton City Buildings will maintain compliance with Federal, State
and local laws and regulations regarding discrimination. This includes but is not limited to the Federal Americans
with Disabilities Act.


This policy may be subject to change based on need or circumstances as approved by the City.


APPLICATION PROCESS
Applications for use of available rooms will be given on a first request basis. All City of Stoughton
committees, commissions and boards, city departments, and any other groups under the control of the City
Council shall be given priority in scheduling. Building use will be determined by the Building Director
(BD). Groups will be allowed to use the facility on a first-come, first-served basis after governmental groups.
Room use will be limited to twelve times per calendar year. Advance reservations must be made 30 days in
advance, except in special circumstances as approved by BD. Regularly scheduled meetings may be made no
more than 6 months in advance, and are always subject to cancellation due to city needs.


The application shall specify the facilities requested, the date(s) needed, time and the name, telephone
number, and the address of at least one (1) person of the organization or group who shall be personally
responsible for all charges arising out of the intended use of such facility. Applications for use of a facility
shall be submitted to the appropriate facility contact listed in the section below.


APPEAL PROCESS
If there is a question as to approval or denial of a user group by the BD, an appeal may be submitted to the
Mayor.







FACILITY USER FEE SCHEDULE
Subject to availability, use of facilities during normal business hours shall not be subject to a rental fee.


All facilities rented for hours outside normal operation will be charged an hourly rental fee. The fee shall be
charged per hour and will start ½ hour before the scheduled start time of the event and continue ½ hour
following the completion of the event. The fee is intended to cover basic overhead including building
monitoring during the event. The fee shall be $15 per hour.


Existing fees may be waived at BD’s request or judgment for specific charitable or non-profit activities that
benefit the city.


USERS


Governmental Users
City of Stoughton governmental meetings and activities include, but are not limited to: meetings of city
committees, commissions, boards, events or meetings sponsored by a City department, committee or
commission and are under the control of that body. City governmental users shall be given priority in
scheduling. Other governmental units may be granted use of space if space is available.


Non-Governmental Users
Non-governmental users are all users not considered governmental users.
Non-governmental users may be allowed use of the facility per this policy when space is available, with the
understanding that if a governmental user requires the use of a facility they will be bumped from using the
facility. The City of Stoughton specifically excludes the following types of uses of its meeting rooms
(except at the Library where Library Board Policies shall govern):


 Programs involving the sale, advertising or promotion of products or services. City facility space is
not intended to compete with private locations for profit making events.


 Training events that are used to promote, market, or sell items or services.
 Business firms and other for-profit organizations soliciting or selling products or services, regardless


of purpose.
 Private social functions, such as showers, birthday parties, and the like (except at the Senior Center


and Youth Center.)
 Political campaigns and/or fundraising.
 Programs not in keeping with the City’s goals and objectives, or which would interfere with the


operation of the City


ROOMS AVAILABLE FOR USE
Rooms listed in this Section may be available to groups and organizations upon approval dependent on the
user requirements, availability of space and time of use. Requests for use of meeting rooms should be
submitted to the following for processing:


*Please see the attached fee schedule.


EMS – EMS Office, 873-6500


Hanson Room: Room size: 40 X 28


Code Capacity = 90 persons
Design Capacity = 70 persons
Furnishings: Flip top tables on coasters, chairs and podium.
Audiovisual Available: Ceiling mounted projector, projection screen, VCR/DVR, TVs (2)
and podium. Wireless Internet access available
No computer available for use







Halverson Room: Room size: 32 X 22


Code Capacity = 32
Design Capacity = 20 persons
Furnishings: Flip top tables on coasters, chairs and podium.
Audiovisual Available: Ceiling mounted projector, projection screen, VCR/DVR, White
Board, TV and podium. Wireless Internet access available
No computer available for use


Note: Halverson & Hanson Room can be combined to accommodate larger meeting space.


Fire Department – Fire Chief, 873-7218


Training Room: Approximately 1,500 square feet, 25 tables and 50 chairs available; Room
Capacity: 45 seated at tables, 80 without tables; Video Projector (no computer provided) and Audio
equipment available, wireless Internet access available. No computer available for use


Senior Center – Senior Center Receptionist, 873-8585


Main Floor – Seating for 100 people at tables; Video Projector (no computer provided) and Audio
equipment available, wireless Internet access available. Kitchen available for catered foods only –
no utensils or tableware available for use.


Lower Level – Capacity 30 to 50, wireless Internet access available.


Second Floor – 2 small meeting rooms with capacity 10 to 15, wireless Internet access available.


Youth Center – Parks & Recreation Director, 873-6746


Main Floor – Lounge Area with TV and Video Games – No food on carpet, kitchen available for
catered foods only – no utensils or tableware available for use.


Second Floor – Capacity to 200


GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS


Conditions of Use:


The applicant(s) must provide sufficient supervision so that the event will remain orderly and to prevent
damage to the facility.


 Decorations and other items may not be attached to walls or fixtures;
 Prior to departure the room will be put into the same condition and configuration;
 On departure all lights shall be turned off and the room\facility secured and locked.
 Violations to this policy shall be grounds to deny future requests.


The use of the room is subject to all ordinances and laws being complied with, specifically, but not limited to
the prohibition of tobacco use and/or possession of alcohol or illegal substances.


The City may place restrictions and/or additional requirements for the use of the facility. The applicant may
be required to pay for these associated costs.







Cleaning and/or Damage to City Property


The applicant shall be responsible for:
 Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the City for the purpose of cleaning the facility


beyond customary cleaning done by the city;
 For the cost of replacement or repair of damaged property.


Miscellaneous


The City is not responsible for any equipment or other property left at the facility at any time. Property left
for 30 days will be deemed abandoned and disposed of in a manner deemed appropriate by the City.


Unless specified otherwise by the BD, premises must be returned to its original condition, to include location
of tables and chairs and equipment (if any) used. All trash and refuse generated will be removed and hauled
to designated location by users.


Additional specific policies, rules, exceptions, and limitations as pertain to each specific building are
contained herein, and violations by users may lead to suspension of use privileges for any using party.
Failure to meet the above requirements may result in the denial of future use for the individual or group
associated with the facility’s use.


Approved by the Common Council on July 26, 2005
Revision approved by Council on August 22, 2006
Revision approved by Council on January 27, 2009
Revisions approved by Common Council on ?







CITY OF STOUGHTON
BUILDING USE APPLICATION


This form is to be completed by all groups requesting use of a City facility for an event that is not a primary City function.
The City reserves the right to cancel a scheduled use in the event of an anticipated violation of any rule, regulation or law or
if a governmental user requires the use of the facility. Any misrepresentation on the application may void any use of the
facility.


__________ EMS Facilities – contact EMS Office (873-6500)
__________ Fire Station Training Room contact Fire Chief (873-7218) or firedept@ci.stoughton.wi.us
__________ Senior Center Facilities – contact Senior Center Receptionist (873-8585)
__________ Youth Center – contact Parks & Recreation Director (873-6746)


ORGANIZATION:


ORGANIZATION CONTACT:


Name:


Phone: Days: Evenings:


Name:


Address:


DATE OF MEETING:


Beginning
at


AM/PM Ending at AM/PM


ATTENDANCE – EST. TOTAL
DESCRIBE PLANNED
ACTIVITY IN DETAIL:


FACILITIES USE AGREEMENT: The undersigned application agrees to abide by all rules and regulations of the City of
Stoughton regarding use of city facilities, to hold harmless and to indemnify the City of Stoughton from any and all claims,
losses, damages, actions, causes of action and liabilities of any kind or nature whatsoever which are directly or indirectly
related to the use of the facilities described herein by the undersigned and any guests, friends or invitees which result in
injury or loss of property to any person using the facilities herein described. My organization/group will be responsible for
the repair or replacement of any damages to the facility. My organization/group agrees to comply with the conditions set
forth in the City of Stoughton Building Use Policy. My organization/group agrees to meet ADAA (Americans with
Disabilities Act) requirements and to provide accommodations to access the meeting or program.


Additional Requirements:







Signature:


Approved: Date:


FEES AND DEPOSITS


_________________________No Fee for Governmental Defined Users


_________________________Flat Fee $10 per use


___hours at $15/hour _______ Hourly Rental Fee (starting ½ hour before
event and continuing ½ hour beyond event.)


_________________________ TOTAL







CITY OF STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL BUILDING USE POLICY
Approved by Council 1/27/2009


Draft 5/5/2015


STATEMENT OF POLICY
Recognizing that City Buildings and their grounds belong to the community, the City of Stoughton offers the
use of certain City facilities by and for the benefit of residents, but not to interfere with any municipal
operation of the community. The primary use for all city buildings will be for city business and events, which
shall take precedence over and above any secondary uses. Offices and other administrative areas of the
following buildings are not intended for use under this policy, unless special permission is granted by the
Mayor and/or City Council: City Hall, Public Safety Building, Library, Senior Center, Municipal Utilities
Building, EMS Facility, Fire Department, Youth Center and the Public Works Facility. This policy does not
cover the Opera House, Library or Park Facilities such as shelters or athletic fields, which are covered under
separate policies. The Common Council Chambers also serves as the City’s Emergency Operations Center
and therefore cannot be reserved for non-governmental users. Please see exhibit “B” for the Stoughton
Public Library Meeting Room Reasonable cost recovery fees will be assessed to maintain City facilities for
future use.


Commercial enterprises and for-profit businesses will not generally be allowed to usereserve city building
spacess. Building Director (BD) may request exceptions to _________________ when it appears in their
view to be in the best interests of the city[k1].


The City of Stoughton will consider all qualified users without regard to race, color, religion, creed, gender,
national origin, age, disability, marital or veteran status, sexual orientation, or other status covered by
applicable state or federal laws or regulations.


The fact that a group is permitted use of the room(s) does not in any way constitute endorsement of the group’s
policies or beliefs by the City, or staff.


All organizations/individuals using the Stoughton City Buildings will maintain compliance with Federal, State
and local laws and regulations regarding discrimination. This includes but is not limited to the Federal Americans
with Disabilities Act.


This policy may be subject to change based on need or circumstances as approved by the City.


APPLICATION PROCESS
Applications for use of available rooms will be given on a first request basis. All City of Stoughton
committees, commissions and boards, city departments, and any other groups under the control of the City
Council shall be given priority in scheduling. Building use will be determined by the Building Director
(BD). , who in non-standard situations may bring the issue to ________________ for determination. Groups
will be allowed to use the facility on a first-come, first-served basis after governmental groups. Room use
will be limited to twelve four times per calendar year[k2]. Advance reservations must be made 30 days in
advance, except in special circumstances as approved by BD. Regularly scheduled meetings may be made no
more than 6 months in advance, and are always subject to cancellation due to city needs.


The application shall specify the facilities requested, the date(s) needed, time and the name, telephone
number, and the address of at least one (1) person of the organization or group who shall be personally
responsible for all charges arising out of the intended use of such facility. Applications for use of a facility
shall be submitted to the appropriate facility contact listed in the section below.


APPEAL PROCESS
If there is a question as to approval or denial of a user group by the BD, an appeal the request may be
submitted to the Mayor. Denials by the Mayor may be appealed to the or appropriate board committee or
commission board for further review.review and subsequent action by the Library Board (for Library
facilities) or Common Council.







FACILITY USER FEE SCHEDULE
A non-refundable application fee shall apply to all rentals. The application fee is $10[k3].


Subject to availability, use of facilities during normal business hours shall not be subject to a rental fee.


All facilities rented for hours outside normal operation will be charged an hourly rental fee. The fee shall be
charged per hour and will start ½ hour before the scheduled start time of the event and continue ½ hour
following the completion of the event. The fee is intended to cover basic overhead including building
monitoring during the event. The fee shall be $15 per hour[k4].


Existing fees may be waived at BD’s request or judgment for specific charitable or non-profit activities that
benefit the city.


USERS


Governmental Users
City of Stoughton governmental meetings and activities include, but are not limited to: meetings of city
committees, commissions, boards, events or meetings sponsored by a City department, committee or
commission and are under the control of that body. City governmental users shall be given priority in
scheduling. Other governmental units may be granted use of space if space is available. Stoughton Chamber
of Commerce sponsored programs that do not involve the sale, advertising or promotion of products or
services and City employee work related groups facilitated or hosted by City staff are considered government
users.


Non-Governmental Users
Non-governmental users are all users not considered governmental users.
Non-governmental users will may be allowed use of the facility per this policy when space is available, with
the understanding that if a governmental user requires the use of a facility they willmay be bumped from
using the facility. In the event it is necessary to bump a scheduled user, the City will attempt to relocate
them to another City facility, if available. The City of Stoughton specifically excludes the following types of
uses of its meeting rooms (except at the Library where Library Board Policies shall govern):


 Programs involving the sale, advertising or promotion of products or services. City facility space is
not intended to compete with private locations for profit making events.


 Training events that are used to promote, market, or sell items or services. Discovery of such
activities shall be grounds to deny future requests.


 Business firms and other for-profit organizations soliciting or selling products or services, regardless
of purpose.


 Private social functions, such as showers, birthday parties, dances and the like (except at the Senior
Center facilities and Youth Center.)


 Political campaigns and/or fundraising.
 Programs not in keeping with the City’s goals and objectives, or which would interfere with the


operation of the City
, although political forums are permitted.


 by causing excessive noise, a safety hazard, security risk, etc.


 Please see exhibit “A” for a pre-approved city building users list.[k5]







ROOMS AVAILABLE FOR USE
Rooms listed in this Section are made may be available to groups and organizations upon approval
dependent on the user requirements, availability of space and time of use. The Council Chambers will only
be available for use if City staff will be present at the event. Requests for use of meeting rooms should be
submitted to the following for processing:


City Hall Receptionist Hall of Fame Room, Giles Dow Room,
873-6677 Ed Overland Room and Council Chambers


*Senior Center Receptionist Senior Center Annex and other public meeting
873-8585 rooms at the Senior Center


Library Clerical Assistant Library meeting room
873-6281


EMS Office EMS Training Room
873-6500


Parks & Recreation Director Youth Center
873-6746


Fire Chief Fire Station Training Room
873-7218


*Please see the attached fee schedule.


[k6]EMS – EMS Office, 873-6500[k7]


Hanson Room: Room size: 40 X 28


Code Capacity = 90 persons
Design Capacity = 70 persons
Furnishings: Flip top tables on coasters, chairs and podium.
Audiovisual Available: Ceiling mounted projector, projection screen, VCR/DVR, TVs (2)
and podium. Wireless Internet access available
No computer available for use


Kitchen facilities: Full kitchen available upon request.


Halverson Room: Room size: 32 X 22


Code Capacity = 32
Design Capacity = 20 persons
Furnishings: Flip top tables on coasters, chairs and podium.
Audiovisual Available: Ceiling mounted projector, projection screen, VCR/DVR, White
Board, TV and podium. Wireless Internet access available
No computer available for use
Kitchen facilities: (efficiency) Refrigerator, sink, running water, limited countertop.


Note: Halverson & Hanson Room can be combined to accommodate larger meeting space.


Leck (Conference) Room: Room size: 13 X 20


Code Capacity = 20 persons
Design Capacity = 8 persons
Furnishings: Conference table, chairs (8), White Board, TV


Audiovisual Available: Wall space used as screen projection, ceiling mounted projector, TV,
VCR/DVR. Wireless Internet access available







Fire Department – Fire Chief, 873-7218


Training Room: Approximately 1,500 square feet, 25 tables and 50 chairs available; Room
Capacity: 4525 seated at tables, 80 without tables; Video Projector (no computer provided) and
Audio equipment available, wireless Internet access available. No computer available for use
Kitchen available for catered foods only – no utensils or tableware available for use.


Library – Library Director, 873-6281


Carnegie Room : in the basement; a lar ge room nor mally equ ipped with f ive
fold ing tables and 25 chairs. Add it iona l tables and chairs are avai lable. Capacity of
room is 50 persons.


The fol lowing is also avai lable : wire less internet access, a screen, and LCD
projector (bring your own speakers); overhead projector, a whiteboard, lectern,
coffee maker, and kitchenet te (bring your own supplies). The L ibrary does not have
a televis ion or DVD player for pub lic use.


A restroom is located in the lobby just outs ide the Carnegie room.


Conference Room: on the second floor; a sma ll r oom equ ipped with one table and
six cha irs. Capacity of the room is 7 per sons. W ireless internet access is avai lable.
A drink ing f ountain is ava ilab le around the corner. Restrooms are located on the
main f loor.


Small Meeting Room : on the second f loor; a small room equ ipped with a counter
with seat ing for two. Capacity of the room is 3 per sons. W ireless internet access is
availab le. A dr ink ing fountain is avai lable around the corner. Restrooms are
located on the main f loor.


Senior Center – Senior Center Receptionist, 873-8585


Main Floor – Seating for 100 people at tables; Video Projector (no computer provided) and Audio
equipment available, wireless Internet access available. Kitchen available for catered foods only –
no utensils or tableware available for use.


Lower Level – Capacity 30 to 50, wireless Internet access available.


Second Floor – 23 small meeting rooms with capacity 10 to 15, wireless Internet access available.


Youth Center – Parks & Recreation Director, 873-6746


Main Floor – Lounge Area with TV and Video Games – No food on carpet, wireless Internet access
available.kitchen available for catered foods only – no utensils or tableware available for use.


Second Floor – Capacity to 200
stage and sound system available, wireless Internet access available.


GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS


Conditions of Use:







The applicant(s) must provide sufficient supervision so that the event will remain orderly and to prevent
damage to the facility.


 Decorations and other items may not be attached to walls or fixtures;
 Prior to departure the room will be put into the same condition and configuration;
 On departure all lights shall be turned off and the room\facility secured and locked.
 Discovery of such activitiesViolations to this policy shall be grounds to deny future requests.


The use of the room is subject to all ordinances and laws being complied with, specifically, but not limited to
the prohibition of tobacco use and/or possession of alcohol or illegal substancesdrugs.


The City may place restrictions and/or additional requirements for the use of the facility. The applicant may
be required to pay for these associated costs.


Cleaning and/or Damage to City Property


The applicant shall be responsible for:
 Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the City for the purpose of cleaning the facility


beyond customary cleaning done by the city;
 For the cost of replacement or repair of damaged property.


Miscellaneous


The City is not responsible for any equipment or other property left at the facility at any time. Property left
for 30 days will be deemed abandoned and disposed of in a manner deemed appropriate by the City.


Unless specified otherwise by the BD, premises must be returned to its original condition, to include location
of tables and chairs and equipment (if any) used. All trash and refuse generated will be removed and hauled
to designated locationfrom site by users.


Additional specific policies, rules, exceptions, and limitations as pertain to each specific building are
contained herein, and violations by users may lead to suspension of use privileges for any using party.


Failure to meet the above requirements may result in the denial of future use for the individual or group
associated with the facility’s use.


Approved by the Common Council on July 26, 2005
Revision approved by Council on August 22, 2006
Revision approved by Council on January 27, 2009
Revisions approved by Common Council on ?







CITY OF STOUGHTON
BUILDING USE APPLICATION


This forrom is to be completed used by all groups requesting use of a City facility entitled to use the facility listed below for
an event that is not a primary City function. Permission for use of the facilities shall be granted not more than 120 days prior
to the date requested unless special permission is grantedThe City reserves the right to cancel a scheduled use in the event of
an anticipated violation of any rule, regulation or law or if a governmental user requires the use of the facility. Any
misrepresentation on the application may void any use of the facility.


__________ __________ Council Chambers, Public Safety Building – contact City Hall Receptionist (873-
6677)
__________ City Hall - Hall of Fame, Giles Dow, Ed Overland Room – contact City Hall Receptionist (873-6677)
__________ EMS Facilities – contact EMS Office (873-6500)
__________ Fire Station Training Room contact Fire Chief (873-7218) or firedept@ci.stoughton.wi.us
__________ Library Facilities – Contact the Library Director (873-6281)
__________ Senior Center Facilities – contact Senior Center Receptionist (873-8585)
__________ Library Facilities – Contact the Library Clerical Assistant (873-6281)
__________ Youth Center – contact Parks & Recreation Director (873-6746)


ORGANIZATION:


ORGANIZATION CONTACT:


Name:


Phone: Days: Evenings:


Name:


Address:


DATE OF MEETING:


Beginning
at


AM/PM Ending at AM/PM


ATTENDANCE – EST. TOTAL
DESCRIBE PLANNED
ACTIVITY IN DETAIL:


FACILITIES USE AGREEMENT: The undersigned application agrees to abide by all rules and regulations of the City of
Stoughton regarding use of city facilities, to hold harmless and to indemnify the City of Stoughton from any and all claims,
losses, damages, actions, causes of action and liabilities of any kind or nature whatsoever which are directly or indirectly
related to the use of the facilities described herein by the undersigned and any guests, friends or invitees which result in
injury or loss of property to any person using the facilities herein described. My organization/group will be responsible for
the repair or replacement of any damages to the facility. My organization/group agrees to comply with the conditions set
forth in the City of Stoughton Building Use Policy. My organization/group agrees to meet ADAA (Americans with
Disabilities Act) requirements and to provide accommodations to access the meeting or program.







Additional Requirements:


Signature:


Approved: Date:


FEES AND DEPOSITS


_________________________No Fee for Governmental Defined Users


_________________________ApplicationFlat Fee $10 per use


___hours at $15/hour _______ Hourly Rental Fee (starting ½ hour before
event and continuing ½ hour beyond event.)


_________________________ TOTAL


STOUGHTON AREA SENIOR CENTER
BUILDING USE POLICY


Adopted 9-27-05


When considering or allowing groups or individuals to use the Center there are several conditions to
be met in order for the facility to be used in a functional and practical way:


 Only lower level, annex room and main floor (street level) are available.


 Catered foods only.


 Minimal kitchen facilities in lower level and main floor available for final preparation of food
only.


 A person contracted by the City will be on duty to provide security and lock up. This would be a
person other than Senior Center staff, unless otherwise directed by the City. The cost of this will
be included in the fee.


 The ground and lower rooms are available for groups up to 80 persons.


 The main level is available for groups up to 150 persons.


USER FEES AND DEPOSITS


_________________________ NO FEE REQUIRED


_________________________ $60 Main Floor User Fee


_________________________ $25 Lower Level User Fee







_________________________ $30 *Refundable Deposit


_________________________ $6 per hour Security Fee


_________________________ TOTAL


Please make check payable to Stoughton Area Senior Center.


*Please submit separate check for refundable deposit.


Facilities must be left in the same condition as when the group took responsibility for the premises. The user
will be responsible for all damages to the building, furniture and any extra cleaning.







EXHIBIT “A”


PRE-APPROVED
CITY BUILDING USERS LIST


(This list is not intended to be all-inclusive, but rather a guide)


1. Any city government-connected committee including Stoughton Chamber of Commerce sponsored
programs that do not involve the sale, advertising or promotion of products or services. City employee work
related groups facilitated or hosted by City staff are considered government uses.


2. The following Stoughton area organizations:
1. American Legion
2. American Legion Auxiliary
3. Black Hawk Council of Girl Scouts
4. Boys Scouts of America
5. 4-H Clubs
6. Lioness Club
7. Lions Club
8. Masons – Kegonsa Lodge #73
9. Optimists
10. Stoughton Area Jaycees
11. Rotarians
12. VFW – Badger Post #328
13. VFW – Auxiliary
14. Stoughton Conservation Club
15. Stoughton Newcomers Club
16. Stoughton Historical Society
17. Exchange Club
18. PEO
19. Stoughton Business & Professional Women
20. Rebekahs
21. New Century Study Club
22. The Order of the Eastern Star – Venus Chapter #61
23. Pythian Sisters
24. International Club
25. ‘R’ Olde House Society
26. Stoughton Hospital Auxiliary
27. Stoughton Sports Boosters Club
28. City Band
29. Day of Prayer Group
30. Stoughton Chamber of Commerce and sub- committees
31. Neighborhood Associations
32. Relay for Life
33. Stoughton Area Youth Soccer, Baseball and Softball Associations


3. Any school oriented or parent sponsored group (both public and private school group).


4. Political forums.







EXHIBIT “BConditions Specific to the Stoughton Public Library are as follows[k8]:”


STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY
MEETING ROOM POLICY


I. Purpose


The Library Board and staff encourage the use of its meeting room space by and for the benefit of the
community including educational, cultural, intellectual or charitable activities.


II. Definitions


A. Carnegie Room: a large room which can accommodate up to 50 persons.


B. Conference Room: a small room which can accommodate up to 7 people.


III. Guidelines


A. Scheduling


1. The meeting room(s) may be reserved on a first-come, first-serve basis. Requests for use should
be submitted on the City of Stoughton Building Use Form no more than 120 days in advance.


2. Library endorsed programming/use will be given first priority for the space’s use.


B. Individuals and groups of a non-profit nature may reserve the room(s) whenever space is available.


C. The meeting room(s) will be available for use during library hours only. Groups must be out of the
building by closing time per the daily schedule. Staff will inform groups 15 minutes before closing.


D. Users must check in at the Circulation Desk prior to using the room(s).


E. Users must provide adequate supervisors, chaperones, and crowd control personnel to satisfy the library
administration and staff that the event will be controlled. The same conditions for use apply to those
using the meeting room(s) areas as in the library proper. (See Appropriate Library Behavior Policy).


F. Simple refreshments provided by the users may be served. The library has available a small refrigerator
and a coffee maker which may be used. Any food, etc. must be cleaned up and removed from the facility
at the end of the meeting. The coffee maker must be cleaned by users before leaving.


G. Decorations, wall hangings, or any other items may not be taped, stapled, glued, or in any way fastened or
adhered to any walls, windows, ceilings, or fixtures without prior permission and direction from the
Library Director or staff.


H. The library is not responsible for any equipment or other items left in the meeting room(s). Items left for
30 days may be disposed of in a manner deemed appropriate by the Library Director/ staff.


I. Collections of money or goods shall not be permitted, nor shall any function be held herein for which
tickets of admission have been sold except upon special permission of the City and/or Library
Board/Director.


J. Any misrepresentation upon reserving the room(s) shall void any use of that space.


K. The library has the following equipment available for use in the Carnegie Room: a large pull-down
screen, an opaque, overhead, or slide projector, a large screen TV and VCR.







L. Any of the equipment listed above must be reserved along with the room(s). An adult, 18 or older, must
be responsible for equipment reservation and use.


IV. Review and Appeal


Any group or individual who is refused permission to use the meeting room(s), or who has other
objections may appeal to the Library Board by filing the appeal in writing with the Library Director
within 10 days of the refusal or the grounds of appeal. The Library Board will hear the appeal at its next
regularly scheduled meeting.


V. Disclaimers


A. The City of Stoughton Municipal Building Use Policy has been adopted by the Library Board and will
govern use of the meeting rooms. (Appendix A)


B. The fact that a group is permitted use of the room(s) does not in any way constitute endorsement of the
group’s policies or beliefs by the City, Library Board, or staff.


C. All organizations/individuals using the Stoughton Public Library meeting room(s) will maintain
compliance with Federal, State and local laws and regulations regarding discrimination. This includes but
is not limited to the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act.


D. The Library Board/Director reserve the right to refuse use of the room as deemed necessary according to
this policy.


E. This policy may be subject to change based on need or circumstances as approved by the library board at
any regularly scheduled meeting.


Adopted: August 9, 2001
Revised: July 11, 2003
Revised: April 14, 2005





		Building Use Resolution.pdf

		Buildin Use Policy 1.pdf

		Building Use Policy 2.pdf






I Stafford Rosen ba u fl'ì LLp


É:Tforr':*ys


Re


Menabet of LEGUS lnternational Netwotk of Lau Fbns


Laura B, Callan


222 West Washington Àvenue, Suite 900
P.O. Box 1784


Madison, WI 53701-1784
lcallan@staffordlaw. com
608.259.2644


Iuly 24,2015
VIA HAND-DELIVERY


Dane County Clerk of Court
215 S. Hamilton Street
Madison, WI53703


Stoughton Forward, et al. v. City of Stoughton, et al
Case No.: 2015-CV-1847


Dear Clerk of Court


Enclosed for filling in the above-referenced matter are the Defendant City of Stoughton's Notice


of Motion and Motion to Dismiss Pursuant to Wis. Stat. $ 502.06(2) and Brief in Support of
Motion to Dismiss. 


.We 
are also providing copies of these documents to the assigned judge, the


Honorable Juan B. Colás.


By copy of this letter, we are serving copies of these pleadings on counsel for the plaintiffs and


counsel for the other defendants as indicated below. Thank you for your attention to this matter.


Very truly yours,


STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP


Callan


LEC:saa
Enclosures
cc: Honorable Juan B. Colás (with enclosures)(via hand delivery)


Attorney Dennis M. Grzezinski (with enclosures)(via email)
Attorney Jordan Hemaidan (with enclosures)(via email)
Attorney Jessica Hutson Polakowski (with enclosures)(via email)


Madison Office Milwaukee Office


1200 North Mayfair Road


Suite 410


Milwaukee, \Y/isconsin


53226-)282


222 \lest \üashington Avenue


P,O. Box 17B4


Madison, Visconstn


5J701."1784


608.256.0226


888.655.4752


Fax608,259,2600
mnv.staffordlaw.com


41,4.982.2850


888,655.4752


Fax474982.2889


wrvw.staffotdlaw,com







STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT
Branch 10


DANE COLTNTY


STOUGHTON FORWARD,
LESLIE "BUZZ" W. DAVIS III,
KAY DAVIS and
TERRY PARISI,


Case No. 15-CV-1847


Plaintiffs,
Case Code: 30701
Case Classification: Declaratory
Judgment


CITY OF STOUGHTON,
KETTLE PARK WEST LLC ANd


V/AL-MART REAL ESTATE
BUSINESS TRUST,


Defendants


DEFENDANT CITY OF STOUGHTON'S NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION
TO DTSMTSS PURSUANT TO WIS. STAT. S 802.06(2)


TO Stoughton Forward
Leslie "Brzz"'W. Davis III
Kay Davis
Terry Parisi
c/o Dennis M. Grzezinski
Law Office of Dennis M. Grzezinski
1845 N. Farwell Avenue, Suite 202


Milwaukee,'WI 53202


PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the defendant, City of Stoughton, by its attorneys,


Stafford Rosenbaum LLP, hereby moves the Court pursuant to V/is. Stat' $ 802.06(2) for


an order dismissing the complaint on the grounds that the complaint fails to state a claim


upon which relief can be granted. This motion shall be heard before the Honorable Juan


B. Colás, Circuit Court Judge, Branch 10, Dane County Courthouse,2l5 S. Hamilton


V







S=treet, Madison, \MjSconsin on August ,2A15, et 
- 


a'm-þ.m.- The grounds for this


motion are as set forth in the accompanying brief.


Dated IulY 24,2015.


(1


Lavra C.allan (1 CI I 73 53)
Stafford Rosçnbaum LLP
222 W çstWashington Avenue, Suíte 900


P, O. Box 1784
MatlisorL WI 5370 I-L784
608-256-A226
Attonreys for Defendant Cit5r of
Stoughton


J







STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT
Branch 10


DANE COI.NTY


STOUGHTON FORWARD,
LESLIE "BUZZ" W. DAVIS III,
KAY DAVIS and
TERRY PARISI,


Plaintiffs


CITY OF STOUGHTON,
KETTLE PARK WEST LLC ANd


WAL-MART REAL ESTATE
BUSINESS TRUST,


Defendants


Case No. 15-CV-1847


Case Code: 30701
Case Classification: Declaratory
Judgment


V


DEF'ENDANT CITY OF STOUGHTON'S
BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS


. SHORT STATEMENT OF THE CASE


The Cþ of Stoughton (the 'oCity") created, and approved a project plan for, Tax


Incremental District No. 7 pursuant to Wisconsin's Tax Increment Law, Wis. Stat'


$ 66.1105.1 To implement the provisions and effectuate the pu{poses of the project plan,


the City entered into a development agreement with defendant Kettle Park West LLC (the


"Developer") and approved a three-party agreement among the City, the Developer and


defendant Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust ("Walmart").


I All references to the Wisconsin Statutes are to the 2013-14 electronic version updated through 2015 Wisconsin Act


54 andpublished luly 7,2015.







The plaintiffs claim, as a matter of law, that the development agreement and three-


party agreement "amount to amendments of the project plan" in that they "significantly


alter the parties to whom payments may be made by the City, and to whom the City is or


may be obligated in connection with the project," arrd therefore require the City to


comply with the procedural requirements of Wis. Stat. $ 66.1105(4Xh) regarding project


plan amendments.2 Complaint,n2T. This claim is wrong.


Nothing in the development agreement or the three-pafi agreement alters or is in


any way inconsistent with any statement in the project plan. The project plan specifically


states that the City will enter into agreements with one or more developers and may enter


into an agreement with 'Walmart. Complaint, Exhibit A at pp. 7-8. The City is not


required to amend the project plan, and the development agreement and three-party


agreement (once executed) are valid contracts. Because Stoughton Forward has not pled,


and cannot plead, facts sufficient to show that the City was required to comply with Wis'


Stat. g 66.1105(4)(h) before approving the agreements in question, the complaint must be


dismissed.


MOTION TO DISMISS STANDARD


"A motion to dismiss for failure to state a claim tests the legal suff,rciency of the


complaint ." John Doe I v. Archdiocese of Milwaukee, 2007 WI 95, 1l 12,303 Wis.2d 34,


734 N.W.2d827. Upon a motion to dismiss, the court accepts as true all facts well-


2 The plaintiffs are Stoughton Forward, an unincorporated association, and three individuals who, according to the


complãint, reside or owriproperty in the City. Complaint at fl'lf l-4. For ease of reference, this brief will referto the


plaintiffs collectively as "Stoughton Forward."


2







pleaded in the complaint and the reasonable inferences therefrom. Kalotí Enters., Inc' v'


Kettogg Sales Co,2005 WI 111, 1T 11,283 Wis.2d 555,699 N.W'2d 205. Legal


conclusions stated in the complaint, however, are not accepted as true, and they are


insufficient to enable a complaint to withstand a motion to dismiss. 1d. Therefore, it is


important for a court considering a motion to dismiss to accurately distinguish pleaded


facts from pleaded legal conclusions.


A complaint must plead facts, which if true, would entitle the plaintiff to relief'


Wis. Stat. g 802.02(1)(a). The sufficiency of the complaint depends on the substantive


law that underlies the claim made because it is the substantive law that drives what facts


must be pled. Data Key Partners y. Permira Advisers, LLC,2014 WI 86, T31, 356


V/is.2d 665, 849 N.V/.2d 693. With these principles in mind, the City turns to the


substantive law underlying Stoughton Forward's claim.


\ilISCONSIN'S TAX INCREMENT LAW


Wisconsin Statutes $ 66.1105, the Tax Increment Law, is a financing tool that


allows municipalities to invest in infrastructure and other public improvements, using


property tax revenue from the newly developed property. An area is identified (the tax


incremental district or TID) as appropriate for a certain type of development, and public


improvements are identified to encourage and facilitate the desired private development.


See City of Hartþrd v. Kirtey, 172 Wis.2d 191, 198-99,493 N.W.2d 45 (1992). Then as


property values rise, the property tax paid on that private development is used by the


municipality to pay project costs of the districf". Id.


a
-)







Wisconsin Stat. g 66.1105(4)(f) prescribes the contents of the project plan. The


statute does not require that the project plan identiff who a city may contract with, or to


whom a city may be tiable in connection with a project cost.


Wisconsin Stat. $ 66.1105(3) authorizes a city to exercise any powers necessary


and convenient to carry out the purposes of the Tax Increment Law. These powers


include the power to "[e]nter into any contracts or agreements ... determined by the


[common council] to be necessary or convenient to implement the provisions and


effectuate the purposes of project plans." Wis. Stat. $ 66.1105(3)(e).


Finally, Wis. Stat. $ 66.1 105(4Xh) provides that "[t]he planning commission may,


by resolution, adopt an amendment to a project plan" subject to approval by the cornmon


council.


THE KEY DOCUMENTS


. In order to assess the legal sufficiency of Stoughton Forward's complaint, the City


provides the following background regarding the project plan, the development


agreement and the three-party agreement.3


A. The Project Plan


The project plan for Tax Incremental Financing District No. 7 (the "Project Plan")


contains each of the statutorily required elements of a project plan. Wis. Stat.


$ 66.1105(4XÐ and Complaint, Exhibit A, Project Plan at Table of Contents. Table I of


3 Copies of these documents are attached to the complant. See Petersonv. Voll<swagen of Am., [nc.,2005 WI 61,


1J 15, 23l Wis.2d 39,691N.W.zd 61 (when reviewing a motion to dismiss, a court considers only the facts set forth


in the complaint and any other documents attached to the complaint).


4







the Project Plan lists the proposed public improvements provided for by the Project Plan,


and the estimated cost of the projects. Complaint, Exhibit A, Project Plan at p. 4,


Table I. D


The Project Plan provides that the "City will enter into an agreement with the


developers" and anticipates that "prospective businesses may be required to sign


individual development agreements prior to aîy City-incurred development


expenditures." Id. at pp. 7 and 8. Walmart is identified in the Project Plan as a business


to be located in the district. Id. at Table II, p. 7 . One purpose of these agreements is to


require the Developer and 
'Walmart to create or guarantee new tax assessment value in


the district. Id. at pp. 7 and 8.


B. The Development Agreement


The Second Amended and Restated Agreement to Undertake Development (the


"Development Agreement") sets forth the agreement between the City and the Developer


relating to a development referred to as Kettle Park West. Complaint, Exhibit B. The


Development Agreement requires the Developer to construct several categories of public


improvements needed to serve the Kettle Park'West development, and describes each


party's obligations relating to financing the public improvements. Id. at $$ 8.1(b) and C.


The public improvements to be financed with tax increment are the same public


improvements identified in the Project Plan. Complaint, Exhibit A, Project Plan at p'4,


Table I; Complaint, ExhibitB at $$ C.I,C.2 and C'3.


5







C. Three'Party Agreement


The Three-Party Agreement sets forth an agreement among the City, the


Developer and Walmart relating to ÏValmart's construction of a new store in the Kettle


Park West development. The Three-Parfy Agreement requires Walmart to construct a


new store and open the new store for business before the end of 2017. 1d. at $ III. The


Three-Party Agreement also requires Walmart to guarantee to the City that its new store


will have an assessed value of not less than $12,000,000. Id.


. Finally, the Three-Party Agreement provides that if the Developer fails to


complete the public improvements needed to serve the Kettle Park West development, as


specified in the Development Agreement, the City will use the tools and resources


available to the City under the Development Agreement to pursue prompt completion of


the public improvements. Id. at $ II. The Three-Party Agreement does not provide for


any payments to be made by the City to Walmart.


ARGUMENT


Whether the City is required to amend the Project Plan before entering into the


Development Agreement or Three-Party Agreement is a question of law involving


interpretation of Wis. Stat. 66.1105(4)(h) and the agreemenÍs. Seíder v. O'Connell,2000


WI 76, n26,236 Wis.2dzll,612 N.W.2d 659 (statutory interpretation is a question of


law); Admanco, Inc. v. 700 Stanton Drive, LLC, 2010 WI76, T 15, 326 Wis.2d 586' 786


N.W.2d 759 (interpretation of an unambiguous contract presents questions of law).


6







Stoughton Forward's claim that the City must adopt an amendment to the Project Plan


before the agreements can be valid is without merit.


The Tax Increment Law does not require that a project plan speciSz the parties


with whom the City will contract to implement or effectuate the Project Plan. ,See 
'Wis.


Stat. g 66.1105(4XÐ. Wisconsin Stat. $ 66.1105(3)(e) gives the City broad authority to


enter into contracts with any party so long as the City deems the contract necessary or


convenient to implement the Project Plan or effectuate its purposes. Moreover, the


Project Plan does not limit the parties with whom the City may contract. Complaint,


Exhibit A, Project Plan. Therefore, there is no need for the City to amend the Project


Plan to include a description of parties with whom the City will contract in carrying out


the Project Plan.


Stoughton Forward alleges that the City is required to amend the Project Plan to


name Walmart and the Developer as parties with whom the City may contract. This


allegation is bizarre since the Project Plan, although not required to do so by statute,


actually states that the City may enter into contracts with Walmart and a developer or


developers. Complaint, Exhibit A, Project Plan, at ppJ and 8. Obviously, the City's


decision to approve contracts with a developer and Walmart does not "aLfef'the Project


Plan when the Project Plan explicitly states that the City may enter into contracts with a


developer and Walmart.


7







CONCLUSION


The City is not required to amend the Project Plan before it may contract with ttre


Developer and 
.Wahnafi. 


Stoughton Forwa¡d has not pled and cannot plead facts to show


that any provision in the Developrnent Agreement or the Three-Party Agreement


modifies or is in any way inconsistent with the Project Plan. Accordingly, the Cþ


respectfu-lly requests that the Court grant its motion and dismiss the complaint with


prejudice.


Dated: July 24,20l5.


(sBN 10032s4)
Laura"Callan (SBN 1017353)
Stafford Rosenbaum LLP
222 W estWashington Avenue, Suite 900


P. O. B,ox 1784
Madison, WI 53701-t784
6CI8-256-0226
Attorneys forDefendant Cþ of StouglÚon


I








Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, July 14, 2015 @ 7:00 P.M. 


Location:  Council Chambers at the Public Safety Building (2nd floor) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Ron Christianson, Eric Hohol, Greg Jenson, 


Michael Engelberger, Tom Majewski, Tom Selsor, Regina Hirsch, Tim 


Swadley, Sonny Swangstu, Pat O’Connor 


 


CALL TO ORDER 
 


Mayor Olson called the meeting of the Common Council to order at 7:00 p.m. 


 


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations 


 


Finance Director Sullivan called the roll.  She noted that there were eleven alderpersons present, with 


Swadley absent and excused. 


 


Mayor Olson recognized Sara Monette for yet another award for her recently published novel.   


 


Mayor Olson also recognized Utilities Lineman McClain and Hartman, who were  in Columbus helping 


restore power after the recent storm. 


 


Kettle Park West Update 


 


Planning Director Scheel reported that the DOT MOU’s are in draft form for council review 


tonight. 


 


WPPI Presentation: “WPPI Energy: The Power of Many”  


 


Utilities Director Kardasz introduced Mike Peters, President/CEO WPPI Energy, who gave a 


presentation to update the Council on WPPI power supply and contract extension.   


 


 


Minutes and Reports: The following minutes and reports were entered into the record: 


 


 Minutes:  Finance Committee (6/9/2015), Arts Council Committee (1/21/2015), Utilities 


Committee (6/15/2015) and Tree Commission (6/10/2015) 


 Reports: Utilities Financial Statement 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 







Public Comment Period 


 


 Marita Kehl, 1228 Lake Kegonsa Road:  Spoke against the Kettle Park West Development.  


 


Lisa Nelson, Wal-Mart Public Relations:  Thanked the Council and Staff for their hard work.  She is 


excited to expand and invest in the Community. 


 


Deborah Tomczyk, Wal-Mart Attorney:  Spoke in favor of the three-party agreement. 


 


Terry Parisi, 3718 Halverson Road:  Spoke in opposition of the Kettle Park West Project. 


 


Dan O’Callaghan, Forward Development Group Attorney:  Spoke in favor of moving forward with the 


project and approving the items on tonight’s agenda. 


 


 


 


CONSENT AGENDA 
 


A. Council Minutes: June 23, 2015 


B. R-104-2015- Mayor’s Appointments to the Landmarks Commission 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Hohol. Motion carried unanimously 


by acclamation 11-0 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


R-99-2015- Approving the use of contingency amounts in the Kettle Park West Development 


Agreement 


 


Motion by Hohol, to approve use of contingency as stated in R-99-2015, second by Lawrence. 


Hohol explained that the resolution was tabled at the last meeting because the bids were not yet 


in and need for the funds was not shown. 


 


Motion to amend the main motion by Selsor, to state that contingency funds will only be used for 


those projects specified and will not be paid until that part of the project is completed and not 


paid up front, second by Majewski. Selsor withdrew the amendment to the motion and Majewski 


withdrew his second. 


 


Engelberger asked Finance Director Sullivan what are the amounts of the contingency.  Sullivan 


stated that the amounts of the contingency funds are in the development agreement. There are 


$311,707 for offsite improvements, and $210,355 for storm water improvements. 


 


Alder Hohol explained that the numbers in the development agreement are engineering estimates 


that were done three years ago and that the City has the bid numbers that reflect the actual costs. 


 


Attorney O’Callaghan addressed the Council to assure that the budget for the project has room 


for additional contingencies. 







 


Engelberger requested that the dollar amounts of the staff and attorney costs accumulated be 


reported to the council, when they become available. 


 


Motion carried by a roll call vote 6-5, with Hirsch, Selsor, Majewski, Engelberger, and Boersma 


voting noe. 


 


 


O-2-2015- Amending Multiple Sections of the Historic Preservation Ordinance – Chapter  38 of 


the Stoughton Municipal Code  


 


Motion by Engelberger, to approve O-2-2015 relating to the Historic Preservation Ordinance, second by 


Lawrence.     


 


Lawrence questioned what the authority limitation was to the commission outlined in paragraph 38 of 


the ordinance. Landmarks Commission Chair Peggy Vereden stated that the commission’s authority 


would be limited to the outside appearance of any landmark.  


 


Motion carried unanimously by acclamation 11-0. 


 


 


O-3-2015- Amending the City of Stoughton Municipal Zoning Ordinance Section’s 78-206(4)(r); 


78-105(4)(b)2; 78-105(4)(c) and Appendix C- Relating to artisan studios and artisan production 


shops.  


 


Motion by Christianson to approve O-3-2015 relating to artisan studios and shops, seconded by Hohol.  


Christianson noted that this ordinance would allow artisan studios and shops within the community.   


 


Motion carried unanimously by acclamation  11-0. 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


R-102-2015- Resolution to approve the three party agreement relating to the Kettle Park West 


Development  


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve R-102-2015, second by Jenson.  Lawrence noted that this resolution 


was discussed at the last Committee of the Whole meeting at length. 


 


Selsor spoke against the Kettle Park West project and the process that was used to get to where the 


project is currently. He also spoke to the other council members that have voted for this development 


and encouraged them to explain why they have voted in favor. 


 


Boersma feels that the three party agreement should contain additional consideration from Wal-Mart to 


help support the community, such as money given to the City to aid in the coordination of  transportation 


for elderly citizens to travel to Wal-Mart. 







 


Christianson stated that he has consistently voted in favor of the Kettle Park west project.  He has voted 


for this project because he feels that the development is good for the city and that the city needs to be 


more open to developers.  Wal-Mart has come to the City for the second time asking to be an expanded 


part of our community and he fears that this will be the last time they offer any development to the City 


of Stoughton. 


 


Hirsch asked how the bid bonds work, and who holds them for the Kettle Park West development.  City 


Attorney Dregne explained that the bid bonds are issued by the contractor to both the developer and the 


City.  If the developer does not hold up their obligation the City will be able to make a claim against the 


assurance company. 


 


Wal-Mart’s attorney Debbie Tomczyk spoke to the Council regarding other Wal-Mart agreements with 


cities in the State.  She stated that she is not aware of any instances where Wal-Mart has not completed 


its obligations under the agreement. 


 


Alder Lawrence relayed his belief that the Council is representative of the public.  He looks at his vote 


for this project as a vote on the facts, not on the half-truths and activist statements meant to confuse the 


public. He re-affirmed that this development is good for Stoughton. 


 


Motion carried by a roll call vote 6-5, with Boersma, Engelberger, Hirsch, Majewski, and Selsor voting 


noe. 


 


R-103-2015- Resolution to approve the Collateral Assignment of Development Agreement 


relating to the Kettle Park West Development.  


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve R-103-2015, second by Christianson. Attorney Dregne told the council 


that the language requested by the Committee of the Whole is included in the agreement before the 


council tonight. 


 


Motion carried on a roll call vote of  9-1, with Engelberger voting noe and Majewski abstaining. 


 


 


R-101-2015- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to approve the Agreement For 


Disposition Of Available Borrow Material at the City of Stoughton (Stoughton Utilities) property 


at 3201 McComb Road   


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve R-101-2015, second by Swangstu. Utilities Director Kardasz 


discussed the agreement and outlined how the agreement helps Utilities achieve their goals for 


the property.  Kardasz feels that this is a win-win situation for both Utilities and the Kettle Park 


West development. 


 


Motion carried by roll call vote 8-3, with Hirsch, Boersma and Majewski voting noe. 


 


 


 







R-105-2015- Consideration of a Resolution authorizing a Maintenance Agreement with the Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation.  


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve R-105-2015, second by Christianson.  Planning Director Scheel used a 


map exhibit to describe the maintenance areas contained in the agreement, relating to the City shared use 


path. He noted that the City will be required to mow adjacent to it and maintain the crosswalks. 


 


Motion carried on a roll call vote of 8-1 Engelberger voting noe and Selsor and Hirsch abstaining. 


 


 R-106-2015- Consideration of a Resolution authorizing an Access Agreement with the Wisconsin 


Department of Transportation. 


 


Motion by Lawrence, to approve R-106-2015, second by Hohol. to approve R-106-2015.  Planning 


Director Scheel shared a map exhibit to describe the access on State Highway 138. 


 


Motion carried on a roll call vote of 7-3, with Engelberger, Hirsch and Majewski voting noe with Hirsch 


abstaining. 


 


ADJOURNMENT 


 


Motion by Hohol, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by Swangstu. Mayor Olson 


adjourned the meeting of the Common Council at  9:35 p.m. 








 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Confirming the Mayor’s Committee Appointment of Sarah Bukrey to the Stoughton Arts Council. 


 


 


 


Committee Action:  
  Fiscal Impact: 


N/A 


 


 
File Number: 


 
R-107-2015 


 
Date Adopted:  July 28, 2015                                  


 
WHEREAS, the Mayor has submitted the appointment of Sarah Bukrey to the Stoughton Arts Council 


for the 2015-2016 term for Council confirmation; and 


 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) 


confirm the Mayor’s appointment of Sarah Bukrey to the Stoughton Arts Council. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


 


 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 


 








T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2015 PACKETS\7-28-2015\O-14-2015- 517 Kensington Sq- Phelps GDP 15.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending the General Development Plan at 517 Kensington Square for a proposed deck addition.   


Committee Action:    Planning Commission recommend Council approval 7 - 0 with the Mayor voting 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O-14-2015 Date Introduced: 


Re-Introduced: 


July 28, 2015 


August 11, 2015 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 


 


1. Elvera Phelps (Brian Phelps) (the “Owner”) has requested that the General Development Plan for 


the property described in #2 below (the “Property”) be amended to allow for a deck addition 


subject to certain conditions being satisfied. 


 


2. The property known as 517 Kensington Square is more formally described as follows: 517 


Kensington Square, Parcel # 281/0511-063-1099-3, Kensington Square 


Condominium – Phase 1, Unit 517. 
 


3. The Owner has submitted a General Development Plan for the proposed deck addition (the 


“GDP Documents”), attached. 


 


4. For purposes of this Ordinance, all GDP Documents shall collectively be the General 


Development Plan for the Property pursuant to Section 78-914(7) of the City of Stoughton Code 


of Ordinances. 


 


5. The Planned Development District is intended to provide a voluntary regulatory framework 


designed to encourage and promote improved environmental and aesthetic design in the City by 


allowing for greater design freedom, imagination and flexibility in the development of land while 


insuring substantial compliance with the basic intent of the City’s Zoning Ordinance and 


Comprehensive Plan.  
 


 


6. On July 13, 2015, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding 


the application to amend the General Development Plan, which was preceded by the publication 


of a class 2 notice under chapter 985 of the Wisconsin Statutes.  The Planning Commission 


considered the application, and recommend the Common Council approve the proposed General 


Development Plan subject to: 


 


 Planning & Development staff review letter dated July 6, 2015. 


 







7. The Common Council determines that, subject to certain conditions, amending the General 


Development Plan is consistent with the spirit and intent of the City’s Zoning Code, has the 


potential for producing significant community benefits in terms of environmental and aesthetic 


design, promotes the public health, safety and general welfare of the City, and allows appropriate 


use of the Property. 


 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows: 


 


Section 1 - The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set 


forth in full.   


 


Section 2 - Subject to the conditions set forth in section 4 below, the General Development Plan has 


been amended pursuant to section 78-914 of the City Code and Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(d). 


 


Section 3 - The Property shall be developed and used in full compliance with the General 


Development Plan.  The General Development Plan shall constitute the zoning regulations for the 


Property, may be enforced as any other zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton, and shall be 


maintained and kept on file by the Department of Planning & Development. 


 


Section 4 - This ordinance shall take effect upon publication contingent on the staff review letter 


dated July 6, 2015.    


 


Section 5 - Upon the effective date of this ordinance, the General Development Plan shall be the 


zoning for this property and shall be shown on the official zoning map as PD - Planned 


Development. 


 


Section 6 - All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith shall hereby be repealed. 


 


 
 


 


Dates 


Council Adopted:   


 


Mayor Approved:             


       Donna Olson, Mayor 


Published:    


 


Attest:              


        City Clerk 


 


 


 


 


 


 
S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\O-  -15 517 Kensington Sq GDP 15.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\07-13-15\Planning Materials\Phelps GDP Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 13, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting and Common
Council meetings of July 28 and August 11, 2015.


1. Elvera Phelps requests to amend the General Development Plan to accommodate a deck
addition at 517 Kensington Square.
This general development plan amendment is requested to accommodate a deck addition. This
type of request has been approved in the past for Kensington Square Condominiums. The site
plan, staff review and related materials are provided. A public hearing and recommendation to
Council is necessary. Staff recommends approval contingent on the staff review letter dated
July 6, 2015.







































 


Planning
Geophysical
Water Resources
Parcels


House Number
CSM Text
Plat Labels
Tax Parcels


April 20, 2015
0 0.0085 0.0170.00425 mi


0 0.01 0.020.005 km


1:355


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line











CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


July 6, 2015
Elvera Phelps
517 Kensington Square
Stoughton, WI. 53589


Dear Ms. Phelps:


I have completed a final review of the proposed request to amend the General Development Plan
for a deck addition at 517 Kensington Square, Stoughton. Site plan submitted 6/15/15. Site
inspection completed on 7/6/15. As noted, additional information may be required to be
provided or shown on the plan.


1. The property at 517 Kensington Square is currently zoned PD -Planned Development. This
request for a deck addition is considered an expansion of the previously approved
Planned Unit Development for the Kensington Square Condominiums. The proposed
expansion now requires an amendment that original plan, now called the General
Development Plan. A public hearing is scheduled for the Planning Commission
meeting on July 13, 2015 of which you will receive notice. You and/or your
representative will need to attend the meeting to answer questions. A Planning
Commission recommendation is sent on to the Common Council for final
review/approval (expected Council approval date: August 11, 2015).


2. The Planned Development District is intended to provide incentives for redevelopment in
areas of the community which are experiencing a lack of reinvestment, or which require
flexible zoning treatment because of factors which are specific to the site. This district is
designed to forward both aesthetic and economic objectives of the City by controlling the
site design and the land use, appearance, density or intensity of development within the
district in a manner which is consistent with the sound land use, urban design, and economic
revitalization principles. The application of these standards will ensure long-term progress
and broad participation toward these principles. Section 78-914 provides regulations which
govern the procedure and requirements for review and approval/denial, of the proposed
Planned Development, and to provide for the possible relaxation of certain development
standards pertaining to the underlying standard zoning district. The standard zoning
district for the 2-unit residential structure is TR-6 – Two-Family Residential. The TR-
6 district requirements will be used as a guide for this General Development Plan
Amendment.


3. The TR-6 district requires a rear lot line minimum setback of 30 feet and a side yard
minimum setback of 10 feet to a principal structure. The zoning code also allows a 20-foot
minimum rear setback for decks which do not extend more than 1-foot above grade. The







S:\Planning\MPS\Property Log Folder\517 Kensington Square\Phelps GDP Final Letter.doc


proposed deck addition (GDP) plan indicates a rear setback of 20 feet. Lot stakes have
been identified by a licensed surveyor. Upon a staff inspection, the proposed deck
setback appears to be between 19 and 20 feet. Decks over 2 feet from grade require a
minimum 3-foot guard rail that restricts the passing of a 4-inch or larger sphere. The
side yard setback is well over the 10-foot side yard setback requirement. The closer
rear setback is not uncommon within this condominium development and previous
approved (GDP) amendments. The property adjacent to the rear is a City owned
greenway.


4. If approved, all appropriate City of Stoughton building permits are required before
construction.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on
Monday, July 13, 2015, at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may
be heard, in the Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street,
Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider amending the General Development
Plan (GDP) to accommodate a deck addition at 517 Kensington Square,
Kensington Condominiums, in the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. The property at
517 Kensington Square is owned by Brian Phelps and is more fully described as:


517 Kensington Square, Parcel # 281/0511-063-1099-3, Kensington Square
Condominium – Phase 1, Unit 517.


For questions related to this notice, contact Michael Stacey at 608-646-0421


Lana Kropf
City Clerk


Published June 25, 2015 and July 2, 2015 HUB


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Rezoning GDP 517 Kensington Sq.doc







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 7-13-15.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, July 13, 2015 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice-Chair; Matt Hanna;
Eric Hohol; Todd Krcma; Pat O’Connor and Scott Truehl
Absent: None
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey
Press: Mark Ignatowski
Guests: Rose Gunsolus; Marlene Judd; Brian Phelps; Elvera Phelps; Brian Spanos; Nicole
Hines; Jordan Tilleson; Tom Selsor; Otto Callies; Debbie Callies; Barbara Arnold; Robert
Arnold; and Richard Stark.


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of June 8, 2015.
Motion by Truehl to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by O’Connor. Motion carried
7-0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson stated O-3-15 was approved related to Artisan Studios and R-94-15 was also
approved for a Group Daycare at 1425 E. Main Street.


4. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments. There were no questions.


5. Elvera Phelps requests to amend the General Development Plan to accommodate a
deck addition at 517 Kensington Square.
Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak at the public hearing.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Scheel summarized the request.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve the GDP amendment
contingent on the staff review letter dated July 6, 2015, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 7 -
0.


6. Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines request a conditional use permit for a commercial
animal boarding use (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. Main Street.
Scheel summarized the request.



mstacey

Highlight





		5-O-14-2015- 517 Kensington Sq- Phelps GDP 15.pdf

		Phelps GDP Amendment.pdf






 


23268105 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Approving an amended Specific Implementation Plan (" Amended SIP") for certain property on 


the north side of State Highway 138, west of US Highway 51. 


(Walmart) 


 


Committee Action: Recommend Approval 


Fiscal Impact: None 


File Number: O- 15-2015 Date Introduced:  July 28, 2015 


 


 


 


RECITALS 


A. On November 12, 2013, the Common Council adopted Ordinance No. 0-23-2013, (the "GDP 


Ordinance"), changing the zoning classification of the property described on Exhibit A (the "Property") 


to PD and approving the components of a proposed General Development Plan (the "GDP") 


incorporated into the GDP Ordinance with the changes specifically noted in such GDP Ordinance. 


B. On November 25, 2014, the Common Council adopted Ordinance No. 0-29-2014, attached hereto as 


Exhibit B-1 approving an amended and restated GDP Ordinance (the "Amended GDP Ordinance") and 


an amended GDP Plan (the "Amended GDP"). 


C. On November 25, 2014, the Common Council adopted Ordinance No. 0-30-2014, attached hereto as 


Exhibit B-2 (the "Original SIP Ordinance"), approving Walmart Real Estate Business Trust's (the 


"Applicant") specific implementation plan (the "SIP").  


D. The Applicant desires to amend the SIP to develop those portions of the Property described on Exhibit C 


(the "Walmart Site") and has submitted revised plans for the Walmart Site, consisting of the following: 


a. Specific Implementation Plan General Written Description updated June 16, 2015, and attached 


hereto as Exhibit D; 


b. Site Plan and Design Information/Written Description of The Intended Use updated June 16, 


2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit E; 


c. Specific Implementation Plan Supplemental Submittal - Narrative Statement updated June 16, 


2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit F; 


d. Specific Implementation Plan Supplemental Submittal - Narrative Statement updated June 16, 


2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit G; 


e. Comprehensive Plan Map 6a depicting the Walmart Site and attached hereto as Exhibit H; 


f. Site Aerial Exhibit dated November 5, 2014, revised June 15, 2015, and attached hereto as 


Exhibit I; 


g. Overall Site Dimensional and Paving Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015, and 


attached hereto as Exhibit J; 


h. Colored Landscape Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 (3 sheets), and attached 


hereto as Exhibit K; 


i. Landscape Surface Ratio Exhibit dated July 23, 2014, last revised June 17, 2015, and attached 


hereto as Exhibit L; 







 


 


j. Cross Section of West Buffer Area dated May 29, 2014, revised June 15, 2015, and attached 


hereto as Exhibit M; 


k. Landscape Island Details, dated May 29, 2014, last revised November 10, 2014 (2 sheets), and 


attached hereto as Exhibit N; 


l. Photometrics Plan dated August 13, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015, and attached hereto as 


Exhibit O; 


m. Building Elevations dated June 16, 2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit P; 


n. Building and Site Signage dated June 16, 2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit Q;  


o. Renderings dated June 16, 2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit R; and 


p. Garden Center Enclosure dated June 16, 2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit S. 


q. Grading Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015, and attached hereto as Exhibit T. 


 


E. On July 27, 2015, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing regarding the SIP 


amendment application which was preceded by the publication of a Class 2 notice under Chapter 985 of 


the Wisconsin Statutes. 


F. On July 27, 2015, the Planning Commission recommended approving the amendment to the SIP. 


G. The Common Council hereby approves the amended SIP ("Amended SIP "). 


ORDINANCE 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin does ordain as follows: 


1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance as if set forth in full. 


2. The Amended SIP is approved, and this ordinance ("Amended SIP Ordinance") is hereby adopted as set 


forth herein, pursuant to section 78-914 of the City Code and Wis. Stat. § 62.23(7)(d).  Those deviations 


from the City's Code approved in the Original SIP Ordinance are hereby ratified and approved.  The 


Original SIP Ordinance and this Amended SIP Ordinance shall be referred to herein as the "SIP 


Ordinance".  Except as modified herein, the Original SIP Ordinance remains in full force and effect.  


3. The approved SIP Ordinance shall expire for the Walmart Site if it is not fully developed by 


November 12, 2023. 


4. The Walmart Site shall be developed and used in full compliance with all standards and requirements in 


Chapter 78 of the City Code that apply to lands zoned Planned Business, except those standards and 


requirements that are expressly modified in Ordinance No. 0-29-2014, Ordinance No. O-30-2014 or this 


ordinance.  Chapter 78 of the City Code, the Amended GDP Ordinance, the approved SIP, and the 


amended SIP shall constitute the zoning regulations for the Walmart Site, and may be enforced as any 


other zoning regulation in the City of Stoughton.  A copy of the Amended GDP Ordinance, the SIP 


Ordinance and Amended SIP Ordinance shall be maintained and kept on file by the City Clerk. 







 


 


5. This ordinance shall take effect upon publication. 


Council Adopted:   


 


 


Mayor Approved:   


 


  


Donna Olson, Mayor 


Published:   


 


 


Attest:     


City Clerk 


 


Attachment:  Exhibit A - Legal Description of the Property 


Exhibit B-1 - Ordinance No. 0-29-2014 


Exhibit B-2 - Ordinance No. 0-30-2014 


Exhibit C -  Legal Description of the Walmart Site 


Exhibit D -  Specific Implementation Plan General Written Description updated June 16, 2015 


Exhibit E - Site Plan and Design Information/Written Description of The Intended Use updated 


June 16, 2015 


Exhibit F - Specific Implementation Plan Supplemental Submittal - Narrative  


 Statement updated June 16, 2015 


Exhibit G - Specific Implementation Plan Supplemental Submittal - Narrative  


 Statement updated June 16, 2015 


Exhibit H - Comprehensive Plan Map 6a depicting the Walmart Site 


Exhibit I - Site Aerial Exhibit dated November 5, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 


Exhibit J - Overall Site Dimensional and Paving Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 


15, 2015 


Exhibit K - Colored Landscape Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 


Exhibit L - Landscape Surface Ratio Exhibit dated July 23, 2014, last revised June 17, 2015 


Exhibit M - Cross Section of West Buffer Area dated May 29, 2014, revised June 15, 2015 


Exhibit N - Landscape Island Details, dated May 29, 2014, last revised November 10, 2014 (2 


sheets) 


Exhibit O - Photometrics Plan dated August 13, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 


Exhibit P - Building Elevations dated June 16, 2015 


Exhibit Q - Building and Site Signage dated June 16, 2015 


Exhibit R - Renderings dated June 16, 2015 


Exhibit S -   Garden Center Enclosure dated June 16, 2015 


Exhibit T -  Grading Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015. 


 


  







 


 


EXHIBIT A 


Legal Description of Property 


 


Part of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 3430, Lots 1, 2, and 3, Certified Survey Map No. 3435, Lot 1, Certified 


Survey Map No. 9632, and Part of the Northwest Quarter, Northeast Quarter, Southeast Quarter and Southwest 


Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 01, Township 05 North, Range 10 East, City of Stoughton, Dane 


County, Wisconsin, more particularly described as follows: 


 


Commencing at the Southeast Corner of said Section 01; thence North 00 degrees 17 minutes 13 seconds West 


along the East line of the Southeast Quarter of Section 01, aforesaid, 185.11 feet; thence North 87 degrees 07 


minutes 28 seconds West, 33.05 feet to the Westerly right-of-way line of Veek Road and the Point of 


Beginning; thence continuing North 87 degrees 07 minutes 28 seconds West, 260.52 feet; thence South 00 


degrees 16 minutes 13 seconds East, 5.01 feet to the Northerly right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway ‘138’; 


thence North 87 degrees 07 minutes 28 seconds West, 21.50 feet; thence South 00 degrees 12 minutes 45 


seconds East, 8.67 feet; thence North 89 degrees 53 minutes 46 seconds West, 343.76 feet; thence North 87 


degrees 53 minutes 44 seconds West, 1054.08 feet; thence North 02 degrees 12 minutes 57 seconds East, 63.44 


feet; thence North 49 degrees 55 minutes 54 seconds East, 297.24 feet; thence South 87 degrees 53 minutes 44 


seconds East, 156.18 feet; thence North 00 degrees 10 minutes 51 seconds West, 468.76 feet; thence South 90 


degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, 32.23 feet to a point on a curve; thence Northwesterly 337.17 feet along 


an arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 1669.65 feet, the chord bearing North 55 degrees 34 minutes 42 


seconds West, 336.60 feet; thence South 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds West, 37.73 feet; thence North 00 


degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds East, 130.76 feet; thence North 49 degrees 24 minutes 07 seconds East, 363.28 


feet; thence South 44 degrees 06 minutes 47 seconds East, 30.27 feet to a point of curve;         thence 


Southeasterly 773.77 feet along an arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 960.00 feet, the chord bearing 


South 67 degrees 12 minutes 12 seconds East, 752.99 feet; thence North 00 degrees 06 minutes 55 seconds 


West, 886.79 feet; thence South 89 degrees 53 minutes 05 seconds West, 230.62 feet; thence North 45 degrees 


33 minutes 02 seconds West, 245.18 feet; thence North 44 degrees 26 minutes 58 seconds East, 217.29 feet; 


thence North 30 degrees 35 minutes 56 seconds East, 51.27 feet; thence South 86 degrees 41 minutes 54 


seconds East, 257.20 feet to the West line of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 8144; thence South 00 degrees 05 


minutes 12 seconds East along said West line, 195.44 feet to the Southwest corner of said Lot 2 also being the 


Northwest corner of Lot 4, Certified Survey Map No. 9632; thence South 00 degrees 06 minutes 55 seconds 


East along said West line of Certified Survey Map No. 9632, a distance of 888.03 feet; thence South 87 degrees 


57 minutes 29 seconds East, 1.15 feet; thence South 00 degrees 19 minutes 58 seconds West, 198.79 feet to the 


Southwest corner of Lot 2, Certified Survey Map No. 9632; thence North 89 degrees 42 minutes 22 seconds 


East along the South line of said Lot 2 a distance of 519.75 feet to the Westerly right-of-way line of U.S.  


 


 


 


 


 


Highway ‘51’; thence South 01 degrees 40 minutes 47 seconds West along said right-of-way line, 170.46 feet to 


a point of curve; thence Southeasterly 487.72 feet along an arc of a curve to the left, having a radius of 981.47 


feet, the chord bearing South 12 degrees 31 minutes 39 seconds East, 482.72 feet to the Westerly right-of-way 


line of Veek Road; thence South 00 degrees 17 minutes 13 seconds East along said right-of-way line, 322.71 


feet to the point of beginning. 


 


Said parcel contains 1,609,687 square feet or 36.953 acres. 


 


 







 


23268105 


EXHIBIT B-1 


Ordinance No 0-29-2014 


 


  







 


 


EXHIBIT B-2 


Ordinance No 0-30-2014 







 


23268105 


EXHIBIT C 


Legal Description of Walmart Site 


 


PART OF LOTS 2 AND 3, CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP No. 3435, AND PART OF LOT 1, CERTIFIED 


SURVEY MAP No. 9632, AND PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST 


QUARTER, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER, PART OF THE 


SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND PART OF THE NORTHWEST 


QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 01, TOWNSHIP 05 NORTH, RANGE 10 


EAST, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DESCRIBED MORE PARTICULARLY 


AS FOLLOWS: 


COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SECTION 01, AFORESAID; THENCE NORTH 87 


DEGREES 05 MINUTES 45 SECONDS WEST, ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST 


QUARTER, 484.66 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 13 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST, 162.99 


FEET TO THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF S.T.H. '138' AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; 


THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY 


LINE, 174.62 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID 


RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 1,054.08 FEET; THENCE NORTH 02 DEGREES 12 MINUTES 57 SECONDS 


EAST, 63.44 FEET; THENCE NORTH 49 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST, 297.24 FEET; 


THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 44 SECONDS EAST, 156.18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 


DEGREES 10 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST, 390.89 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 43 


MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 861.46 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 13 


SECONDS EAST, 189.50 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 77.75 FEET 


ALONG AN ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 49.50 FEET, THE CHORD 


BEARING SOUTH 45 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 14 SECONDS EAST, 70.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 


DEGREES 43 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 77.61 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE 


NORTHEASTERLY 166.86 FEET ALONG AN ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS 


OF 484.50 FEET, THE CHORD BEARING NORTH 79 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST, 


166.04 FEET; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 50 SECONDS EAST, 74.91 FEET TO A 


POINT ON A CURVE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 31.06 FEET ALONG AN ARC OF A CURVE TO 


THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 981.47 FEET, THE CHORD BEARING SOUTH 16 DEGREES 32 


MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, 31.06 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 69 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 50 SECONDS 


WEST, 73.03 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 177.54 FEET ALONG AN 


ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 515.50 FEET, THE CHORD BEARING 


SOUTH 79 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST, 176.66 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 


43 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 102.61 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 


38.48 FEET ALONG AN ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 24.50 FEET, THE 


CHORD BEARING SOUTH 44 DEGREES 43 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 34.65 FEET; THENCE 


SOUTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST, 57.88 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVE; THENCE 


SOUTHEASTERLY 62.69 FEET ALONG AN ARC OF A CURVE TO THE LEFT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 


174.50 FEET, THE CHORD BEARING SOUTH 10 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 43 SECONDS EAST, 62.35 


FEET; THENCE SOUTH 20 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, 52.01 FEET TO A POINT OF 


CURVE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY 81.01 FEET ALONG AN ARC OF A CURVE TO THE RIGHT, 


HAVING A RADIUS OF 225.50 FEET, THE CHORD BEARING SOUTH 10 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 43 


SECONDS EAST, 80.57 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 10 SECONDS EAST, 66.62 


FEET; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 53 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 64.78 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 


00 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 75.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 


 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


 


 


EXHIBIT D 


Specific Implementation Plan General Written Description 


 updated June 16, 2015 


 


 


 SPECIFIC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 


GENERAL WRITTEN DESCRIPTION  
 


1. Project themes and images.   Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust ("Walmart") has contracted to purchase 


the property located at the northwest corner of the intersection of U.S. Highway 51 and State Highway 138 


(the "Site"),within the Kettle Park West Commercial Center ("KPWCC") in the City of Stoughton, 


Wisconsin (the "City") consisting of approximately 15.49 acres. The KPWCC is a 35+ acre commercial 


development proposed by the Forward Development Group ("FDG").  Walmart is currently leasing an 


approximately 41,000 square foot store located at 1800 U.S. Highway 51.  The existing store is too small to 


adequately serve Walmart's customers and is subject to a restriction on grocery sales.  Walmart proposes to 


build a new approximately 152,500 square foot store on the Site (the "Store").  Relocating and expanding the 


existing store allows Walmart to improve services to area customers, including providing a full grocery 


department.  The proposed Store will provide customers a new store shopping experience with Walmart's 


latest store design, including many environmentally sustainable features.  Please see the enclosed 


architectural renderings and elevations. 


 


2. Uses.  The Store will include several departments, such as a general merchandising/department store, full 


service grocery with deli, produce, bakery, liquor and dry goods departments, a pharmacy with drive-thru 


and a garden center.  In addition, the Store may include some or all of a bank or savings and loan, dental, 


optical and medical clinics, a photography studio and processing lab, and various other customer service 


components such as a beauty shop and restaurants, etc., as well as customary accessory uses.  Walmart is 


seeking approval for 24 hour operations.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, all applicable state and City 


regulations as to hours shall be complied with, including the hour's restrictions for liquor sales pursuant to 


Wisconsin Statutes Chapter 125. 


 


3. Floor area ratio and impervious surface area ratio.  The floor area ratio will be approximately 23%. 


Approximately 72% of the Site will be impervious surface and 28% will consist of landscaped and open 


space.  


 


4. The specific treatment of natural features.  Walmart's development activities will not disturb any wetlands on 


the Site.  The KPWCC encompasses a small wetland to the north of the Site.  FDG is preparing a 


comprehensive wetland management strategy that will serve as the framework for managing the 


rehabilitation and enhancement of this wetland area.  


  


5. Relationship to nearby properties and public streets.  The Site is located in the KPWCC which is bounded 


by State Highway 138 to the south, U.S. Highway 51 to the east and the future extension of Jackson Street to 


the north.   The lots adjacent to the Store are planned for future development of additional retail, offices and 


professional services.  The KPWCC is part of a larger mixed-use neighborhood on the west side of the City 


called Kettle Park West.  The commercial and retail portion is the first phase of the proposed development.  


Vehicular access will be provided to and from the Site off of U.S. Highway 51 and State Highway 138, and 


on the northwest corner from an access drive off of Jackson Street, as shown on the enclosed Site Plan.   


 


6. Rationale for PD Zoning.   Please see the KPWCC, Planned Development District, General Development 


Plan.    







 


 


 


7. Deviations from the Zoning Code.   


 


a. Intentionally omitted.   


 


b. Sec. 78-205.11.f.6.g.  Landscaped and curbed medians are required a minimum of ten feet in width 


from the back of curb to back of curb, to create distinct parking areas of no more than 120 parking 


stalls. 


 Walmart will provide two landscaped medians splitting the parking lot into three sections as 


well as landscaped islands at each end cap. Providing additional landscaped medians that 


would further divide the parking lot would interfere with the safe flow of traffic and 


customers' access to cart corrals throughout the parking lot. 


 


c. Sec. 78-205.11.f.6.h.  Crosswalks shall be distinguished from driving surfaces to enhance pedestrian 


safety by using different pavement materials, or pavement color or pavement textures, and signage. 


 Walmart will provide striping and signage to distinguish crosswalks. Different types of 


pavement can cause uneven settling and may result in tripping hazards and damage from 


snow plows. Textured pavement is difficult for cart traffic to maneuver. 


 


d. Sec.78-702.3.a.  Each lot shall have not more than two access points on any street frontage adjacent 


to any lot. Said access shall require approval by the director of planning and development. 


 There will be three access points along State Highway 138. Two of these will provide 


parking lot access while the third, westernmost access point will be designated solely for 


delivery trucks.   


 


e. Sec. 78-704.2 and Sec. 78-704.8.b.  Every on-site parking space designed to serve as required 


parking shall not be located farther than 300 feet, except as permitted by a conditional use permit, of 


shortest walking distance from the access to all of the various areas it is designated to serve. 


 Due to constraints of the Site design and in order to provide adequate parking for customers 


and employees, some parking spaces are located greater than 300 feet from the two vestibules 


of the Store. The majority of spaces are located within 300 feet of the vestibules.  No parking 


space is more than 415 feet from a vestibule access. 


 The proposed parking lot design exceeds the zoning ordinance minimum parking stall width 


of nine feet. The proposed parking stalls will be 9.5 feet wide.  In Walmart's extensive 


experience, parking stalls with these dimensions are safest for customer traffic.   


 


f. Sec. 78-702.10.  Access drives shall have a minimum width of 18 feet for all land uses (other than 


one and two-family dwellings). All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 


30 feet for all non-residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line. Access drives may be flared 


between the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet. This may be 


exceeded with Plan Commission approval for uses other than single family. 


 Walmart proposes access openings in excess of 30 feet at the right-of-way as well as 50 foot 


radius curb returns at the access points along State Highway 138. The larger curb openings 


and 50 foot radius points are needed to allow truck traffic, emergency safety vehicles and 


larger customer vehicles to safely access the Site and safely accommodate 2-way traffic.  


FDG is working with the Wisconsin Department of Transportation ("WisDOT") to have all 


access points and their geometry approved as part of the WisDOT permit for KPWCC.  


 


g. Intentionally omitted.  


 







 


 


h. Sec 78-205.11.f.6.c.A.  The building shall employ varying setbacks, heights, roof treatments, 


doorways, window openings, and other structural or decorative elements to reduce apparent size and 


scale of the building. 


 The two sides of the Store visible to public view will comply with this requirement.  Varying 


parapet heights, setbacks, roof treatments, doorways, window opens and other decorative and 


structural elements will be integrated into the Store design to maintain a strong connection to 


human scale. The two sides not exposed to public view are heavily screened with vegetation, 


landscaping and fencing.  Less, but appropriate, articulation is proposed on these facades. 


 


i. Sec 78-205.11.f.6.c.B.  A minimum of 20 percent of the structure's facades that are visible from a 


public street shall employ actual protrusions or recesses with a depth of at least six feet. No 


uninterrupted facade shall extend more than 100 feet. 


 A minimum of 20 percent of the Store's facades that are visible from a public street will 


employ actual protrusions or recesses.   No uninterrupted facade facing a public street will 


extend more than 100 feet.  However, the protrusions vary from 8 inches to 4 feet.  The 


smaller protrusions create a design theme more consistent with Stoughton's downtown, where 


storefronts minimize their protrusions to create a downtown feel. The facade along the 


pharmacy drive-thru requires a straight drive aisle to access the pneumatic tubes to pick up 


prescriptions and to enable drivers to easily see pedestrians.  


 The proposed design significantly exceeds this requirement on the front facade of the Store.   


 


j. Sec 78-205.11.f.6.c.C.  A minimum of 20 percent of all of the combined linear roof eave or parapet 


lines of the structure shall employ differences in height, with such differences being six feet or more 


as measured eave to eave or parapet to parapet. 


 A minimum of 20 percent of all of the combined linear roof eave or parapet lines will employ 


differences in height along all of the Store facades.  However, in some areas, the combined 


linear or roof eave or parapet lines will have less than six feet of height differential.  The 


parapets have been designed to minimize the visibility of HVAC equipment from public view 


and to enable the Store infrastructure and systems to operate consistent with Walmart's 


sustainability goals. 


 The proposed design significantly exceeds the minimum of 20 percent required by the zoning 


ordinance on the front facade of the Store. 


   


k. Sec 78-205.11.f.6.c.F.  Building facades shall include a repeating pattern that includes no less than 


three of the following elements: (i) color change, (ii) texture change, (iii) material modular change, 


and (iv) expression of architectural or structural bay through a change in plane no less than 24 inches 


in width, such as an offset, reveal or projecting rib. At least one of these elements shall repeat 


horizontally. All elements shall repeat at intervals of no more than 30 feet, either horizontally or 


vertically. 


 These requirements have been met on the two facades facing a public street.  The two facades 


not facing the public streets are less visible due to the screening provided by landscaping and 


fencing.  In addition, these two facades are designed for their functional uses: receiving, 


compactors, bale and pallet and garden center staging. 


 The front façade of the store is designed to include significantly more repeating patters than 


is required by ordinance.   


 


l. Sec 78-205.11.f.6.f.B.  All rooftop mechanical equipment shall be screened by parapets, upper 


stories, or other areas of exterior walls or roofs so as to not be visible from public streets adjacent or 


within 1,000 feet of the subject property. Fences or similar rooftop screening devices may not be 


used to meet this requirement. 







 


 


 Parapets have been designed to screen all roof HVAC equipment from view on public streets.  


Parapet screening on the north and west elevations is not provided due the nature of the 


surrounding Site and grading conditions. Proposed future development and landscaping will 


provide a limited view from Jackson Street. 


 


m. Sec 78-205.11.f.6.f.D.  Gates and fencing may be used for security and access, but not for screening, 


and they shall be of high aesthetic quality. Decorative metal picket fencing and screening is 


acceptable. Chain link, wire mesh or wood fencing is unacceptable. Decorative, heavy-duty wood 


gates may be used. 


 The garden center is designed with an ornamental metal fence and arcade arches will be 


added to significantly elevate the aesthetic integrity of this area.  The fence will sit behind 


these arches pushing it to the background and making the arches more prominent to the 


design. 


 


8. Statistical data.   The Site contains approximately 15.49 acres.  The Store will be approximately 152,500 


square feet as shown on the enclosed Site Plan.  The floor area ratio will be approximately 25%.  


Approximately 28% of the Site will consist of landscaped and open space and 72% will consist of 


impervious surface.  Walmart's proposed improvements would be constructed in a single phase.  Walmart 


intends to open the Store in January, 2018.  Walmart understands that there will be a contract with the City 


regarding construction and store opening.   


 


9. Intended organizational structure for a property owners association.   N/A.   The responsibilities and costs 


associated with the KPWCC common areas, including the stormwater treatment system and access drives, 


will be apportioned according to covenants, conditions and restrictions running with the Site.   


 


10. A written description which demonstrates the full consistency of the proposed SIP with the approved GDP.  


The Site lies within the KPWCC which has an approved General Development Plan ("GDP").  The 


development in the KPWCC is intended to be predominately commercial in character along the highway 


frontages. GDP, page 5.   The uses anticipated for this area include businesses focused on customers who 


typically travel by car and larger scale retailers and service uses. GDP, page 14. The Site itself was designed 


to accommodate up to 155,000 square feet of retail space, including development of one large format retail 


building.  GDP, page 14.  The proposed Store is approximately 152,500 square feet and will provide 


essential retail services, including grocery, pharmacy and general merchandise, to the community. 


 


All proposed uses at the Store are permitted uses under the GDP.   Walmart is requesting limited dimensional 


variations from the underlying zoning code as noted in Number 7. 


 


In 2012, the City completed an economic analysis of the retail and service sector in the Stoughton 


community which concluded that over $80 million of local consumer demand was not being met within the 


community.  Retail and Service Sector Analysis: April 2012, Vierbicher, 2012, page 3.  This included a $19.5 


million dollar grocery gap.  Vierbicher, Page 4.  The proposed Walmart will provide needed retail and 


grocery services to a currently underserved population.   


 


11. Variations between the requirements of the approved PD/GDP zoning district and the proposed SIP 


development.   Please see Number 7 above.  


 


12. Proof of financing capability.  Please see the SEC filings at http://www.sec.gov/cgi-bin/browse-


edgar?action=getcompany&CIK=0000104169&owner=exclude&count=40&hidefilings=0.







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT E 


Site Plan and Design Information/Written Description of 


The Intended Use updated June 16, 2015 


 


 
 


SITE PLAN AND DESIGN INFORMATION 
WRITTEN DESCRIPTION OF THE INTENDED USE 


 


1. Existing zoning district.  The Site is zoned Planned Development ("PD").  All of Walmart's proposed uses 


are currently permitted in the PD district. 


 


2. Land Use Map designation.  The City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan designates the Site as Planned 


Business and General Business.  


 


3. Natural Resources Site Evaluation Worksheet.  Please see the attached worksheet.  Walmart's development 


activities will not disturb any wetlands on the Site.  The slopes will be modified by FDG prior to Walmart's 


construction activities on the Site.       


 


4. Current land uses present on the subject property.  The Site is currently vacant.   


 


5. Proposed land uses.  Walmart proposes to build an approximately 152,500 square foot Store on the Site.  


The Store will include indoor sales and service, outdoor displays and possible personal and professional 


services.  The Store will include several departments, such as a general merchandising/department store, full 


service grocery with deli, produce, bakery, liquor and dry goods departments, a pharmacy (with drive-thru) 


and a garden center.  In addition, the Store may include some or all of a bank or savings and loan, dental, 


optical and medical clinics, a photography studio and processing lab, and various other customer service 


components such as a beauty shop and restaurants, etc., as well as customary accessory uses.   


 


6. Projected number of residents, employees, and daily customers.  There will not be any residents on the Site.   


Walmart will offer all approximately 70 associates at its current Stoughton store jobs at its new store.  In 


addition, 100-130 new jobs will be created.  It is anticipated that there will be an estimated 3,000 daily 


customers at the new Store.   


 


7. Proposed amount of dwelling units, floor area, impervious surface area, and landscape surface area, and 


resulting site density, floor area ratio, impervious surface area ratio, and landscape surface area ratio.  


There will not be any dwelling units on the Site.  The approximate floor area ratio will be 23%.   


Approximately 72% of the Site will be impervious surface and 28% will be landscaped and open space.   


 


8. Operational considerations.  Walmart seeks to operate the proposed Store 24 hours per day, seven days a 


week.  Delivery truck parking will be only for the reasonable time required to load and unload the trucks.  


All loading activities will occur on-Site and outside of the public right of way.  There will be no fleet 


vehicles stored on the Site.  Only an average of one to three Walmart fleet delivery trucks are expected to 


visit the Store each day.  In addition, several smaller vendor trucks/vans will deliver merchandise, such as 


milk, soda and snack foods, several times each week.   


 


The Store will not be a heavy user of water or sewer service.  The sanitary sewer loading is estimated to be 


approximately 5,415 gallons per day (54 PE).  Walmart's stormwater detention, water quality and infiltration 


requirements will be provided within a regional facility located to the north of the Site. The design, 


permitting and construction of the regional stormwater/infiltration facilities will be the responsibility of 







 


 


FDG. As a method of on-Site pre-treatment, Walmart will install inlet filters within all proposed catch 


basins. 


 


For traffic, please see the Traffic Impact Analysis prepared for FDG.   


 


The Site lighting is designed to provide safety for customers while meeting the City's requirements.  All 


luminaires will utilize downward facing, full cutoff fixtures on 22 foot poles with three foot bases.   The 


lighting is modeled horizontally on a 10 foot by 10 foot grid that extends 10 feet outside of the property line.  


All spill light at the property lines is designed to meet the code requirement of 0.5 maximum.  Pedestrian and 


parking areas are kept above a minimum of 0.9 footcandles.  


Consistent with its company-wide sustainability initiatives, Walmart will implement multiple sustainability 


measures both in the development and operation of the Store to maximize recycling and energy conservation 


opportunities.  This initiative includes utilizing LED lighting, energy efficient HVAC, ozone friendly 


refrigerants, recycled water heating and various recycling methods.  Walmart will attempt to recycle as much 


as possible.  Any food service garbage that relates to earth grown products will be put into a composting bin.  


Cardboard, paper and plastics will be recycled in bales.   Grease from food service and grocery will be 


picked up by a recycler.   


 


9. Operational considerations relating to potential nuisance creation.   The proposed development will comply 


with all requirements of Article VII, subject to items 7(d) through 7(g) of the enclosed Specific 


Implementation Plan General Written Description.  


 


10. Exterior building and fencing materials.  The Store will utilize tilt-up concrete panels as the structural shell.  


The exterior surface of the concrete panels will be painted and treated with a decorative "brick" stamped 


pattern.  Store accents will consist of cultured stone water table with precast cap, areas of Calstar Brick 


architectural masonry with soldier coursing accents and EIFS cornices, and aluminum storefront systems 


with spandrel glazing. The proposed design will also utilize standing seam metal accent roofs at the 


pharmacy drive-thru locations and the main facade colonnade.  The colonnade will consist of fiberglass 


columns on cultured stone bases.  The main building entries will utilize EIFS, cultured stone, and aluminum 


storefront systems.  The main entries will also feature canopies of Trespa phenolic resin panels over rigid 


metal frames.      


 


Screening walls at bale and pallet areas, compactor and loading docks will consist of either nine foot high or 


12 foot high tilt-up concrete panels to match the Store structure with metal coping. 


 


The proposed fencing along the right side and rear elevations will be a wooden board-on-board fence. 


 


11. Possible future expansion and related implications for 1 through 10, above.   Not applicable.    







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT F 


Specific Implementation Plan Supplemental Submittal - Narrative 


Statement updated June 16, 2015 


 


 


SPECIFIC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 


SUPPLEMENTAL SUBMITTAL-NARRATIVE STATEMENT 
 


1. Certified Survey Map.   Forward Development Group ("FDG") will provide a Certified Survey Map. 


 


2. Pedestrian and Bicycle Access.  FDG will provide an overall plan that incorporates the entire commercial 


center development that addresses pedestrian and bicycle access to all uses within the development, 


connections to existing and planned public pedestrian and bicycle facilities and connections to adjacent 


properties. 


 


3. Bike Racks.  Two bike racks totaling fourteen spaces will be provided.  Please see the enclosed revised plans. 


 


4. Outdoor Display Areas.  All exterior display areas will be separate from motor vehicle routes by a minimum 


of ten feet.  Please see the enclosed revised Site Plan. 


 


5. Lighting.  Exterior lighting will not exceed more than one-half foot-candles above ambient levels along the 


northwest and south property lines.  However, the eastern property line, which is internal to the commercial 


development, includes a pedestrian crosswalk running perpendicular to the east property line. In this 


location, the photometrics are designed to meet the minimum 0.9 foot-candles requirement at the pedestrian 


walkway.  Please see the enclosed revised lighting plans.  The color and design of the pole lighting will be 


compatible with the building and the entire Site.     


 


6. Grading, Erosion Control and Stormwater.  Grading and erosion control plans for Walmart's activities on the 


Site are enclosed.  Walmart's stormwater detention, water quality and infiltration requirements will be 


provided within a regional facility located to the north of the Site. The design, permitting and construction of 


the regional stormwater/infiltration facilities will be the responsibility of FDG.  FDG will provide a 


stormwater management plan and related applications.  FDG will also submit applications and plans for 


erosion control and grading.  FDG will be responsible for obtaining the WPDES permit for the overall 


commercial development.   


 


7. Access to Loading Area.  Per Sec. 78-705, each loading berth shall be located so as to facilitate access to a 


public street or alley, and shall not interfere with other vehicular or pedestrian traffic per Sec. 78-704 and 


shall not interfere with the function of the parking areas.  In no instance shall loading areas rely on backing 


movements into public rights of way.  A plan showing the truck route scenario is enclosed.  As depicted, 


there will not be any backing movements into the public rights of way.  Trucks will pull forward leaving 47 


feet of clearance from the front of the truck to the edge of State Highway 138.  In addition, this access point 


will be for delivery traffic only.  The trucks will not interfere with any vehicular traffic on the Site or within 


the State Highway 138 right of way.  


 


8. Deviations from the Zoning Code.   


 


a. Sec. 78-604 and 78-612. As indicated in Table 78-604, certain buildings or building additions 


constructed after the effective date of this chapter are required to be accented by a minimum amount 


of landscaping placed near the building foundation. For each 100 feet of building foundation 


perimeter, the landscaping installed shall at a minimum meet the number of landscaping points 


specified in Table 78-604. The actual number of points required for such landscaping shall be 







 


 


computed on a prorated basis, and installed and permanently maintained per the requirements of 


section 78-612. 


 The ordinance requires 721 points. The enclosed plans propose 365 points due to the building 


size and orientation as well as adjacent pavement and sidewalk locations. To address this, 


Walmart proposes to exceed other portions of the landscape code including providing 3,463 


points where only 2,045 points are required for parking lot pavement landscaping and 3,817 


points where only 1,523 points are required based on the building square footage. 


 


b. Sec. 78-604(3)(d).   Parking lot design shall employ interior landscaped islands with a minimum of 


400 square feet at all parking aisle ends, and in addition shall provide a minimum of one landscaped 


island of a minimum of 400 square feet in each parking aisle for every 20 cars in that aisle. Aisle-end 


islands shall count toward meeting this requirement. Landscaped medians shall be used to break large 


parking areas into distinct pods, with a maximum of 100 spaces in any one pod.  


 The site plan provides two landscaped medians splitting the parking lot into three sections. 


Providing additional landscaped medians that would further divide the parking lot would 


interfere with the intended and safe flow of traffic and customers' access to cart corrals 


throughout the parking lot. 


 To provide a safe and clear accessible route from the handicap parking spaces to the front of 


the building, curbed landscaped islands have been excluded from the west ends of the 


parking rows that contain handicap parking spaces. Adding landscaped islands at these 


locations would not allow for unobstructed routes from the 5 foot wide walkway in the 


middle of the parking trees to the pedestrian crosswalks in front of the Store.   


 


c. Sec. 78-206(4)(g)(2). Parking requirements: Refer to the parking requirements of the other land use 


activities on the site . . . . Each drive-up lane shall have a minimum stacking length of 100 feet 


behind the pass through window and 40 feet beyond the pass through window. 


 Walmart proposes to include a drive-thru pharmacy on the Site.  There will be 37 feet of 


stacking past the second drive through window.  As this is a pharmacy drive-thru there 


should not be any stacking of vehicles beyond the window.   


 


d. Sec. 78-814(1)(a).  A sign shall be permitted on the front wall of any principal building. The total 


area of such sign shall not exceed one-tenth of the area of the front face, including doors and 


windows, of the principal building, provided that the total area of such sign shall not exceed 165 


square feet. 


  Walmart is proposing one wall sign that is 298 square feet.   The proposed Store will be set 


more than 750 feet back from US Highway 51.  The Store is over 150,000 square feet in floor 


area with a single main building identification wall sign.  The proposed wall signage is 


appropriate for the use, size, location and scale of the building and the property and will 


visually match the size of the building, both architecturally and aesthetically. In addition to 


the main wall sign and one monument sign, Walmart intends to install several way-finding 


images to direct customers and visitors to the home and pharmacy, market, outdoor living, 


and pharmacy drive-thru areas of the Store.  These way-finding images will facilitate access 


to the sought after areas of the Store.  They also will reduce pedestrian-auto conflicts and 


discourage idling of vehicles.  Walmart's overall sign package will promote a safe, 


convenient, and aesthetically pleasing shopping environment. 


e. Sec. 28-205(11)(f)6.h.G.  Interior Pedestrian Furniture. The development shall provide interior 


pedestrian furniture in appropriate locations at a minimum rate of one bench seat for every 10,000 


square feet of gross floor area. Seating in food service areas, or other areas where food or 


merchandise purchasing activities occur shall not count toward this requirement. A minimum of four 


seats shall be located within the store, with a clear view through exit doors to a passenger pick-up or 


drop-off area. 







 


 


 The development will provide at least the minimum required 16 bench seats within the Store.  


However, Walmart does not propose to locate any of the interior seats within a clear view 


through the exit doors to a passenger pick-up or drop-off area.  Eight bench seats will be 


provided outside of the vestibule, under cover.  Locating benches within the vestibule would 


be a safety concern as customers would be congregating in heavily trafficked entry and exit 


areas. 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT G 


Specific Implementation Plan Supplemental Submittal - Narrative 


Statement updated June 16, 2015 


 


 


SPECIFIC IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 


SUPPLEMENTAL SUBMITTAL-NARRATIVE STATEMENT 
 


1. Intentionally omitted.   


 


2. Additional Deviations from the Zoning Code.   


 


a. 78-205(11)(f)6.f.C.  Loading docks shall be completely screened from surrounding roads and 


properties.  Said screening may be accomplished through loading areas internal to buildings, screen 


walls, which match the building exterior in materials and design, fully opaque landscaping at time of 


planting, or combinations of the above. 


 Based upon the proposed split truck dock configuration at the Site, two of the truck docks are 


facing south toward State Highway 138. Substantial landscaping, fences and screening walls 


will be provided along the south and west property lines to screen the truck docks from view; 


however, complete screening is not possible directly south of the truck docks due to the street 


access to State Highway 138. 


 


b. Sec. 78-814(1).  A sign shall be permitted on the front wall of any principal building. The total area of 


such sign shall not exceed one-tenth of the area of the front face, including doors and windows, of the 


principal building, provided that the total area of such sign shall not exceed 165 square feet.  Front wall 


signs shall not exceed 165 square feet in area.  Side wall signs shall not exceed 100 square feet in 


area.  Rear wall signs shall not exceed 83 square feet in area.  The total area of all on premise signs 


for an individual business is 300 square feet.   
 


 Walmart is proposing one wall sign that is 298 square feet.   The proposed Store will be set 


more than 750 feet back from US Highway 51, which hinders the visibility of the single main 


building identification wall sign.  In addition, the Store is over 150,000 square feet in floor area.  


The proposed wall signage is appropriate for the use, size, location and scale of the building and 


the property and will visually match the size of the building, both architecturally and 


aesthetically. In addition to the main wall sign and one monument sign (95 square feet), 


Walmart intends to install several way-finding images, as shown on the included plans, to safely 


direct customers and visitors to the home and pharmacy, market, outdoor living, and pharmacy 


drive-thru areas of the Store.  These way-finding images will facilitate access to the sought after 


areas of the Store.  They will also reduce pedestrian-auto conflicts and discourage idling of 


vehicles.  Walmart's overall sign package will promote a safe, convenient and aesthetically 


pleasing shopping environment. The total square footage of the Walmart building identification 


wall sign, way-finding images and monument sign is approximately 786 square feet.  


 


c. Section 78-707(4)(b). In no instance shall the amount of illumination attributable to exterior lighting, 


as measured at the property line, exceed 0.50 footcandles above ambient lighting conditions on a 


cloudless night.     


 


 At the southeast corner of the Site, a portion of land will be dedicated to the City as right-of-


way ("ROW") for the entrance to the overall Kettle Park West Commercial Center 


("Commercial Center"). Due to the proximity of the edge of the ROW to the proposed 







 


 


parking area, the lighting levels at the property line are above 0.50 foot candles.   However, 


this lighting will be beneficial as it is at one of the main entrances to the overall Commercial 


Center. 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT H 


Comprehensive Plan Map 6a Depicting the Walmart Site 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT I 


Site Aerial Exhibit dated November 5, 2014, revised June 15, 2015 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT J 


Overall Site Dimensional and Paving Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT K 


Colored Landscape Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 


 


 


 







 


 


 
 


Preliminary Plant List


Key Quantity Name    COMMON/Botanical Size Comments


Climax Trees (75 points)


ACSA 27 GREEN MOUNTAIN SUGAR MAPLE/ Acer saccharum 'Green Mountain' 2" BB


QUBI 13 SWAMP WHITE OAK/ Quercus bicolor 2" BB


QURU 11 NORTHERN RED OAK/ Quercus rubra borealis 2" BB


Tall Deciduous Trees (30 points)


ACRU 21 RED SUNSET RED MAPLE/ Acer rubrum 'Franksred' 2" BB


CEOC 13 COMMON HACKBERRY/ Celtis occidentalis 2" BB


GLTR 11
SHADEMASTER HONEYLOCUST/ Gleditsia triacanthos var. inermis 


'Shademaster'
2" BB


TIAM 19 REDMOND AMERICAN LINDEN/ Tilia americana 'Redmond' 2" BB


ULCA 8 NEW HORIZON ELM/ Ulmus carpinifolia 'New Horizon' 2" BB


ACNI 8 GREENCOLUMN BLACK MAPLE/ Acer nigrum'Greencolumn' 2" BB


CABE 8 PYRAMIDAL HORNBEAM/ Carpinus betulos 'Fastigiata' 2" BB


PYCA 3 ARISTOCRAT PEAR/Pyrus calleryana 'Aristocrat' 2'' BB


BENI 7 RIVER BIRCH/ Betula nigra 6' BB 3-stem clump


ACGI 2 FLAME AMUR MAPLE/ Acer ginnala 'Flame' 2'' BB


AMGR 21
AUTUMN BRILLANCE SERVICEBERRY/ Amelanchier grandiflora 'Autumn 


Brillance'
6' BB Multi-stem


CRCR 11 THORNLESS COCKSPUR HAWTHORN/ Crataegus crus-galli var. inermis 6' BB Multi-stem


Tall Evergreen Trees (40 points)


PIRE 19 RED PINE/ Pinus resinosa 5' BB


PIST 17 EASTERN WHITE PINE/ Pinus strobus 5' BB


PIPU 23 COLORADO GREEN SPRUCE/ Picea pungens 5' BB


Low Evergreen Trees (12 points)


THOT 2 TECHNY ARBORVITAE/ Thuja occidentalis 'Techny' 4' BB


Medium Deciduous Trees (15 points)


Low Deciduous Trees (10 points)







 


 


Tall Deciduous Shrubs (5 points)


CORA 62 GRAY DOGWOOD/ Cornus racemosa 3'


FOOV 11 MEADOWLARK FORSYTHIA/ Forsythia ovata 'Meadowlark' 3'


RIAL 18 ALPINE CURRANT/ Ribes alpinum 3'


VIPR 101 MOHICAN VIBURNUM/ Viburnum lantana ' Mohican' 3'


Low Deciduous Shrubs (1 point)


ARME 125 BLACK CHOKEBERRY/ Aronia melanocarpa 18"


POFR 96 McKAY'S WHITE POTENTILLA/ Potentilla fruticosa 'McKay's White' 18"


RHAR 63 GRO-LOW FRAGRANT SUMAC/ Rhus aromatica 'Gro-Low' # 5 Container


SPBU 53 GOLDFLAME SPIREA/ Spiraea bumalda 'Goldflame' 18"


Low Evergreen Shrubs


JUHO 48 BAR HARBOR JUNIPER/ Juniperus horizontalis 'Bar Harbor' 12"


Other ( No Points) Staked


ACYA 78 PAPRIKA ACHILLEA/ Achillea (Yarrow) ' Paprika' #1 Container


CAAC 19
KARL FOERSTER FEATHER REED GRASS/ Calamagrostis acutiflora 'Karl 


Foerster'
#3 Container


COTI 190 BABY SUN COREOPSIS/ Coreopsis (Tickseed) 'Baby Sun' #1 Container


HEME 470 HAPPY RETURNS DAYLILY/ Hemerocallis 'Happy Returns' #1 Container


MISI 73 PURPLE FLAME GRASS/ Miscanthus sinensis 'Purpurascens' #1 Container


PATR 17 BOSTON IVY/ Parthenocissus tricuspidata #3 Container


PEAL 49 HAMELN DWARF FOUNTAIN GRASS/ Pennisetum alopecuroides 'Hameln' #3 Container


RUFO 288 BLACK-EYED SUSAN/ Rudbeckia fulgida 'Goldsturm' #1 Container


SEDU 332 VERA JAMESON SEDUM/ Sedum (Stonecrop) 'Vera Jameson' #1 Container


VERO 576 GOODNESS GROWS SPEEDWELL/ Veronica (Speedwell) 'Goodness Grows' #1 Container







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT L 


Landscape Surface Ratio Exhibit dated July 23, 2014, last revised June 17, 2015 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT M 


Cross Section of West Buffer Area dated May 29, 2014, revised June 15, 2015 


 


 
 







 


 


EXHIBIT N 


Landscape Island Details dated May 29, 2014, last revised November 10, 2014  


 


 







 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT O 


Photometrics Plan dated August 13, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT P 


Building Elevations dated June 16, 2015 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT Q 


Building and Site Signage dated June 16, 2015 


 







 


  
 23714146v2 


EXHIBIT R 


Renderings dated June 16, 2015 


EXHIBIT S 







 


 


Garden Center Enclosure dated June 16, 2015 


 


 
  







 


 


EXHIBIT T 


Grading Plan dated May 29, 2014, last revised June 15, 2015 


 


 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\07-27-15\03. Walmart SIP Amendment.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: July 16, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners and Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 27, 2015 Special Planning Commission Meeting and July
28, 2015 Common Council meeting.


1. Manhard Consulting representing Walmart requests approval of a Specific
Implementation Plan (SIP) amendment for property located at the northwest corner of
US Highway 51 and State Highway 138.


Materials for this request are provided on the City Document Storage Website at:
http://stoughtoncitydocs.com/planning-commission/


This SIP amendment request is primarily due to the presence of an existing wetland at the
northwest corner of Lot 2, the Walmart building footprint and site geometry has been revised
to avoid the existing 75-foot wetland buffer as required by the Capital Area Regional Planning
Commission. A summary of deviations has been provided. The Planning Commission will
hold a public hearing on July 27, 2015 and provide a recommendation to the Common
Council. The Common Council is scheduled to have the first reading of the ordinance on July
28, 2015 and the second reading on August 11, 2015. Staff recommends approval as
presented.





		6-O-15-2015-Common Council Ordinance- Wal-Mart SIP.pdf

		Common Council Ordinance- Wal-Mart SIP.pdf






 
City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI  53589 


 


 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into a Change Order with Joe Daniels 


Construction to replace the Ramp and Railings at the Library Building as part of the Library 


Remodeling Project. 
 
Committee Action: 


 
Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0. 


 
Fiscal Impact:  $24,840 


 
File Number: 


 
R-108-2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 28, 2015 


 
WHEREAS, The City of Stoughton’s 2015 Budget includes $921,000 for remodeling at the Library; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, The architect’s estimate for construction of this part of the project was $625,000; and 


 


WHEREAS, The City entered into a contract for remodeling with Joe Daniels Construction for a total 


contract price of $501,773; and  


 


WHEREAS, The City requested a proposal for additional work to reconstruct the Library exterior ramp 


and railing that is in disrepair; and 


 


WHEREAS, The contractor has presented a proposal to complete this work for $24,840; and 


 


WHEREAS, it is recommended that the construction project continue to carry the 5% contingency 


previously approved ($25,000) for unexpected items that may be revealed during construction; and 


 


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be 


hereby directed and authorized to enter into an Change Order with Joe Daniels Construction for $24,840 


for the additional work to reconstruct the Library exterior ramp and railing and continue to carry the 


$25,000 contingency for other unexpected items that may be revealed during construction. 


 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote     


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


 


 


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 
 


Council Action:           Override  Vote     


 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: July 1, 2015


To: Finance Committee


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Finance Committee Agenda Item


R- - 2015 – Library Project Change Order


The condition of the exterior ramp and railing has significantly deteriorated. Since we have
contract for the Library Remodeling project already in place with favorable pricing, we see this
as an opportunity to address this issue at this time. We have received and reviewed the proposal
from Joe Daniels Construction and recommend entering into a change order for this work at a
cost of $24,840. The overall project still remains under budget.


If you have any questions, please contact me.







DANIELS
 
General Contractors
 


To: City of Stoughton Date: 06-30-15 
Attn: SPL - 2nd Floor Renovations Job Name: CB #03 Proposal 


Address: 304 Fourth Street Estimator: Steve Hansen 
Stoughton, WI 53589 Email: shansen@danielsco.com 


Proposal for the work in CB #03 as follows: 


Furnish and install all work for removal of the existing railings, removal ofthe concrete top on the 
ramp/stoop/stair, reform and pour back the ramp/stoop/stair flush with the wall, support the new ramp 
edge at the building wall, epoxy the foundation crack, furnish and install the galvanized railings per the 
information received in CB #03. No painting included. Includes labor, materials, equipment, and dump 
fees. 


Alternate # 1: Add to prep the galvanized railings and paint them. $3,000.00 _ 


IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT, OWNER SHALL PAY ALL REASONABLE COSTS AND EXPENSES, 
INCLUCING ATTORNEYS FEE, INCURRED BY CONTRACTOR IN ENFORCING THIS CONTRACT. 


NOTE: SALES TAX WILL BE ADDED WHERE APPLICABLE 


We Propose hereby to furnish material and labor - complete in accordance with above specifications for the sum of: 


Twenty one thousand eight hundred forty and no/l00 Dollars ($21,840.00) 
PAYMENT TERMS: 2% INTEREST PER MONTH CHARGED AFTER 30 DAYS FROM INVOICE DATE. 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work to be completed 
in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. Any alteration 
or deviation from above specifications including extra costs will be 
executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra charge over 
and above the estimate. All agreements contingent upon strikes, 
aceidents or delays beyond our control. Owner to carry fire, tornado, 
builder's risk and other necessary insurance. Our workers are fully 
covered by Workman's Compensation Insurance. 


Daniels 
Authorized 
Signature: ~--


Acceptance of Proposal - The above prices, 


specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. 
You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as 
outlined above. 


Accepted by: 


Date of Acceptance: 


Proposal may be withdrawn ifnot accepted within 30 days 


Joe Daniels Construction Co., Inc. ·919 Applegate Road, Madison, WI 53713 • Office 608.271.4800· Fax 608.271.4570
 


Commercial· Design-Build· Industrial
 





		7- R-108-2015- Library Change Order.pdf

		Library Change Order Backup Materials.pdf

		Council Resolution-2015 Library Ramp Replacement Proposal.pdf

		Finance Committee 7-14-2015-Library Change order ramp work.pdf

		CB #03_SPL_06-24-15 - proposal.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson to operate a Commercial 


Animal Boarding facility (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommend Council approval 7 – 0 with the Mayor voting  


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-112 -2015 


 
Date Introduced: July 28, 2015 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on July 13, 2015 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing and 


reviewed the proposed conditional use permit request by Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson, for property 


located at 556 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to operate a commercial animal boarding facility, 


specifically for a dog daycare; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


 


 The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 


with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 


Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;  


 The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 


in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 


environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-


way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 


or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 


chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 


consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 


to guide development; 


 The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 


land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


 The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 


impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 


public agencies serving the subject property; 


 The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 


impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 


any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use 


permit will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a 


whole; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for 







Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson to operate a commercial animal boarding facility (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. 


Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on the staff review letter dated June 19, 


2015. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-  -15  Dog Daycare 556 E. Main Street.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\07-13-15\Planning Materials\Tilleson-Hines CUP Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 13, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting and Common
Council meeting of July 28, 2015.


1. Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines requests a conditional use permit for a commercial
animal boarding use (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. Main Street.
The applicants have been searching for a property to start a dog daycare business for several
months. This under-utilized property (the old Stoughton Lumber site) at 556 E. Main Street is
the new location chosen for their venture. The site plan, staff review and related materials are
provided. A public hearing and recommendation to Council is necessary. Staff recommends
approval contingent on the staff review letter dated June 19, 2015.







TO: Mayor Olson, Michael Stacey, Todd Krcma, Scott Truehl, Matt Hanna,
Ron Christenson, Greg Jenson, Eric Hohol, Rodney Scheel, Bob Kardasz


FROM: Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines JT NH


DATE: June 9, 2015
SUBJECT: Petition for Conditional Use Application


Dear Stoughton Planning Commission Members,


We are writing to you to ask that you consider a Conditional Use Application for 556
E Main Street, on which we have made an offer to lease. Currently 556 E Main Street
is zoned Planned Business and was recommended for us to look into for use by
Rodney Scheel and Michael Stacey. We have reached an agreement to lease part of
this property from owner, Chris Overson.


As Stoughton residents and dog owners, we know there to be a need for a dog day
care center in our town that is currently not being fulfilled. We drive 1 hour round-
trip twice a day, for a total of 2 extra hours driving time, to bring our dog to east
Madison to attend dog day care. This is because there is not a closer dog day care
center to our home. Stoughton has already made great strides in meeting the needs
of dog owners, as evidenced by the excellent dog park located within Viking Park.
However, the dog park alone does not meet all of the needs of dog owners in
Stoughton. Because of this, residents are bringing their business to other nearby
towns, such as the Hound Huddle in Oregon, WI, in order to meet their need for a
dog day care. By granting a Conditional Use Application for 556 E Main Street,
Stoughton will have the opportunity to see continued business growth and
development by allowing us to provide a dog day care center.


We appreciate your consideration. Please do not hesitate to contact us with any
questions. We can be reached by phone at 262-227-2937 or via email at
Jordan.tilleson@gmail.com or Nicole.j.hines@gmail.com.


Respectfully,
Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines JT NH



































 


Planning
Geophysical
Water Resources
Parcels


Parcel Number
House Number
CSM Text
Plat Labels
Tax Parcels


June 15, 2015
0 0.02 0.040.01 mi


0 0.03 0.060.015 km


1:1,193


 
 







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


June 19, 2015
Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines
2521 Williams Drive
Stoughton, WI. 53589


Dear Applicant:


I have completed a review of the proposed conditional use permit request for a commercial animal
boarding use (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589.


1. The property at 556 E. Main Street, Stoughton is zoned PB – Planned Business. Commercial
Animal Boarding is allowed as a conditional use within the PB district. The Planning
Commission will hold a public hearing, review this request and provide a recommendation
to the Common Council at their July 13, 2015 meeting. The Common Council should
make their decision on July 28, 2015. You and/or a representative will need to attend the
meeting to answer questions.


2. Commercial animal boarding is described as follows: Commercial animal boarding facility land
uses include land uses which provide short-term and/or long-term boarding for animals. An
example of this land use is a commercial kennel. Exercise yards, fields, training areas, and trails
associated with such land uses are considered accessory to such land uses and do not require
separate consideration. A letter has been provided that describes the proposed use which is
consistent with this description.


3. Regulations related to commercial animal boarding are as follows:
a. Each unsupervised animal shall be provided with their own indoor containment area.


For supervised animals, a minimum of 1 containment area or 5% of all animals shall be
provided a containment area, whichever is greater.


b. Special events such as shows, exhibitions, and contests shall only be permitted when a
temporary use permit has been secured. (See Section 78-906.)


Information has been provided to confirm this requirement will be met.


4. The parking requirement for commercial animal boarding is one space per every 1,000 square
feet of gross floor area.
2,000 square feet of building area will require 2 parking stalls. There appears to be ample
onsite parking to meet this requirement.


5. The Planning Commission and Common Council may make a finding that this use is generally
consistent with the recommendations of the City Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map
which depicts this property as General Industrial.







6. There are no bufferyard requirements since the adjacent properties are zoned planned business
or industrial.


7. Changes to the interior of the building including exiting may require State approvals and will
require City of Stoughton permits. Contact Building Inspector Steve Kittelson at 608-873-7626
regarding necessary approvals.


8. We will need a plan showing all site improvements including fencing and signage. A zoning
permit is required for fencing and signage from the Dept. of Planning & Development. A plan
has been provided including a description of the fenced area.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\property log folder\556 e main street\dog daycare\dog daycare cup review letter 15.doc







TO: Mayor Olson, Michael Stacey, Todd Krcma, Scott Truehl, Matt Hanna,
Ron Christenson, Greg Jenson, Eric Hohol, Rodney Scheel, Bob Kardasz


FROM: Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines
DATE: July 6, 2015
SUBJECT: Letter to address questions from CUP


Dear Stoughton Planning Commission Members,


We are writing to you to answer questions that were asked from the CUP review
letter that was sent to us on June 16th, 2015.


1. Commercial animal boarding is described as follows: Commercial animal boarding
facility land uses include land uses which provide short-term and/or long-term
boarding for animals. An example of this land use is a commercial kennel. Exercise
yards, fields, training areas, and trails associated with such land uses are considered
accessory to such land uses and do not require separate consideration. Please
provide a letter that specifically describes the use; hours of operation, how the
property will be use and what part of the property will be used.
The property will used as a Dog Daycare that will operate Mondays – Saturdays
from 7am-6pm. Maps have been provided to show the parts of the property that
will be used. The indoor space will have area for the dogs to play, exercise, and
be social. The property will also have an office and a dog grooming station. There
will be a fenced off outdoor area for the dogs to also play, exercise, and socialize.


2. Regulations related to commercial animal boarding are as follows:
a. Each unsupervised animal shall be provided with their own indoor


containment area. For supervised animals, a minimum of 1 containment
area or 5% of all animals shall be provided a containment area,
whichever is greater.


b. Special events such as shows, exhibitions, and contests shall only be
permitted when a temporary use permit has been secured. (See Section
78-906.)


We will need information to confirm this requirement is met.
We plan to separate the dogs that visit us into different groups based on size and
activity level. This will help keep the dogs safe, and will provide a positive
environment. Pup “break rooms” will be sectioned off in our area of operation,
that act as kennels. These break rooms will be used to give the dogs a resting
period from activities of the day and time to eat a snack. Dogs will be rotated in
and out of the break area throughout the day. As our business grows, we will add
a type of over-night room for the dogs to stay at. Our remodeling plan will show
where on the property the kennel equipment will be located.


We appreciate your help with our business. Please do not hesitate to contact us with
any questions. We can be reached by phone at 262-227-2937 or via email at
Jordan.tilleson@gmail.com or Nicole.j.hines@gmail.com.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, July 13, 2015 at
6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public
Safety Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a
proposed Conditional Use Permit Application by Nicole Hines and Jordan Tilleson, for a Commercial
Animal Boarding (Dog Daycare) use at 556 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. The property at
556 E. Main Street is currently listed in Dane County records as being owned by the POC LLC, and is
more fully described as follows:


Parcel Number: 281/0511-054-7060-2,


LOT 1 CSM 12811 CS81/126-131 12-03-09 DESCR AS O M TURNER'S ADDN BLOCK 6 PRT
LOTS 16, 17 & 18 AND ALL LOTS 33 & 34 AND SEC 05-05-11 PRT OF SE1/4 SE1/4 & SEC 08-
05-11 PRT NE1/4 NE1/4 (2.555 ACRE) (This property description is for tax purposes and may be
abbreviated)


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421


Michael P Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published June 25, 2015 Hub
Published July 2, 2015 Hub


S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Dog Daycare CUP Notice 556 E. Main.doc



















































































T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 7-13-15.doc


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, July 13, 2015 - 6:00 p.m.
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson, Chair; Ron Christianson, Vice-Chair; Matt Hanna;
Eric Hohol; Todd Krcma; Pat O’Connor and Scott Truehl
Absent: None
Staff: Planning & Development Director, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey
Press: Mark Ignatowski
Guests: Rose Gunsolus; Marlene Judd; Brian Phelps; Elvera Phelps; Brian Spanos; Nicole
Hines; Jordan Tilleson; Tom Selsor; Otto Callies; Debbie Callies; Barbara Arnold; Robert
Arnold; and Richard Stark.


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of June 8, 2015.
Motion by Truehl to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by O’Connor. Motion carried
7-0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Christianson stated O-3-15 was approved related to Artisan Studios and R-94-15 was also
approved for a Group Daycare at 1425 E. Main Street.


4. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments. There were no questions.


5. Elvera Phelps requests to amend the General Development Plan to accommodate a
deck addition at 517 Kensington Square.
Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak at the public hearing.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Scheel summarized the request.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve the GDP amendment
contingent on the staff review letter dated July 6, 2015, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 7 -
0.


6. Jordan Tilleson and Nicole Hines request a conditional use permit for a commercial
animal boarding use (Dog Daycare) at 556 E. Main Street.
Scheel summarized the request.



mstacey

Highlight







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
7/13/15
Page 2 of 4


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 7-13-15.doc


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


The following people spoke in favor of the request:
Nicole Hines – co-applicant provided additional info related to dog daycares.
Robert Arnold – experience with dog daycares has been positive.
Jordan Tilleson – co-applicant.


The following people spoke against the request:
Richard Stark – concerned about noise and property values.


The following people had questions about the request:
Marlene Judd – questions related to the packet of information.
Rose Gunsolus – questioned the type of fencing planned to be used; how would sound
proofing be accomplished; what will be done with dog waste; concerns about barking.


The following registered in favor of the request:
Barbara Arnold
Debbie Callies
Otto Callies


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Hohol questioned how the whole building would be used. Scheel stated a portion of the
building would continue to be used as a contractor’s office.


Chris Overson, Owner of the property spoke in favor of the request.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use permit
contingent on the staff review letter dated June 19, 2015, 2nd by Hanna.


O’Connor questioned who will use the daycare and what the maximum number of dogs will
be. Nicole Hines stated they currently use a dog daycare for their dog and they likely
would have 25 – 30 dogs.


Krcma questioned if they could make this a kennel instead of a daycare. Scheel stated it is
presented as a daycare so changes or an expansion of the use would require going through
the conditional use process again. Nicole stated they only plan to have a daycare at this
time.


Commissioners Christianson and Hanna thanked the applicants for continuing to work with
the City to find a site for their business.


Richard Stark questioned codes related to noise. Scheel stated the City has an ordinance
related to noise. Motion carried 7-0.



mstacey

Highlight





		R-112-2015  Dog Daycare 556 E. Main Street.pdf

		Tilleson-Hines Dog Daycare 556 E. Main Street.pdf

		Insert from: "6F7C.pdf"

		Slide Number  1

		Slide Number  2

		Slide Number  3










CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving a Conditional Use Permit for Tim & Brenda Klein to operate an indoor commercial 


entertainment establishment (Restaurant) at 2125 McComb Road, Suite 110, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommends Common Council approval  – 0 with the 


Mayor voting 
 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None. 


 
File Number: 


 
R-113-2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 28, 2015 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on July 27, 2015 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing and 


reviewed the proposed conditional use permit request by Tim & Brenda Klein, for property located at 2125 


McComb Road, Suite 110, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the conditional use permit is requested to operate an indoor commercial entertainment 


establishment, specifically for a restaurant; and  


 


WHEREAS, the Zoning Administrator has determined: 


 


 The proposed conditional use (the use in general and at the proposed specific location) is in harmony 


with the purposes, goals, objectives, policies and standards of the City of Stoughton comprehensive 


Plan, zoning ordinance or any other plan;  


 The conditional use in its proposed location and as depicted on the required site plan does not result 


in a substantial or undue adverse impact on nearby property, the character of the neighborhood, 


environmental factors, traffic factors, parking, public improvements, public property or rights-of-


way, or other matters affecting the public health, safety, or general welfare, either as they now exist 


or as they may in the future be developed as a result of the implementation of the provisions of this 


chapter, the comprehensive plan, or any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted or under 


consideration pursuant to official notice by the city of other government agency having jurisdiction 


to guide development; 


 The proposed conditional use maintains the desired consistency of land uses, land use intensities, and 


land use impacts as related to the environs of the subject property; 


 The proposed conditional use is located in an area that will be adequately served by and will not 


impose an undue burden on any of the improvements, facilities, utilities or services provided by 


public agencies serving the subject property; 


 The potential public benefits of the proposed conditional use outweigh any and all potential adverse 


impacts of the proposed conditional use, after taking into consideration the applicant’s proposal and 


any requirements recommended by the applicant to ameliorate such impacts; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and Common Council determined the proposed conditional use 


permit will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, the environment, nor the community as a 


whole; now therefore 


 


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the Conditional Use Permit request for 







Tim & Brenda Klein to operate an indoor commercial entertainment establishment (Restaurant) at 2125 


McComb Road, Suite 110, Stoughton, Wisconsin is hereby approved contingent on: 


 The Staff review letter dated July 1, 2015 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-  -15  Klein CUP 2125 McComb.doc 













































		R-113-2015  Klein CUP 2125 McComb.pdf

		Klein CUP 2125 McComb.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


 
Approving an amended Certified Survey Map for Norse View Holdings LLC to reconfigure lots 145-


148 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to Norse View Heights, Stoughton.   


 
Committee Action: 


 
Planning Commission recommends Council approval 7 – 0 with the Mayor 


voting. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
N/A 


 
File Number: 


 
R-114-2015 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
July 28, 2015 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 


 


WHEREAS, on July 13, 2015 the City of Stoughton Planning Commission reviewed the proposed amended 


certified survey map by Norse View Holdings LLC, for property located at lots 145-148 on east side of Carl 


Avenue, Seventh Addition to Norse View Heights, Stoughton, Wisconsin; and 


 


WHEREAS, the previously approved certified survey map is proposed to be amended to eliminate a non-


conforming remnant lot at the north end of Carl Avenue; and  


 


WHEREAS, the certified survey map was reviewed by the Zoning Administrator and found to be in 


compliance with the City land division ordinance; and  


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible to dedicate the required 1,468 square feet of 


parkland associated with the one additional dwelling unit as part of the future development being planned for 


the area to the east and north of Carl Avenue; and 


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible for installation of sanitary sewer and water 


infrastructure as approved by Stoughton Utilities; and  


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible to install all street and stormwater 


improvements including sidewalk, curb and gutter and street trees as approved by the Street Superintendent; 


and 


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible to install street improvements to the approval 


of the Street Superintendent prior to issuance of any building permits for lots fronting these certified survey 


maps; and  


 


WHEREAS, Norse View Holdings, LLC will be responsible to vacate all unnecessary easements and 


provide all easements deemed necessary by Stoughton Utilities prior to recording of the certified survey 


map; and 


 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission and Common Council have determined the proposed amendment to 


the reconfiguration of lots by certified survey map will not create undesirable impacts on nearby properties, 


the environment, nor the community as a whole; now therefore 


 


 


 







BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the amended certified survey map 


approval request by Norse View Holdings LLC for property located at lots 145-148, Seventh Addition to 


Norse View Heights, Stoughton, Wisconsin is hereby approved as presented. 


 


Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       


  


 


Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  


  


                                             


Donna Olson, Mayor    Date 


 


Council Action:           Override  Vote       
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R- - 15 - Norse View CSM Amendment Carl Ave Lots 145-148.doc 







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMM\2015\07-13-15\Planning Materials\Norse View Holdings CSM Amendment 145-148 Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: June 29, 2015


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the July 13, 2015 Planning Commission Meeting.


1. Norse View Holdings LLC requests to amend a certified survey map (CSM) to
reconfigure lots 145-148 located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Heights.
This CSM amendment is requested to eliminate the non-conforming remnant lot at the north
end of Carl Avenue. The remnant lot will be part of a future plat. The CSM and related
materials are provided. A recommendation to Council is necessary. Staff recommends
approval as presented.











Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
7/13/15
Page 3 of 4


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\minutes\Planning Commission\2015\Planning Minutes 7-13-15.doc


7. Norse View Holdings LLC requests to amend a certified survey map (CSM) to
reconfigure lots 145-148, located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Heights.
Scheel summarized the request.


Motion by Hohol to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM amendment as
presented, 2nd by Truehl. Motion carried 7 - 0.


8. Norse View Holdings LLC requests to amend a certified survey map (CSM) to
reconfigure lots 148-150, located on the east side of Carl Avenue, Seventh Addition to
Norse View Heights.
Scheel summarized the request.


Motion by Krcma to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM amendment as
presented, 2nd by Hohol. Motion carried 7 - 0.


9. Brian Spanos of Spanrie Properties requests approval for site plan revisions to the
proposed 7-unit multiplex residential building at 2301 Lincoln Avenue.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Hohol to approve the revisions as presented, 2nd by Christianson.


Hanna questioned the use of Viburnum plantings and their locations including the lack of
the Red Oak on the plan. The applicant will work with staff to confirm these issues.


Motion carried 7 - 0.


10. O-7-15 – Proposed ordinance to amend section 6-2 for the keeping of animals.
(Referred back from Council on June 9, 2015)
Scheel explained the ordinance amendment.


The commission had a lengthy discussion about whether to attempt to modify the ordinance
related to the keeping of bees. There has only been one keeping of bees request over the
past 20 years and that was for bumble bees.


The commission also has concerns about the title of the ordinance not reflecting the body
of the ordinance.


Motion by Christianson to Table the ordinance amendment to allow staff time to rework
the ordinance, 2nd by Truehl.


Hohol stated the Council will be looking for something to come back from Planning so it
makes sense to recommend approval for this amendment then addressing bees when a
request has been made.



mstacey

Highlight





		R-114-2015 - Norse View CSM Amendment Carl Ave Lots 145-148.pdf

		Norse View CSM Lots 145-148.pdf



